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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF
THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
For the year ended June 30, 2024

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
 
The Board of Directors of HBL Asset Management Limited is pleased to present its report along with Financial Statements Report of HBL 
Pension Fund, HBL Islamic Pension Fund, HBL KPK Pension Fund and HBL KPK Islamic Pension Fund (the Funds) for the year ended June 30, 
2024.

ECONOMIC REVIEW

FY24 set the path for the economic recovery and stability. Nine-month Standby Arrangement (SBA) of USD 3.0B with IMF, signed at the end 
of June 2023, provided the much needed breathing space to Pakistan. The program has helped in unlocking other mul�lateral and bilateral 
inflows and stabilize foreign exchange reserves. Following the SBA program Pakistan received funding and rollovers from bilateral and 
mul�lateral. SBP reserves increased by USD 4.9B to ~USD 9.4B during FY24. PKR-USD parity also strengthened from the high of PKR 307/ 
USD to PKR 278/ USD. In FY24, PKR appreciated by 2.7%. Soon a�er the successful comple�on of the SBA program, Pakistani authori�es 
were able to reach an agreement on 3 year EFF program whose approval from the IMF Execu�ve Board is due in September. The long term 
program will ensure con�nuity of economic stability and aid in mee�ng external obliga�ons.

GDP growth in FY24 recorded at 2.4% led by 6.3% growth in agriculture. Although services and industrial sectors growth remained muted 
at 1.2% and 2.4% respec�vely, they improved as compare with FY23. For FY24, government has set the GDP growth target at 3.6% based on 
2.0%, 4.4% and 4.1% growth in agriculture, industrial and services growth respec�vely.

Current Account Deficit (CAD) in FY24 clocked in at USD 0.7B as compare with USD 3.3B in FY23. 11% decline in trade deficit to USD 22B and 
11% increase in remi�ances to USD 30.3B were the reasons behind reduc�on in CAD. Exports went up 12% y/y to USD 31B in FY24 while 
imports remained muted at USD 53.2B. In 2MFY25 CAD has declined by 81% y/y to USD 171M. Despite 22% increase in trade deficit to USD 
4.7B, CAD decreased due to 44% increase in remi�ances to USD 5.9B.

Headline infla�on, a�er touching the high of 38% in May 2023 has been on a declining trend. Infla�on averaged 24% in FY24 vs 29% in FY23. 
Higher base effect, stable parity and so�ening of food prices led to a decline in infla�on. In 2MFY25, headline infla�on averaged to 10.4% vs 
27.84% in 2MFY24. In line with trend of headline infla�on, core infla�on declined to 12.9% in 2MFY25 vs 21.2% in 2MFY24.

Despite high interest rates, fiscal deficit declined to 6.8% of GDP in FY24 vs 7.7% in FY23. Increase in tax collec�on, controlled current 
expenditures and lower PSDP led to decline in deficit. Primary balance recorded a surplus of 0.9% of GDP in FY24 vs a deficit of 0.8% in FY23, 
despite higher interest rate environment. In FY25, government has budgeted a deficit of 5.9% on the back of higher tax collec�ons and 
non-tax revenue. Primary balance surplus is budgeted at 1% of GDP.

STOCK MARKET REVIEW

In FY24, the benchmark KSE-100 index gained 36,992 points or 89.2% to reach at 78,445 level whereas KMI-30 index gain 55,676 points or 
78.7% to reach at 126,424 level. IMF program euphoria, economic stability, poli�cal certainty, peaceful culmina�on of elec�ons along with 
foreign inflows turned the sen�ments posi�ve. Strong results posted by corporates despite economic turbulence also supported the bullish 
momentum. To note, KSE-100 index has been the best performing market in FY24 by pos�ng 94% USD based return.

The sectors that majorly contributed to the performance in FY24 were Banks (+13,262 pts), fer�lizer (+5,074 pts), Oil and Gas Explora�on 
(+4,300 pts) and Power (+4,192 pts). Whereas script wise major contribu�on came from HUBC (+3,282 pts), UBL (+2,719 pts), MEBL (+2,392 
pts), EFERT (+1,998 pts) and BAHL (+1,945 pts). 

The average daily volume and value of KSE All share index grew to 461M shares and PKR 15.6B from 192M shares and PKR 6.1B in the FY23. 
Foreigners were net buyers of USD 141M whereas on the local front Banks, individuals, mutual funds and others were net sellers of USD 
141M, USD 60M, USD 47M and USD 33M respec�vely. Insurance and companies remained net buyer of 126M and 36M respec�vely. 

A�er the dras�c decline in infla�on, interest rates cycle is now on a reverse trend. Policy rate a�er touching the all-�me high of 22% has 
been reduced to 17.5%. Infla�on readings in the coming months are es�mated to be in single digits which will provide room for further cut 
in interest rates. Decline in interest rates, securing of 3 years EFF program, funding support from mul�lateral and bilateral, strong earnings 
outlook and weakening oil price outlook will keep the market momentum posi�ve. Despite offering dividend yield of 11%+, market is trading 
at P/E of 4.0x vs historical average of 6.0x. We believe that market could re-rate from current levels; hence, we maintain bullish stance on 
equi�es. The risk to our stance is escala�on in middle-east and possibility of any domes�c poli�cal uncertainty. 
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MONEY MARKET REVIEW

During the period under review, SBP maintained policy rate at 22% to slow down the economic ac�vity and tame down the infla�on.  
However, in the last Monetary Policy Commi�ee (MPC) mee�ng of FY24, the policy rate was reduced to 20.5% on the back of decline in 
infla�on. On a forward looking basis, the real interest rates have turned significantly posi�ve. 

Sensing the forth coming decline in interest rates, secondary market yields have started coming down before the interest rate cut 
announcement by MPC. A�er touching the high of 23.78%, 24.51%, 24.73%, 21.16% and 17.93% secondary market yields retreated to 
19.97%, 19.91%, 18.68%, 16.50% and15.37% for 3M, 6M, 12M, 3Y and 5Y tenors respec�vely. In T-bill auc�ons, 3M, 6M and 12M cut-off 
yields a�er reaching the high of 24.5%, 24.79% and 25.07% have declined to 20.15%, 19.96% and 18.54% respec�vely. In 3Y and 5Y fixed 
rate PIB auc�ons, cut off yields a�er witnessing the high of 19.35% and 16.95% went down to 16.60% and 15.45% respec�vely. 

During the last T-Bill auc�on held on 26th Jun-24, government raised PKR 777B as against the target of PKR 150B where cut-off yields 
remained largely flat at 20.15%, 19.96% and 18.54% for 3M, 6M and 12M T-Bills respec�vely. In last fixed rate PIB auc�on held on 
25th-Jun-24, government raised PKR 131B against the target of PKR 190B. Cut off yields for 3Y, 5Y and 10Y have remained broadly stable at 
16.55%, 15.45% and 14.25% for 3Y, 5Y and 10Y bonds respec�vely. In the last floa�ng rate PIB auc�on, government raised PKR 106B against 
the target of PKR 500B.

It is also per�nent to note that during the last Sukuk auc�on held on 27th June-2024, government raised PKR 198B from Fixed Rental Rate 
(FRR) Sukuk against target of PKR 20B. Yield on 3-year Sukuk stood at 15.80% whereas on 5-year Sukuk stood at 15.10% for FRR. In Variable 
Rate Sukuk (VRR) auc�on, government raised PKR 20B as per the target. In last fixed rate discounted Ijara Sukuk of FY24, government raised 
PKR 21B against the target of PKR 10B at 18.50%. 

Despite decline in interest rates, real interest rates have remained significantly posi�ve on forward looking basis due to expected sharp 
decline in infla�on. As infla�on is expected to ease further from current levels, possibility of further rate cuts are high.

FUTURE OUTLOOK
We believe that it would be difficult for the government to achieve the growth target of 3.6% in FY25. The growth will likely remain muted 
between 2.5% to 3.0% given the high interest rate environment, erosion of purchasing power parity and underu�liza�on of PSDP.

On the fiscal side, the budget deficit will likely be at higher side i.e. in the range of 6.5% to 7.5% vs the target of 5.9% due to higher interest 
payments and possible underperformance in budgeted tax collec�ons. In 2MFY25, FBR collec�on has fallen short of PKR 113B to the target. 
To recall FBR collec�on target for FY25 is ~PKR 12.9T, 40% higher than FY24. 

Current Account Deficit in FY25 is likely to remain near FY24 levels due to decline in oil prices and increase in remi�ances. As per PBS, 
petroleum imports were USD 16.9B or 31% of total imports. To note, Brent Crude has corrected 14% since the beginning of FY25. Increase 
in remi�ances (monthly run rate of ~USD 3B in 2MFY24) will also reduce the CAD.  
 
Pakistan has been witnessing high infla�on in the last few years with peak y/y infla�on touching 38% in May 2023. This was primarily driven 
by increase in interna�onal oil prices, floods, supply chain disrup�on, increase in taxes and PKR deprecia�on. In FY24, peak y/y infla�on was 
observed in September 2023 at 31.44%. Infla�on has been on a downward trend and have dropped from the 21% in March 2024 to 13% in 
June 2024. The y/y infla�on has further reduced to 9.6% in August 2024. PKR stability, decline in oil prices and high base effect contributed 
to declining infla�on readings. Infla�on is expected to remain in single digits in most periods of FY25 before inching up towards the end of 
FY25.

Our view on Pakistan equi�es is posi�ve due to cheap valua�ons, decline in interest rates and approval of IMF EFF programme. The market 
is trading at a historic low P/E mul�ple of ~4.0x compared to regional average of 14.5x, and offers an a�rac�ve dividend yield of 11.1%, 
compared to regional average of 5.5%. Hence, Pakistan equi�es offer a good opportunity for long-term investors. 

Fund’s Performance

HBL Pension Fund
The Fund comprises of three sub funds namely Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund and Money Market sub-fund. 

The Fund as a whole earned a total and net income of Rs. 345.54 million and Rs. 320.14 million respec�vely during the year under review. 
The fund size increased from Rs. 1,142.42 million as on June 30, 2023 to Rs. 2,047.30 million as at June 30, 2024 thereby showing an increase 
of 79% during the year under review. Performance review for each sub Fund is given below:
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Equity Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Equity sub-fund earned a total and net income of Rs. 51.80 million and Rs. 48.08 million respec�vely. The 
net assets of the Equity sub-fund was Rs. 97.28 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 517.4060 per unit as at June 30, 2024. The 
Sub Fund yielded a return of 3.55% for the year under review. The Fund is invested to the extent of 90% in equi�es.  

Debt Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Debt sub-fund earned total and net income of Rs. 107.67 million and Rs. 99.64 million respec�vely. The 
net assets of the Debt sub-fund was Rs. 908.43 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 340.5606 per unit as at June 30, 2024. The 
Fund yielded annualized return of 17.87% for the year under review. 

Money Market Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Money Market sub-fund earned total and net income of Rs. 186.08 million  and Rs. 172.42 million 
respec�vely. The net assets of the Money Market sub-fund was Rs. 1,041.59 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 296.0229 per 
unit as at June 30, 2024. An annualized return of 18.06% was earned by the Fund for the year under review. 

HBL Islamic Pension Fund

The Fund comprises of three sub funds namely Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund and Money Market sub-fund. 

The Fund as a whole earned a total and net income of Rs. 206.49 million and Rs. 193.89 million respec�vely during the year under review. 
The fund size increased from Rs. 641.32 million as at June 30, 2023 to Rs. 1,181.95 million as at June 30, 2024 showing an increase of 84%. 
Performance review for each sub Fund is given below:

Equity Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Equity sub-fund earned a total and income of Rs. 59.74 million and Rs. 55.77 million respec�vely. The net 
assets of the Equity sub-fund was Rs. 166.20 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 562.8396 per unit as at June 30, 2024. The 
Fund yielded a return of 7.82% for the year. The Sub Fund is invested to the extent of 87% in equi�es. 

Debt Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Debt sub-fund earned total and net income of Rs. 63.70 million and Rs. 59.78 million respec�vely. The net 
assets of the Debt sub-fund was Rs. 366.42 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 267.5406 per unit as at June 30, 2024. The Fund 
yielded annualized return of 17.16% for the year under review.

Money Market Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Money Market sub-fund earned total and net income of Rs. 83.22 million Rs. 78.34 million respec�vely. 
The net assets of the Money Market sub-fund was Rs. 649.33 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 259.8251 per unit as at June 
30, 2024. An annualized return of 16.94% was earned by the Fund for the year under review. 

HBL KPK Pension Fund

The KPK Pension Fund was launched on December 14, 2023. The Fund is unlisted pension scheme and its units are offered on a con�nuous 
basis to employees of KPK Government appointed / recruit under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 or an 
employee of KPK Government regularize as Civil Servant through any legal instrument issued a�er coming into force of the Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 irrespec�ve of the effec�ve date of regulariza�on. 

The Fund consists of four sub-funds namely; Equity Sub Fund, Equity Sub Fund, Debt Sub Fund and Money Market Sub Fund. The 
contribu�on by or on behalf of the employee for the first three years from the date of launch of the fund shall be invested 100% in Money 
Market Sub Fund only and the remaining sub-funds shall remain inopera�ve �ll then. 
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The performance of Money Market Sub-fund is given below:

Money Market Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Money Market sub-fund earned total and net income of Rs. 3.85 million Rs. 3.72 million respec�vely. The 
net assets of the Money Market sub-fund was Rs. 37.68 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 111.3831 per unit as at June 30, 
2024. An annualized return of 19.55% was earned by the Fund for the year under review. 

The remaining funds sub-funds remain in opera�ve and only seed capital is injected by the Pension Fund Manager which would remain 
invested �ll three years from the date of launch of the Fund.

HBL KPK Islamic Pension Fund

The KPK Islamic Pension Fund was launched on December 14, 2023. The Fund is unlisted pension scheme and its units are offered on a 
con�nuous basis to employees of KPK Government appointed / recruit under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 or 
an employee of KPK Government regularize as Civil Servant through any legal instrument issued a�er coming into force of the Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 irrespec�ve of the effec�ve date of regulariza�on. 

The Fund consists of four sub-funds namely; Equity Sub Fund, Equity Sub Fund, Debt Sub Fund and Money Market Sub Fund. The 
contribu�on by or on behalf of the employee for the first three years from the date of launch of the fund shall be invested 100% in Money 
Market Sub Fund only and the remaining sub-funds shall remain inopera�ve �ll then. 

The performance of Money Market Sub-fund is given below:

Money Market Sub-Fund

During the year under review, the Money Market sub-fund earned total and net income of Rs. 3.50 million Rs. 3.36 million respec�vely. The 
net assets of the Money Market sub-fund was Rs. 37.06 million represen�ng Net Asset Value (NAV) of Rs. 110.3225 per unit as at June 30, 
2024. An annualized return of 16.90% was earned by the Fund for the year under review. 

The remaining funds sub-funds remain in opera�ve and only seed capital is injected by the Pension Fund Manager which would remain 
invested �ll three years from the date of launch of the Fund.

Auditors

M/s BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants, exis�ng auditors of HBL Pension Fund, HBL Islamic Pension Fund, HBL KPK Pension Fund 
and HBL KPK Islamic Pension Fund have re�red and eligible for re-appointment. The Board of Directors on the recommenda�on of the Audit 
Commi�ee, has re-appointed M/s. BDO Ebrahim & Co., Chartered Accountants as Auditors of these Funds for the year ending June 30, 2025.

Acknowledgement
The Board takes this opportunity to thank its valued unit-holders for their confidence and patronage. It would like to place on record its 
apprecia�on for the help and guidance provided by the Securi�es & Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan as Trustee, the Pakistan Stock Exchange and the State Bank of Pakistan.

The Board also wishes to place on record its apprecia�on for the hard work and dedica�on shown by the staff.

On behalf of the Board of
HBL Asset Management Limited

Chief Execu�ve Officer        
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HBL Asset Managment Limited
Head Office

7th Floor
Emerald Tower

G-19 Block-5,
Main Cli�on Road,

Cli�on, Karachi

UAN (021) 111-425-262
Fax (021) 35168455
www.hblasset.com

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

HBL Islamic Pension Fund (the fund) has fully complied with the Shariah Principles specified in Trust 
Deed and in the guideline issued by the Shariah Advisor for its opera�ons, investment and placements 
made during the year ended June 30, 2024. This has been duly confirmed by the Shariah Advisor of the 
Fund.

Mir Adil Rashid

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Dated: September 26, 2024
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September 25, 2024 

 

، و�عد ا  � ، وع� آله وصح�ه أجمع�� � ، والصلاة والسلام ع� س�د الأن��اء والمرسل�� � لحمد � رب العالم��  

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund’s 
investment and operational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided.  

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount 
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the 
Shariah guidelines. In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah 
guidelines and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express 
our opinion based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an 
extent where compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified. 

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and 
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.  

Keeping in view the above; we certify that: 

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions 
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the 
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2024 comply with the 
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HBL Islamic Pension Fund 
managed by HBL Asset Management Limited are Permissible and in accordance with Shariah 
principles.  

May Allah (SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment 
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts. 

 والله أعلم �الصواب،  وص� الله ع� ن�ينا محمد وع� آله وصح�ه و�ارك وسلم 

For and on behalf of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited. 

 

 

 

Mufti Irshad Ahmad Aijaz     Faraz Younus Bandukda, CFA 
Member Shariah Council     Chief Executive 
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Statement of Assets and Liabili�es
As at June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director
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Note
ASSETS

Balances with banks 5 5,126               178,082         455,530           638,738       5,752           115,934       93,778             215,464       
Investments 6 163,874           184,587         183,258           531,719       75,967         142,486       191,097           409,550       
Dividend and profit receivable 7 109                  5,527             12,360             17,996         149              8,429           10,186             18,764         
Advances, deposits and other receivables 8 2,735               461                454                  3,650           5,292           350              454                  6,096           

TOTAL ASSETS 171,844           368,657         651,602           1,192,103    87,160         267,199       295,515           649,874       

LIABILITIES
Payable to HBL Asset Management Limited - Pension Fund Manager 9 149                  237                408                  794              110              308              351                  769              
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 10 21                    47                  82                    150              14                35                38                    87                
Payable to the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 44                    121                160                  325              34                67                61                    162              
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 12 5,434               1,835             1,618               8,887           1,442           2,802           3,295               7,539           

TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,648               2,240             2,268               10,156         1,600           3,212           3,745               8,557           

NET ASSETS 166,196           366,417         649,334           1,181,947    85,560         263,987       291,770           641,317       

166,196           366,417         649,334           1,181,947    85,560         263,987       291,770           641,317       

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 14 295,280 1,369,573 2,499,200        4,164,053    262,883       1,202,593    1,367,718        2,833,194    

NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 562.8396         267.5406       259.8251         325.4694     219.5149     213.3260         

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2023

Equity
Sub-Fund

Debt
Sub-Fund

 Total 
Equity

Sub-Fund

Money Market 
Fund

Money Market 
Fund

June 30, 2024

Debt
Sub-Fund

 Total 

PARTICIPANTS' SUB-FUNDS
  (as per statement a�ached)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

---------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Units ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Units --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director
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Note
INCOME

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments 25,163          3,354         4,141        32,658          (6,442)           1,523      831              (4,088)           
Dividend income 6,147            -             -            6,147             5,930            -          -               5,930             
Profit on bank deposits 115               19,914       25,898     45,927          172                13,890    15,026        29,088          
Markup / return on investments -                39,838       52,577     92,415          -                 14,446    11,247        25,693          
Unrealised apprecia�on / (diminu�on) on re-measurement of investments 

classified 'as financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss' - net 28,149          591            607           29,347          (1,947)           (41)          97                (1,891)           
TOTAL INCOME 59,574          63,697       83,223     206,494        (2,287)           29,818    27,201        54,732          
EXPENSES

Remunera�on of HBL Asset Management Limited 
   - Pension Fund Manager 9.1 558               1,945         2,329        4,832             1,281            1,100      940              3,321             
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of the - Management Company 9.2 73                  253            303           629                166                143         122              431                
Remunera�on of Central Depository Company 
   of Pakistan Limited  - Trustee 10 913               451            597           1,961             128                252         230              611                
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of the Trustee 119               59               78             256                17                  33           30                79                  
Annual fee to the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 11 44                  121            160           325                34                  67           61                162                
Alloca�on of fees and expenses related to registrar services, 
accoun�ng, opera�on and valua�on services

-                706            1,129        1,835             102                485         294              881                

Auditor's remunera�on 15 67                  158            205           430                72                  214         190              476                
Se�lement and bank charges 630               90               78             798                68                  44           46                158                
Fee and subscrip�on -                -              -            -                 421                421                
Charity expense 375               -             -            375                334                334                
Prin�ng and sta�onary -                -             -            -                 14                  11           10                35                  
Security transac�on cost 1,030            1              -            1,031             1,170            -          -               1,170             
Provision for debt security -                136            -            136                -                 -          -               -                 

TOTAL EXPENSES 3,809            3,920         4,879        12,608          3,807            2,349      1,923          8,079             
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxa�on 55,765          59,777       78,344     193,886        (6,094)           27,469    25,278        46,653          
Taxa�on 16 -                -             -            -                 -                 -          -               -                 
Net income / (loss) for the year 55,765          59,777       78,344     193,886        (6,094)           27,469    25,278        46,653          
Earnings / (loss) per unit 17

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

---------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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Net income / (loss) for the year 55,765   59,777     78,344        193,886 (6,094)     27,469    25,278          46,653       

Other comprehensive income for the year: -          -            -              -          -           -           -                 -             

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 55,765   59,777     78,344        193,886 (6,094)     27,469    25,278          46,653       

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

 Debt
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---------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Statement of Movement in Par�cipants' SUB Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director
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---------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Net assets at beginning of the year 85,560         263,987    291,770       641,317      133,102 110,886 99,355 343,343
Amount received on issuance of units 148,281      206,746    480,682       835,709      36,903 180,751 205,595 423,249
Amount paid on redemp�on of units (123,410)     (164,093)   (201,462)      (488,965)     (58,163) (58,898) (54,867) (171,928)
Realloca�on among Sub-Funds -               -             -                -               (20,188) 3,779 16,409 -               

24,871         42,653       279,220       346,744      (41,448) 125,632 167,137 251,321

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments 25,163         3,354         4,141           32,657         (6,442) 1,523 831 (4,088)
Unrealised gain / (loss) on revalua�on of investments 

classified as 'at fair value through profit or loss' 28,149         591            607               29,348         (1,947) (41) 97 (1,891)
Other net income/ (loss) for the year 2,453           55,832       73,596         131,880      2,295 25,987 24,350 52,632

55,765         59,777       78,344         193,885      (6,094) 27,469 25,278 46,653
Net assets at end of the year 166,196      366,417    649,334       1,181,946   85,560 263,987 291,770 641,317

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Not
e

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Cash Flow Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
 HBL Islamic Pension Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL 

Asset Management Limited as the Pension Fund Manager (the Pension Fund Manager) and Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a pension fund on October 05, 2011.  

 
 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by the SECP. The registered office of the 
Pension Fund Manager is situated at 7th floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Karachi, Pakistan.  
 

 The Fund is an unlisted pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. The units are 
non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by surrendering to the 
Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from any of the 
sub-funds.  

 
 The Fund has been formed to enable the par�cipants to contribute in a diversified por�olio of securi�es, which are 

Shariah compliant. Under the Trust Deed, all the conducts and acts of the Fund are based on Shariah. The Pension 
Fund Manager has appointed Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited as Shariah Advisor to the Fund to ensure that 
the ac�vi�es of the Fund are in compliance with the principles of Shariah.  

 
 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Equity Sub-Fund(the Equity Sub-Fund), 

HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Debt Sub-Fund(the Debt Sub-Fund) and HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Money Market 
Sub-Fund(the Money Market Sub-Fund), (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The investment policy for each of the 
sub-funds is as follows: 

 
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in Shariah compliant listed equity 

securi�es. Investment in a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up 
capital of the investee company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 30% 
of NAV or index weight, subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Remaining assets of the Equity Sub-Fund may be 
invested in any government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with Islamic 
Commercial banks or Islamic window of a commercial bank having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the 
remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in the offering document.

 
- The Debt Sub-Fund consist of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the sub-fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the assets in the 
sub-fund shall be invested in debt securi�es issued by the Federal Government. Up to twenty five percent (25%) 
may be deposited with banks having not less than 'AA+' ra�ng. In case the Shariah compliant securi�es issued 
by Federal Government are not available to comply with above, the assets of a Shariah compliant debt sub-fund 
may be deposited in Islamic commercial banks, having not less than “A+” ra�ng or Islamic windows of 
commercial banks, having not less than “AA” ra�ng, or may be invested in Islamic bonds or Sukuks issued by 
en��es wholly-owned by the Federal Government or in such Islamic securi�es which are fully guaranteed by the 
Federal Government.

- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of Shariah compliant short-term money market securi�es with weighted 
average �me to maturity not exceeding one year. There is no restric�on on the amount of investment in 
securi�es issued by Federal Government and Islamic windows of commercial banks having 'A+' ra�ng provided 
that deposits with one bank shall not exceed 20% of net assets of Money Market Sub-Fund. Investments in 
securi�es issued by Provincial Government, City Government, Government corpora�on with 'A' or higher ra�ng 
or a corporate en�ty with 'A+' or higher ra�ng shall be in propor�on as defined in offering document.
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Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income / (loss) for the year before taxa�on 55,765          59,777          78,344              193,886            (6,094)               27,469              25,278              46,653              
Adjustments for:

Profit on bank deposits (115)              (19,914)        (25,898)             (45,927)             (172)                   (13,890)             (15,026)             (29,088)             
Markup / return on investments -                 (39,838)        (52,577)             (92,415)             -                     (14,446)             (11,247)             (25,693)             
Dividend income (6,147)           -                -                     (6,147)               (5,930)               -                     -                     (5,930)               
Capital (gain) / loss on sale of investments (25,163)         (3,354)           (4,141)               (32,658)             6,442                 (1,523)               (831)                   4,088                 
Unrealised (apprecia�on) / diminu�on on re-measurement of investments  -                     
classified 'as 'at fair value through profit or loss' (28,149)         (591)              (607)                   (29,347)             1,947                 41                      (97)                     1,891                 

(3,809)           (3,920)           (4,879)               (12,608)             (3,807)               (2,349)               (1,923)               (8,079)               
(Increase) / decrease in assets

Investments (34,595)         (38,156)        12,587              (60,164)             43,530              (120,162)           (180,169)           (256,801)           
Advances, deposits and other receivables 2,557            (111)              -                     2,446                 (2,512)               (208)                   (340)                   (3,060)               

(32,038)         (38,267)        12,587              (57,718)             41,018              (120,370)           (180,509)           (259,861)           
Increase / (decrease) in liabili�es

Payable to HBL Asset Management Limited - Pension Fund Manager 39                  (71)                57                      24                      (258)                   236                    306                    284                    
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 7                    12                 44                      63                      (10)                     18                      23                      31                      
Payable to the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 10                  55                 99                      164                    (10)                     43                      42                      75                      
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 3,992            (967)              (1,676)               1,349                 62                      2,087                 2,773                 4,922                 

4,048            (972)              (1,477)               1,600                 (216)                   2,384                 3,144                 5,312                 
Cash (used in) / generated from opera�ons (31,799)         (43,159)        6,231                 (68,727)             36,995              (120,335)           (179,288)           (262,628)           

Profit received on bank deposits 163                19,713          21,783              41,659              5,928                 -                     -                     5,928                 
Dividend received 6,139            -                -                     6,139                 212                    11,305              12,067              23,584              
Markup received on investment -                 42,941          54,518              97,459              -                     10,619              5,835                 16,454              

6,302            62,654          76,301              145,257            6,140                 21,924              17,902              45,966              
Net cash flows generated from / (used in) opera�ng ac�vi�es (25,497)         19,495          82,532              76,530              43,135              (98,411)             (161,386)           (216,662)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 17,482              32,336                            
Amount received on issuance of units 148,281        206,746       480,682            835,709            36,903              180,751            205,595            423,249            
Amount paid on redemp�on of units (123,410)       (164,093)      (201,462)           (488,965)           (58,163)             (58,898)             (54,867)             (171,928)           
Re-alloca�on among funds -                 -                -                     -                     (20,188)             3,779                 16,409              -                     

Net cash generated from / (used in) financing ac�vi�es 24,871          42,653          279,220            346,744            (41,448)             125,632            167,137            251,321            
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (626)              62,148          361,752            423,274            1,687                 27,221              5,751                 34,659              
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 5,752            115,934       93,778              215,464            4,065                 88,713              88,027              180,805            
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 5,126            178,082       455,530            638,738            5,752                 115,934            93,778              215,464            

The annexed notes from 1 to 27 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
1.1 HBL Islamic Pension Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL 

Asset Management Limited as the Pension Fund Manager (the Pension Fund Manager) and Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a pension fund on October 05, 2011. The Fund is registered on September 08, 
2021. 

  
1.2 The Trust Act, 1882 has been repealed due to the promulga�on of Provincial Trust Act namely “Sindh Trusts Act, 

2020” (the Sindh Trust Act) as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to the Cons�tu�on of Pakistan. The 
Fund is required to be registered under the Sindh Trust Act. The above-men�oned Trust Deed had been registered 
under the Sindh Trust Act. 

  
1.3 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005 (The VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by the SECP. The registered office of 
the Pension Fund Manager is situated at 7th floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Karachi, 
Pakistan.  

  
1.4 The Fund is an unlisted open end pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. 

The units are non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by 
surrendering to the Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed 
from any of the sub-funds.  

  
1.5 The Fund has been formed to enable the par�cipants to contribute in a diversified por�olio of securi�es, which are 

Shariah compliant. Under the Trust Deed, all the conducts and acts of the Fund are based on Shariah. The Pension 
Fund Manager has appointed Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Private) Limited as Shariah Advisor to the Pension Fund to 
ensure that the ac�vi�es of the Fund are in compliance with the principles of Shariah.  

  
1.6 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Equity Sub-Fund, HBL Islamic Pension 

Fund - Debt Sub-Fund and HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Money Market Sub-Fund (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The 
investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows:  

  
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in Shariah compliant listed equity 

securi�es. Investment in a single company is restricted to lower of 15% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up 
capital of the investee company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 35% 
of NAV or index weight, subject to a maximum of 40% of NAV. Remaining assets of the Equity Sub-Fund may be 
invested in any government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with Islamic 
commercial banks or Islamic window of a commercial bank having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the 
remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in the offering document.

  
- The Debt Sub-Fund consists of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the sub-fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the net assets in the 
sub-fund shall be invested in debt securi�es issued by the Federal Government not exceeding 90 days' maturity. 
In case the Shariah compliant securi�es issued by Federal Government are not available to comply with above, 
the assets of a Shariah compliant debt sub-fund may be deposited in Islamic commercial banks, having not less 
than “A+” ra�ng or Islamic window of commercial banks, having not less than “AA” ra�ng, or may be invested in 
Islamic bonds or Sukuks issued by en��es wholly-owned by the Federal Government or in such Islamic 
securi�es which are fully guaranteed by the Federal Government. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the 
investments shall be as defined in the offering document.
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
 HBL Islamic Pension Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL 

Asset Management Limited as the Pension Fund Manager (the Pension Fund Manager) and Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a pension fund on October 05, 2011.  

 
 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension 

System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by the SECP. The registered office of the 
Pension Fund Manager is situated at 7th floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Karachi, Pakistan.  
 

 The Fund is an unlisted pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. The units are 
non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by surrendering to the 
Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from any of the 
sub-funds.  

 
 The Fund has been formed to enable the par�cipants to contribute in a diversified por�olio of securi�es, which are 

Shariah compliant. Under the Trust Deed, all the conducts and acts of the Fund are based on Shariah. The Pension 
Fund Manager has appointed Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited as Shariah Advisor to the Fund to ensure that 
the ac�vi�es of the Fund are in compliance with the principles of Shariah.  

 
 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Equity Sub-Fund(the Equity Sub-Fund), 

HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Debt Sub-Fund(the Debt Sub-Fund) and HBL Islamic Pension Fund - Money Market 
Sub-Fund(the Money Market Sub-Fund), (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The investment policy for each of the 
sub-funds is as follows: 

 
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in Shariah compliant listed equity 

securi�es. Investment in a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up 
capital of the investee company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 30% 
of NAV or index weight, subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Remaining assets of the Equity Sub-Fund may be 
invested in any government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with Islamic 
Commercial banks or Islamic window of a commercial bank having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the 
remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in the offering document.

 
- The Debt Sub-Fund consist of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the sub-fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the assets in the 
sub-fund shall be invested in debt securi�es issued by the Federal Government. Up to twenty five percent (25%) 
may be deposited with banks having not less than 'AA+' ra�ng. In case the Shariah compliant securi�es issued 
by Federal Government are not available to comply with above, the assets of a Shariah compliant debt sub-fund 
may be deposited in Islamic commercial banks, having not less than “A+” ra�ng or Islamic windows of 
commercial banks, having not less than “AA” ra�ng, or may be invested in Islamic bonds or Sukuks issued by 
en��es wholly-owned by the Federal Government or in such Islamic securi�es which are fully guaranteed by the 
Federal Government.

- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of Shariah compliant short-term money market securi�es with weighted 
average �me to maturity not exceeding one year. There is no restric�on on the amount of investment in 
securi�es issued by Federal Government and Islamic windows of commercial banks having 'A+' ra�ng provided 
that deposits with one bank shall not exceed 20% of net assets of Money Market Sub-Fund. Investments in 
securi�es issued by Provincial Government, City Government, Government corpora�on with 'A' or higher ra�ng 
or a corporate en�ty with 'A+' or higher ra�ng shall be in propor�on as defined in offering document.

  

- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of Shariah compliant short-term money market securi�es with weighted 
average �me to maturity not exceeding one year. Time to maturity of any assets in the por�olio shall not exceed 
six months except in the case of Shariah Compliant Government Securi�es which may be upto 5 years. There is 
no restric�on on the amount of investment in securi�es issued by Federal Government and Islamic windows of 
commercial banks having 'AA' ra�ng provided that deposits with one bank shall not exceed 15% of net assets of 
Money Market Sub-Fund. Composi�on of the remaining shall be in propor�on as defined in offering document.

  
1.7 The Fund offers five types of alloca�on schemes, as prescribed by the SECP under VPS Rules, to the contributors of 

the Fund namely High Vola�lity, Medium Vola�lity, Low Vola�lity, Lower Vola�lity and Life Cycle Alloca�on. The 
par�cipants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribu�on amount, subject to the minimum limit fixed by the 
Pension Fund Manager. The alloca�on to the Sub-Funds has to be done at the date of opening of contributor's 
pension account and on an anniversary date therea�er. The contribu�on amount may be paid by the contributor 
on a periodic basis such as annual, semi annual, quarterly or monthly basis. 

  
1.8 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1 (Stable Outlook)' as at December 29, 

2023 to the Pension Fund Manager while the fund is not currently rated. 
  
1.9 Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of CDC as the trustee of the Fund. 
  
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
  
2.1 Statement of compliance 
  
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 
  

- Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 
Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017;

  
- Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, along with part VIIIA of the repealed 

Companies Ordinance, 1984;
  
- NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and No�fied En��es Regula�ons, 2008 (the 'NBFC 

Regula�ons') and requirements of the Trust Deed; and
  
-  The requirements of the Cons�tu�ve Documents, Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules), The 

Non-Banking Finance Companies and No�fied En��es Regula�ons, 2008 (NBFC Regula�ons) and the direc�ves 
issued by the SECP;

  
 Where the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed 

Companies Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of VPS Rules, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and the 
requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,the VPS Rules the NBFC Rules, the 
NBFC Regula�ons and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed. 

  
2.2 Basis of measurement 
  
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost conven�on, except investments that are 

stated at fair values.  
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HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

2.3 Func�onal and presenta�on currency 
  
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Fund's func�onal and presenta�on 

currency. 
  
2.4 Cri�cal accoun�ng es�mates and judgments 
  
 The prepara�on of financial statements in conformity with approved accoun�ng standards, as applicable in 

Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, es�mates and assump�ons that affect the applica�on of 
policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. 

  
 The es�mates and associated assump�ons are based on historical experience and various other factors that are 

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments 
about the carrying values of assets and liabili�es that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results 
may differ from these es�mates. 

  
 The es�mates and underlying assump�ons are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are 

recognised in the year in which the es�mate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the 
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. 

  
 Judgments made by management in the applica�on of approved accoun�ng standards, as applicable in Pakistan, 

that have significant effect on the financial statements and es�mates with a significant risk of material judgment in 
the next year are as follows: 

  
  Classifica�on and measurement of financial assets and financial liabili�es  
 For details please refer notes 4.2.1.1 and 6 to these financial statements. 
  
 Impairment of financial assets 
 For details please refer notes 4.2.2 to these financial statements. 
  
3 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED 

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS 
  
3.1 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and IFRS interpreta�ons that are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 

2024 
 The following stantdards, amendments and interpreta�ons are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024. These 

standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either not relevant to the Company's opera�ons or did not have 
significant impact on the financial statements other than certain addi�onal disclosures. 

 "Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' and IFRS Prac�ce 
 Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of Accoun�ng Policies"
 
 Amendments to IAS 8 'Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and 

Errors' - Defini�on of Accoun�ng Es�mates
 
 Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and 

Liabili�es arising from a single transac�on
 
 Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary excep�on to the requirements 

regarding deferred tax assets and liabili�es related to pillar two income taxes
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"Effec�ve date  (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

 
                 January 01, 2023 
 

January 01, 2023
 

January 01, 2023
 

January 01, 2023
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 The Management Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard 
(lAS) 1, Presenta�on of Financial Statements which have been effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on 
or a�er 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accoun�ng policy themselves, 
they impacted the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accoun�ng policies. The amendments 

also provide guidance on the applica�on of materiality to disclosure of accoun�ng policies, assis�ng the Company 
to provide useful en�ty-specific accoun�ng policy informa�on that users need to understand other informa�on in 
the financial statements.

 
 Management reviewed the accoun�ng policies and updates to the informa�on disclosed in Note 4 Material 

accoun�ng policies in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accoun�ng policies 
are material for disclosure. 

 
3.3 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve
 
 The following standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, beginning on 

or a�er the date men�oned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either 
not relevant to the Company's opera�ons or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial 
statements other than certain addi�onal  disclosures.
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 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Supplier finance 
arrangements

 
 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Amendments 

regarding the classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments
 
 Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding the 

classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments
 
 Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee 

subsequently measures sale and leaseback transac�ons
 
 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Classifica�on of 

liabili�es as current or non-current
 
 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Non-current 

liabili�es with covenants

"Effec�ve date  (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

 
   January 01, 2024  

  
 January 01, 2026  

  
 January 01, 2026  

  
 January 01, 2024  

  
 January 01, 2024  

  
 January 01, 2024  

 Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements
 
 Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack 

of Exchangeability
 
 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

"Effec�ve date  (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

 
   January 01, 2024  

  
 January 01, 2025  

  
 January 01, 2026  
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 The Management Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard 
(lAS) 1, Presenta�on of Financial Statements which have been effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on 
or a�er 1 January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accoun�ng policy themselves, 
they impacted the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accoun�ng policies. The amendments 

also provide guidance on the applica�on of materiality to disclosure of accoun�ng policies, assis�ng the Company 
to provide useful en�ty-specific accoun�ng policy informa�on that users need to understand other informa�on in 
the financial statements.

 
 Management reviewed the accoun�ng policies and updates to the informa�on disclosed in Note 4 Material 

accoun�ng policies in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accoun�ng policies 
are material for disclosure. 

 
3.2 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve
 
 The following standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, beginning on 

or a�er the date men�oned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either 
not relevant to the Company's opera�ons or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial 
statements other than certain addi�onal  disclosures.

 IFRS 1 'First-�me Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from 
July 01, 2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP). 

  
 IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been no�fied by the IASB to be effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 

January 1, 2023. However SECP has no�fied the �meframe for the adop�on of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by 
January 01, 2026. 

  
 IFRS 18 'Presenta�on and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 

2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP. 
  
 IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 

2027. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP. 
  
4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
  
 The principal accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on of these financial statements are set out below. 

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents 
  
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original 

maturi�es of three months or less. 
  
4.2 Financial instruments 
  
4.2.1 Financial assets 
  
 Financials assets are classified into appropriate categories at amor�zed cost, at fair value through other 

comprehensive income and at fair value through profit or loss.The management determines the classifica�on of 
financial assets into categories based on fund’s business model for managing the financial and the contractual 
terms of the cash flows. 
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4.2.1.1 Classifica�on 
  
4.2.1.1.1 Equity Instruments 
  
 On ini�al recogni�on of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present 

subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This elec�on is made on an investment-by-investment basis. An equity 
instrument held for trading purposes or in which FVOCI elec�on is not taken is  classified as measured at FVTPL. 
Given the objec�ves of the Fund, all investments have been classified as FVTPL. 

  
4.2.1.1.2 Debt Instruments 
  
 Amor�zed cost 
  
 A financial asset is measured at amor�sed cost if it meets both of the following condi�ons and is not designated as 

at FVTPL: 
  

- it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
  
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding.
  
 All financial assets not classified as measured at amor�sed cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On 

ini�al recogni�on, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to 
be measured at amor�sed cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accoun�ng mismatch 
that would otherwise arise. 

  
 Fair value through profit or loss 
  
 A financial asset is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transac�on costs that are directly 

a�ributable to its acquisi�on. 
  
 Subsequent, the financial assets are measured at: 
  
 Debt investments at amor�sed cost 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest method. The amor�sed cost 

is reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income and impairment are recognised in income statement. 

 Debt investments at FVOCI 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the effec�ve 

interest method and impairment are recognised in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in 
other comprehensive income. On derecogni�on, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are 
reclassified to income statement. 

  
 Debt investments at FVTPL 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the effec�ve 

interest method and impairment are recognised in income statement. 
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 Equity instruments at FVOCI 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at their fair values. Gain/loss on remeasument are recognised in other 

comprehensive income and are never recycled to income statement. Dividends are recognised in income 
statement when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Fund benefits from such proceeds 
as a recovery of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments 
at FVOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment. 

  
 Equity investments at FVTPL 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in income statement 

unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 
  
4.2.1.2 Regular way purchase and sale of financial asset 
  
 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Fund 

commits to purchase or sell the asset. 
  
4.2.1.3 Derecogni�on 
  
 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or 

have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership. 
  
4.2.2 Impairment of financial assets 
  
 In rela�on to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an en�ty to account for expected credit losses and 

changes in those expected credit losses at each repor�ng date to reflect changes in credit risk since ini�al 
recogni�on. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are 
recognized. 

  
 The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pa�ern of deteriora�on or 

improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or 
provision depends on the extent of credit deteriora�on since ini�al recogni�on. Under the general approach, there 
are two measurement bases: 

  
- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from ini�al recogni�on) as long as there is no significant 

deteriora�on in credit quality.
  
- Life�me ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an 

individual or collec�ve basis.
  
 The Fund's financial assets include mainly bank balances,  investments and other receivables. 
  
4.2.3 Financial liabili�es 
  
 All financial liabili�es are recognised at the �me when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. These are ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amor�sed cost. 
  
 A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
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4.2.4 Offse�ng of financial assets and liabili�es 
  
 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and 

liabili�es when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to 
se�le on a net basis or realise the assets and se�le the liabili�es simultaneously. 

  
4.3 Provisions 
  
 Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events, it 

is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and 
a reliable es�mate of the amount of obliga�on can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to 
reflect the current best es�mate. 

  
4.4 Taxa�on 
  
 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of part I of second schedule to the 

income Tax Ordinance,2001. The Fund is also exempt from the  provisions of sec�on 113 (minimum tax)  under 
clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  

  
4.5 Proposed distribu�ons 
  
 Distribu�ons declared subsequent to the year end repor�ng date are considered as non-adjus�ng events and are 

recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such distribu�ons are declared. 
  
4.6 Issuance and redemp�on of units 
  
 Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applica�ons 

received by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per 
unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transac�on costs and any 
provision for du�es and charges, inapplicable. 

  
 Units redeemed are recorded at the redemp�on price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive 

redemp�on applica�ons during business hours of that day. The redemp�on price represents the net assets value 
per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any du�es, taxes, charges on 
redemp�on and any provision for transac�on costs, if applicable. Redemp�on of units is recorded on acceptance 
of applica�on for redemp�on. 

  
4.7 Net asset value per unit 
  
 The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabili�es, is calculated by dividing 

the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end. 
  
4.8 Revenue recogni�on  
  

- Realised capital  gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date 
at which the transac�on takes place.

  
- Mark-up / profit / return on Government securi�es, bank profits and investment in debt securi�es are 

recognized using the effec�ve interest method.
  
- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
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- Dividend income from equity securi�es is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. 
  
4.9 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons 
  
 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal commercial rates on the 

same terms and condi�ons as applicable to third party transac�ons. 
  
 Remunera�on to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provision of 

NBFC Rules, NBFC Regula�ons and the Trust Deed respec�vely. 

5.1 This includes balances of Rs.3.263 million, Rs.177.057 million & Rs.454.464 million (June 30, 2023: Rs.4.60 million, 
Rs.28.524 million & Rs.24.333 million) of equity sub-fund, debt sub-fund and money market sub-fund respec�vely 
placed with Habib Bank Limited (a related party), during the year these accounts carried profit at the rates ranging 
between 6.50% to 21.35% (June 30, 2023: 5.50% to 6.50%) respec�vely. During the year other savings accounts of 
the Fund carried profit at the rates ranging between 19.10% to 21.35% (June 30, 2023: 5.50% to 19.50%) per 
annum.

6.1 Fair value through profit or loss Listed equity securi�es - Equity Sub-Fund  
   
6.1.1 Held by Equity Sub-Fund 

5. BALANCES WITH BANKS

Equity  Debt Money Market Equity  Debt Money Market  Total 
Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund 

Note

Saving accounts 5.1 5,126              178,082       455,530            638,739          5,752            115,934       93,778              215,464                       

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Total 

6. INVESTMENTS

Equity  Debt Money Market Equity  Debt Money Market

Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund 
Note

At fair value through profit or loss'

Listed equity securi�es 6.1 163,874 -               -                     163,874 75,967         -                -                     75,967
Government securi�es - Ijarah sukuks 6.2 -                   183,590 123,258 306,848 -                100,067       145,097            245,164
Corpprate Sukuk Bonds 6.3 -                   997 60,000 60,997 -                42,419         46,000              88,419

Total 163,874 184,587 183,258 531,719 75,967 142,486 191,097 409,550

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Total  Total 

Quoted investments

Automobile and parts
Al Ghazi Tractors Limited -                        4,370                    -                        4,370                    1,568                    1,525                          (43)                             0.01                      0.01                      0.05                            

Banking
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 179,511               271,500               (363,310)              87,701                  2,078                    1,952                          (125)                          0.01                      0.01                      0.08                            
Faysal Bank Limited -                        171,000               (171,000)              -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Meezan Bank Limited 59,040                  87,600                  (140,940)              5,700                    958                       1,365                          407                            0.01                      0.01                      0.00                            

Cement
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited 79,905                  284,700               (237,105)              127,500               10,146                  11,509                        1,363                        0.07                      0.07                      0.29                            
Cherat Cement Company Limited 23,500                  40,627                  (64,127)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Fauji Cement Company Limited 275,000               577,500               (382,500)              470,000               9,659                    10,768                        1,109                        0.06                      0.06                      0.19                            
Kohat Cement Pakistan Limited -                        21,000                  (21,000)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Lucky Cement Limited 13,750                  25,920                  (39,670)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 175,000               509,300               (466,510)              217,790               7,691                    8,276                          585                            0.05                      0.05                      0.21                            
Pioneer Cement Limited -                        66,500                  (26,500)                40,000                  4,817                    6,746                          1,929                        0.04                      0.04                      0.18                            
Flying Cement Limited -                        181,000               -                        181,000               1,667                    1,506                          (161)                          0.01                      0.01                      0.26                            

---------------------------------- Number of shares ----------------------------------  ---------------(Rupees in '000) ---------------  --------------------Percentage ----------------------- 

 Total carrying
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6.1.2  The above investments include shares with market value aggrega�ng to Rs. 28.058 million which have been 
pledged with the Na�onal Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as collateral for guaranteeing setlement 
of thefund's trades in accordance with Circular No. 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the SECP. The details of 
pledged shares are as follows:          
   

 - Oil & Gas Development Company Limited (74,300 shares having market value of Rs. 10.058 million)  
- Pakistan Petroleum Limited (77,100 shares having market value of Rs. 9.029 million)    
- Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (67,700 shares having market value of Rs. 4.297 million)   
- Mughal Iron and Steel Industries Limited (3,000 shares having market value of Rs. 0.279 million)  
- Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (11,000 shares having market value of Rs. 1.828 million)   
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Quoted investments

I�ehad Chemicals Limited -                        22,500                  (1,000)                   21,500                  1,061                    1,014                          (47)                             0.01                      0.01                      0.22                            
Conglomerates

Engro Corpora�on Limited 12,600                  63,040                  (75,640)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Glass and Ceremics

Tariq Glass Limited -                        197,883               (170,765)              27,118                  2,997                    3,161                          164                            0.02                      0.02                      0.16                            
Engineering

Interna�onal Steels Limited -                        81,739                  (63,739)                18,000                  1,291                    1,522                          231                            0.01                      0.01                      0.04                            
Agha Steel Industries Limited -                        36,000                  -                        36,000                  362                       361                             (1)                               0.00                      0.00                      0.06                            
Aisha Steel Limited -                        48,000                  -                        48,000                  332                       353                             21                              0.00                      0.00                      0.05                            
Mughal Iron and Steel Industries Limited -                        97,500                  (70,400)                27,100                  2,190                    2,520                          331                            0.02                      0.02                      0.08                            

Fer�lizer
Engro Fer�lizers Limited 69,804                  140,855               (201,954)              8,705                    1,007                    1,447                          440                            0.01                      0.01                      0.01                            
Fa�ma Fer�lizer Bin Qasim Limited -                        79,000                  (15,500)                63,500                  2,052                    2,252                          200                            0.01                      0.01                      0.05                            
 Fauji Fer�lizer Company Limited. -                        22,200                  (22,200)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              

Food and Personal Care
Unity Foods Limited -                        120,500               (120,500)              -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              

Oil and gas explora�on companies
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 3,180                    4,897                    (7,344)                   733                       1,752                    1,988                          236                            0.01                      0.01                      0.01                            
Oil and Gas Development Company Limited 80,800                  156,600               (131,400)              106,000               10,657                  14,349                        3,692                        0.09                      0.09                      0.02                            
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 105,612               219,588               182,800               508,000               11,937                  16,676                        4,740                        0.10                      0.10                      0.19                            

Oil and gas marke�ng companies -                        
A�ock Petroleum Limited -                        5,000                    (5,000)                   -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                              
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 237                       125,900               (63,300)                62,837                  9,707                    10,444                        737                            0.06                      0.06                      0.13                            
Shell Pakistan Limited -                        53,450                  (53,450)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 60,982                  390,359               (277,641)              173,700               9,188                    11,025                        1,836                        0.07                      0.07                      0.27                            

Packaging
Pakistan Aluminium Beverage Can Limited -                        29,700                  (29,700)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Century Paper and Board Limited -                        139,500               (93,500)                46,000                  1,488                    1,378                          (111)                          0.01                      0.01                      0.11                            

Pharmaceu�cals
AGP Limited -                        24,150                  (16,125)                8,025                    549                       741                             192                            0.00                      0.00                      0.03                            
Ci� Pharma Limited -                        82,000                  (82,000)                -                        -                        -                              -                             -                        -                        -                              
Ferozsons Lab -                        11,500                  -                        11,500                  2,367                    2,868                          501                            0.02                      0.02                      0.26                            
Highnoon Laboratories Limited 6,095                    7,000                    (10,700)                2,395                    879                       1,709                          830                            0.01                      0.01                      0.05                            
Abbot Laboatories Pakistan Limited -                        2,800                    -                        2,800                    1,221                    2,052                          831                            0.01                      0.01                      0.03                            
The Searle Company Limited 457                       58,600                  (7,499)                   51,558                  2,274                    2,945                          671                            0.02                      0.02                      0.10                            

Power genera�on and distribu�on
Hub Power Company Limited 95,000                  161,600               (134,800)              51,558                  13,620                  19,863                        6,243                        0.12                      0.12                      0.04                            
K Electric Limited -                        790,000               (187,500)              602,500               2,978                    2,790                          (188)                          0.02                      0.02                      0.02                            

Technology & Communica�on
TPL Trakker Limited 296,500               -                        -                        296,500               2,621                    1,838                          (783)                          0.01                      0.01                      1.58                            
Systems Limited 10,150                  14,748                  (18,350)                6,548                    2,807                    2,739                          (68)                             0.02                      0.02                      0.02                            

Refinery
A�ock Refinery Limited 6,781                    25,100                  (25,441)                6,440                    2,249                    2,264                          16                              0.01                      0.01                      0.06                            
Na�onal Refinery Limited -                                            6,575 (1,780)                   4,795                    1,210                    1,273                          63                              0.01                      0.01                      0.06                            

Automobile Assembler
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited -                        24,700                  (10,200)                14,500                  4,032                    4,110                          78                              0.02                      0.02                      0.10                            
Sazgar Engineering  Works Limited -                        29,900                  (28,920)                980                       187                       816                             629                            0.00                      0.00                      0.02                            

Automobile Parts & Accessories
 Baluchistan Wheels Limited -                        24,500                  (2,000)                   22,500                  3,282                    2,925                          (357)                          0.02                      0.02                      1.69                            
 Atlas Ba�ery Limited -                        2,000                    -                        2,000                    581                       592                             11                              0.00                      0.00                      0.06                            
 Exide Pakistan Limited -                        2,900                    -                        2,900                    1,237                    1,709                          472                            0.01                      0.01                      0.37                            

Miscellaneous
TPL Proper�es Limited -                        66,500                  (9,000)                   57,500                  636                       503                             (133)                          0.00                      0.00                      0.10                            

1,553,904            5,609,801            (3,667,210)           3,426,253            137,334               163,874                     26,540                      
Total as at June 30, 2024 1,553,904            5,609,801            (3,667,210)           3,426,253            137,334               163,874                     26,540                      
Total as at June 30, 2023 1,971,385             5,842,971             6,294,256            1,553,904            77,914                  75,967                        1,947                        

---------------------------------- Number of shares ----------------------------------  ---------------(Rupees in '000) ---------------  --------------------Percentage ----------------------- 
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6.1.3 These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's en�tlement declared by the investee companies. 
Finance Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received 
by the shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares 
determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by 
the investee company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income.  However, the 
Management Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Associa�on 
of Pakistan (MUFAP), has filed a pe��on in Honorable Sindh High Court (the court) to declare the amendments 
brought in Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collec�ve investment schemes as 
null and void and not applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemp�on given to mutual funds under 
clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Court has granted stay order �ll 
the final outcome of the case. However, the investee company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus 
announcement of the Fund having aggregate fair market value of Rs.0.065  million at June 30, 2024 (2023: Rs. 0.04 
million) and not yet deposited on CDC account of department of Federal Board Revenue. The final outcome of the 
case is pending however, the Management Company is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and 
accordingly has recorded the bonus shares on gross basis at fair value in its investments at year end.

6.2 Government Securi�es - Ijarah Sukuk
 
6.2.1 Held by Debt Sub-Fund

6.2.2 Held by Money Market Sub-Fund

Issue Date Tenor
As at July 
1, 2023

Purchases 
during the 

period

Sales / 
matured 

during the 
period

As at June 30, 
2024

Total 
investments 
of sub-fund

Net assets of sub-
fund

1 Year -            154,000          154,000                               -   -                              -                           -                 -                          
1 Year 100,000    -                  100,000                               -   -                              -                           -                 -                          
1 Year -            11,200            11,200                                 -   -                              -                           -                 -                          
1 Year -            41,500            41,500                                 -   -                              -                           -                 -                          
1 Year -            175,000          175,000                               -   -                              -                           -                 -                          

December 4, 2023 3 Years -            105,000          -                            105,000                       105,000                    105,116 56.95% 28.69%
1 Year -            15,715            1,050                           14,665                         13,219                      13,260 7.18% 3.62%

April 26, 2024 1 Year -            75,000            -                               75,000                         64,790                      65,214 35.33% 17.80%

Total as at June 30, 2024     100,000           577,415            482,750          194,665                       183,009                    183,590 99% 50%

Total as at June 30, 2023                -             380,000            280,000          100,000                       100,000                    100,067 

January 24, 2024

Face value

 Carrying value as at 
June 30, 2024 

 Market value as at 
June 30, 2024 

Market value as a percentage of

------------------ (Rs in 000) ------------------- ------ Rupees in ('000) ----- --------- (%) ---------

April 17, 2023
May 22, 2023
June 26, 2023
August 7, 2023
October 9, 2023

Issue Date Tenor
As at July 
1, 2023

Purchases 
during the 

period

Sales / 
matured 

during the 
period

As at June 30, 
2024

Total 
investments 
of sub-fund

Net assets of sub-
fund

1 Year -                      247,000            247,000                      -                                    -                                 -   -                 -                          
1 Year 145,000                50,000            195,000                      -                                    -                                 -   -                 -                          
1 Year -                        11,200              11,200                      -                                    -                                 -   -                 -                          
1 Year -                        90,000              90,000                      -                                    -                                 -   -                 -                          
1 Year -                      225,000            225,000                      -                                    -                                 -   -                 -                          
3 Years -                        25,000                       -               25,000                         25,000                      25,028 13.66% 3.85%
1 Year -                        18,495                       -               18,495                         16,663                      16,713 9.12% 2.57%

April 26, 2024 1 Year -                        93,750                       -               93,750                         80,988                      81,517 44.48% 12.55%

Total as at June 30, 2024     145,000           760,445            768,200          137,245                       122,651                    123,258 67.26% 18.98%

Total as at June 30, 2023                -             351,000            206,000          145,000                       145,000                    145,097 

Face value  Carrying value as at 
June 30, 2024 

Market value as at 
June 30, 2024

Market value as a percentage of

------ Rupees in ('000) ----- --------- (%) ---------

January 24, 2024

April 17, 2023
May 22, 2023
June 26, 2023
August 7, 2023
October 9, 2023
December 4, 2023
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6.3 Sukuk Bonds
 
6.3.1 Held by Debt Sub-Fund

6.3.2 Held by Money Market sub fund
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Investee Company Issue Date
As at July 
1, 2023

Purchases 
during the 

period

Sales / 
matured 

during the 
period

As at June 
30, 2024

Total 
investment

s of sub-
fund

Net assets 
of sub-

fund

TECHNOLOGY & COMMUNICATION
TPL Tracker Limited 30-Mar-21 1              -           -                          1           443           453 0.25% 0.12%

               1               -                 -                  1           443           453 0.25% 0.12%
POWER GENERATION & DISTRIBUTION
Hub Power Company Limited - 190320 19-Mar-20 50            -           50            -                         -                 -                   -                -   
K-Electric Limited 090223 9-Feb-23 9              -           9              -                         -                 -                   -                -   
China Power Hub Genera�on Company - 280323 28-Mar-23 15            -           15            -                         -                 -                   -                -   
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 130623 13-Jun-23 13            -           13            -                         -                 -                   -                -   
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 160823 16-Aug-23 -           6              6              -                         -                 -                   -                -   

             87                6              93               -                 -                 -                    -                 -   
MISCELLANEOUS
Agha Steel Industries Limited
(Disclosure for provision) 9-Aug-23               -                  1               -                  1           544           544 0.29% 0.04%
Agha Steel Industries Limited 9-Oct-18                1               -                  1               -                 -                 -                    -                 -   
OBS AGP Private Limited 15-Jul-21              20               -                20               -                 -                 -                    -                 -   

             21                1              21                1           544           544 0.29% 0.04%

Total as at June 30, 2024           109                7           114                2           987           997 0.54% 0.16%

Total as at June 30, 2023           120              78              89           109      42,527      42,419 

Face value  Carrying 
value as 
at June 

30, 2024 

Market 
value as 
at June 

30, 2024

Market value as a 
percentage of

------------------ (Number of cer�ficates) ------------------- ------ Rupees in ('000) ----- --------- (%) ---------

Investee Company Issue Date
As at 

July 1, 
2023

Purchases 
during the 

period

Sales / 
matured 

during the 
period

As at 
June 30, 

2024

Total 
investme
nts of sub-

fund

Net 
assets of 
sub-fund

K-Electric Limited - 090223 9-Feb-23         15                -                   15              -                           -                         -                 -                -   
China Power Hub Genera�on Company - 280323 28-Mar-23         10                -                   10              -                           -                         -                 -                -   
K-Electric Limited - 180523 18-May-23           9                -                     9              -                           -                         -                 -                -   
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 130623 13-Jun-23         12                -                   12              -                           -                         -                 -                -   
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 160823 16-Aug-23          -                   5                   5              -                           -                         -                 -                -   
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 260324 26-Mar-24          -                 60                  -               60                60,000              60,000 32.74% 9.24%

Total as at June 30, 2024         46               65                 51             60                60,000              60,000 32.74% 9.24%
Total as at June 30, 2023         10               69                 33             46                46,000              46,000 

Face value  Carrying value 
as at June 30, 

2024 

Market value 
as at June 30, 

2024

Market value as a 
percentage of

------------------ (Number of cer�ficates) ------------------- ------ Rupees in ('000) ----- --------- (%) ---------

7. DIVIDEND AND PROFIT RECEIVABLE

Note

Dividend receivable              10               -                 -                10                2               -                 -                  2 
Profit receivable on bank deposit              98         4,240         8,592       12,931            147         4,039         4,478         8,664 
Profit receivable on Sukuk bonds               -                 -           3,742         3,742               -           2,034         2,225         4,259 
Profit receivable on Government securi�es               -           1,287              25         1,312               -           2,356         3,483         5,839 

           109         5,527       12,360       17,996            149         8,429       10,186       18,764 

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Equity 
Sub-Fund

Debt 
Sub-Fund

Money 
Market 

Sub-Fund
Total

Equity 
Sub-Fund

Debt 
Sub-Fund

Money 
Market 

Sub-Fund
TotalPar�culars

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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8.1 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of part I of Second Schedule to the 
income Tax Ordinance,2001.Further, the Fund is exempt  from withholding of tax under sec�on 150, 150A, 151 and 
233 of ITO 2001.           
           

 The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol.II- 66417-R” dated May 12, 
2015, made it mandatory to obtain exemp�on cer�ficates under sec�on 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from 
Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under 
sec�on 151 of ITO 2001. The Management Company is confident that the same shall be refunded a�er filing refund 
applica�on. 

9.1 As per the Regula�on 61 of the NBFC Regula�ons, Asset Management Company may charge variable fee or fixed 
fee or the combina�on of both which shall not exceed the limit disclosed in the Offering Document. The maximum 
limit disclosed in the Offering Document is 1.5% per annum of average annual net assets. During the year, the fee 
has been charged at the rate ranging between of 0.55% to 1.5% of the average annual net assets. The fee is payable 
monthly in arrears.           
     

9.2 The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2023: 13%) on the remunera�on 
of the Pension Fund Manager through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

10.1 The Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited is en�tled to remunera�on at the following rates on net assets 
of the Fund:            
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8. ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLE

Security deposit with Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC)            100            100            100            300            100            100            100            300 
Security deposit with Na�onal Clearing 
Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) 2500               -                 -           2,500         2,500               -                 -           2,500 
Receivable against sale of investment -           111                     111 2,557       -           -                   2,557 
Advance tax 8.1            109            236            343            688            109            236            343            688 
Others              26              13              11              51              26              14              11              51 

        2,735            461            454         3,650         5,292            350            454         6,096 

June 30, 2023

Par�culars
Equity 

Sub-Fund
Debt 

Sub-Fund

Money 
Market 

Sub-Fund
Total

Equity 
Sub-Fund

Debt 
Sub-Fund

Money 
Market 

Sub-Fund
Total

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2023

9. PAYABLE TO THE HBL FUND MANAGERS LIMITED - PENSION FUND MANAGER

Money Money 
Equity Debt Market Equity Debt Market

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total
Note

Remunera�on payable to 
Pension Fund Manager 9.1 132               210             361             702             97                273             311             680             
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on 
   to the Pension Fund Manager 9.2 17                 27                47                91                13                35                40                89                

149               237             408             793             110             308             351             769             

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

10. PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE

Money Money 
Equity Debt Market Equity Debt Market

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total
Note

Remunera�on payable 10.1 19                 42                72                133             12                31                34                77                

Sales tax on remunera�on payable 10.2 2                    5                  9                  16                2                  4                  4                  10                

21                 47                82                150             14                35                38                87                

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

------------------------------------------------------------------------------'Rupees in '000 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------



HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

12.1 FEDERAL EXCISE DUTY           
     

 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remunera�on 
of the Pension Fund Manager has been applied effec�ve from June 13, 2013. The Pension Fund Manager is of the 
view that since the remunera�on is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double 
taxa�on, which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a pe��on was collec�vely filed by the MUFAP 
along-with CDC with the Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 04, 2013. While disposing the above pe��on 
through order dated June 30, 2016, the SHC declared the said provisions to be ultra vires and as a result no FED is 
payable with effect from July 01, 2011. However, the tax authori�es subsequently filed appeal against the decision 
of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, which is pending for the decision.    
             
The Finance Act, 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no 
provision is charged during the year ending June 30, 2024. 

 However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Pension Fund Manager has made a 
provision of FED on remunera�on of the Pension Fund Manager, aggrega�ng to Rs. 0.88 million, Rs. 0.488 million 
and Rs. 0.383 million (2023: Rs. 0.88 million, Rs. 0.488 million and Rs. 0.383 million ), for Equity Sub-Fund, Debt 
Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund respec�vely. Had the provision not been made, the net asset value per unit 
of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 would have been higher by Rs 2.98 per unit, Rs. 0.36 per unit and Rs. 0.15 per unit 
(2023: Rs. 3.35 per unit, Rs. 0.41 per unit and Rs. 0.28 per unit) for equity sub-fund, debt sub-fund and money 
market sub-fund respec�vely. 

11.1 This represents annual SECP fee. SECP vide S.R.O. 1620 (I) / 2019, dated December 24, 2019 revised its annual fee 
to 0.04% (2023: 0.04%) per annum of average daily net assets of the Fund.     
 

12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES
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Money Money 
Equity Debt Market Equity Debt Market

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total

Note

11.1         44                 121             160             325             34                67                61                162             

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Money Money 
Equity Debt Market Equity Debt Market

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Total
Note

Auditor's remunera�on 75                 116             126             318             70                134             123             327             
Federal excise duty 12.1 880               488             383             1,751          880             488             383             1,751          
Payable against redemp�on of units 159               1,034          999             2,192          91                2,024          2,708          4,823          
Payable against purchase of investment 1,380            -              -              1,380          -              -              -              -              
Other payable 439               197             110             746             401             156             81                638             
Payable to Pension Fund Manager 2,500            -              2,500          -              -              -              -              

5,434            1,835 1,618 8,887 1,442          2,802 3,295 7,539          

------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

 Net Assets      Tariff per annum     
       

 Up to Rs.1,000 million     0.15%per annum     
Above Rs.1,001 million and up to Rs.3,000 million  Rs.1.5 million plus 0.10% per annum of net assets, on  
       amount exceeding Rs.1,000 million   
Above Rs.3,001 million and up to Rs.6,000 million  Rs.3.5 million plus 0.08% per annum of net assets, on  
       amount exceeding Rs.3,000 million   
Above Rs.6,000 million     Rs.5.9 million plus 0.06% per annum of net assets, on  
       amount exceeding Rs.6,000 ,million  
   

10.2 The Provincial Government of Sindh has levied Sales tax at the rate of 13% (2023: 13%) on the remunera�on of the 
Trustee is applied under the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.    
  

11. PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN 
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13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS         
  

 There were no con�ngencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2024 (2023: Nil). 

16. TAXATION            
            

 The income of the fund is exempt from tax under clause 57 (3) (viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001. Further, the Fund is also exepmt from the provisions of sec 113 (Minimum tax) under clause 
11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.     
          

17. EARNING PER UNIT           
           

 Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the Pension Fund Managers the determina�on 
of the cumula�ve weighted average number of outstanding units is not prac�cable. 

14

Beginning of the year 262,883                   1,202,593              1,367,718                2,833,194                376,992                 591,819              544,634                1,513,445                
Units issued during the year 301,783                   840,477                  1,959,579                3,101,839                111,482                 878,675              1,014,431             2,004,588                
Effect of realloca�on -                            -                           -                             -                             (168,690)               (289,351)            (276,889)               (734,930)                  
Units redeemed during the year (269,386)                 (673,497)                (828,097)                  (1,770,980)              (56,901)                 21,450                85,542                   50,091                      
Total units in issue at the end of the year 295,280                   1,369,573              2,499,200                4,164,053                262,883                 1,202,593          1,367,718             2,833,194                

15. AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees '000 ---------------------------------------------------------

Annual audit fee 17                              85                            136                            238                            21                           130                      120                         271                            
Review of condensed interim financial informa�on 16                              49                            42                              107                            15                           50                        40                           105                            
Shahriah compliance cer�fica�on 23                              -                           -                             23                              25                           -                       -                         25                              

56                              134                          178                            368                            61                           180                      160                         401                            
Sales tax 5                                11                            12                              498                            5                              16                        14                           35                              
Out of pocket expenses 6                                13                            15                              889                            6                              18                        16                           40                              

67                              158                          205                            1,755                        72                           214                      190                         476                            

June 30, 2024

NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

 Equity
 Sub-Fund 

Debt
 Sub-Fund

Total
Money

Market  Sub-Fund
 Equity

 Sub-Fund 
Total

Debt
 Sub-Fund

Money
Market  Sub-

Fund

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund

Par�culars

June 30, 2023

Money Market 
Sub-Fund

TotalEquity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund
Money Market Sub-

Fund
Total

18. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

Financial assets
Balances with banks 5,126         -               5,126             178,082       -               178,082          455,530            -               455,530          
Investments -             163,874      163,874         -                184,587      184,587          -                     183,258      183,258          
Dividend and profit receivable 109            -               109                5,527           -               5,527              12,360               -               12,360            
Advances, deposits and other receivables 2,626         -               2,626             225               -               225                 111                    -               111                 

7,861         163,874      171,735         183,834       184,587      368,421          468,001            183,258      651,259          
Transac�ons during the year

Financial assets
Bank balances 5,752         -               5,752             115,934       -               115,934          93,778               -               93,778            
Investments -             75,967         75,967           -                142,486      142,486          -                     191,097      191,097          
Dividend and profit receivable 149            -               149                8,429           -               8,429              10,186               -               10,186            
Advances, deposits and other receivables 5,292         -               5,292             350               -               350                 454                    -               454                 

11,193      75,967         87,160           124,713       142,486      267,199          104,418            191,097      295,515          

Par�culars 

June 30, 2024

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total Amor�sed cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss

Par�culars 

Total Amor�sed cost
At fair value

through
profit or loss

Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2023
Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

Amor�sed 
cost
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19 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH CONNECTED PERSONS      
          

 Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, Habib Bank Limited 
being the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, Collec�ve 
Investment Schemes and other Voluntary Pension Systems managed by the Pension Fund Manager, directors and 
officers of the Pension Fund Manager, directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial 
ownership or vo�ng power of the units of the Fund or the capital of the Pension Fund Manager.   
             
Transac�ons with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms 
determined in accordance with market rates.        
        

 Remunera�on payable to Pension Fund Manager and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of 
the Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and the Trust Deed respec�vely.     
           

 The details of the transac�ons with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these 
financial statements are as follows: 
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Financial liabili�es
Payable to HBL Asset Management 
 Limited- Pension Fund Manager 132            -               132                210               -               210                 361                    -               361                 
Payable to the Central
  Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 19              -               19                   42                 -               42                    72                      -               72                    

Accrued expenses and -                  
 other liabili�es 4,554         -               4,554             1,835           -               1,835              1,618                 -               1,618              

4,704         -               4,704             2,086           -               2,086              2,051                 -               2,051              

Financial liabili�es
Payable to HBL Asset Management 
 Limited- Pension Fund Manager 97              -               97                   273               -               273                 311                    -               311                 
Payable to the Central
  Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 12              -               12                   31                 -               31                    34                      -               34                    

Payable to the SECP 34              34                   67                 67                    61                      61                    
Accrued expenses and 
 other liabili�es 1,442         -               1,442             2,802           -               2,802              3,295                 -               3,295              

1,585         -               1,585             3,173           -               3,173              3,701                 -               3,701              

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total Amor�sed cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Par�culars 

June 30, 2023
Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

Par�culars 

June 30, 2024
Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

Amor�sed 
cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total Amor�sed cost

At fair value
through

profit or loss
Total

19.1

Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund
-------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
Pension Fund Manager

Remunera�on of the Pension Fund Manager             558          1,945          2,329          4,831          1,371          1,529          1,200          4,100 
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of the
Pension Fund Manager               73             253             303             628             178             199             156             533 
Alloca�on of fees and expenses / (reversal) related to registrar
services, accoun�ng, opera�on and valua�on services                -               706          1,129          1,836             102             485             294             881 

Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

of Pakistan Limited - Trustee             913             451             597          1,960             128             252             230             611 
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee             119               59               78             255               17               33               30               79 
Central Depository System Charges                -                  -                  -                  -                 21                 7                 7               35 

Remunera�on to Central Depository Company

Transac�ons during the period
For the year ended June 30, 2024 For the year ended June 30, 2023
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Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund
-------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Redemp�on of units                -                  -                  -                  -        103,535                -                  -        103,535 
Amount of units redeemed                -                  -                  -                  -          36,471                -                  -          36,471 
Bank charges               22               43               49             114               29               36               36             101 
Profit on bank deposits earned               10             606          1,411          2,027               80             102               95             277 

Directors and Execu�ves of the Pension Fund
Manager and their rela�ves

Directors and their rela�ves
Issuance of units Units          5,478                -                  -            5,478          5,049                -                  -            5,049 
Amount of units issued          2,500                -                  -            2,500          1,000                -                  -            1,000 
Realloca�on of units Units          2,786                -          (5,425)        (2,639)           (244)                -                  -             (244)
Amount of units reallocated          1,270                -          (1,270)                -               (80)                -                  -               (80)

Execu�ves and their rela�ves
Issuance of units Units        26,491        22,629          3,445        52,565        19,893          2,866             506        23,265 
Amount of units issued        12,673          5,609             818        19,100          6,495             663             157          7,315 
Realloca�on of units Units          1,728           (200)        (3,279)        (1,751)                -                  -                  -                  -   
Amount of units reallocated             878             (56)           (822)                -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

Directors of connected persons
Redemp�on of units Units                -          55,036                -          55,036                -                  -                  -                  -   
Amount of units redeemed                -          13,695                -          13,695                -                  -                  -                  -   

CDC Trustee HBL Islamic Income Fund - 
Under Common Management
Purchase of GOP Ijara Sukuk                -        153,073      253,699      406,772                -                  -                  -                  -   
Sale of GOP Ijara Sukuk                -            8,885                -            8,885 

CDC Trustee HBL Financial Sector Income Fund - 
Under Common Management
Sale of GOP Ijara Sukuk                -        106,995      216,555      323,550                -                  -                  -                  -   

CDC Trustee HBL Islamic Pension Fund - 
Under Common Management
Realloca�on of GOP Ijara Sukuk                -          11,293      (11,293)                -                  -                  -                  -                  -   

CDC Trustee HBL Islamic Money Market Fund
Under Common Management
Sale of GOP Ijara Sukuk                -                  -          21,537        21,537 

For the year ended June 30, 2024 For the year ended June 30, 2023

19.2 Balances outstanding as at period end

Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund
-------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
Pension Fund Manager
Remunera�on Payable to the Pension Fund Manager             210             361             702               97             273             311             680 
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remunera�on of the 
Pension Fund Manager               27               47               91               13               35               40               89 
Alloca�on of expenses related to registrar services,
accoun�ng, opera�on and valua�on services             167             257             423                -                 75               85             160 

               -                  -            2,500                -                  -                  -                  -   

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank balances      454,464  VIS      457,727          4,600        28,524        24,333        57,457 

Directors and Execu�ves of the Pension Fund
Manager and their rela�ves

Directors and their rela�ves
Units held Units        30,853        40,287        15,662        86,802        22,589        40,287        21,087        83,963 
Amount of units held        15,141        10,308          3,898        29,347          7,352          8,844          4,498        20,694 

Execu�ves and their rela�ves
Units held Units        60,937        25,332             690        86,959        32,718          2,903             524        36,145 
Amount of units held        29,904          6,482             172        36,558        10,649             637             112        11,398 

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

of Pakistan Limited - Trustee               19               42               72             133               12               31               34               77 
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee                 2                 5                 9               16                 2                 4                 4               10 
Security deposit receivable             100             100             100             300             100             100             100             300 

Directors of connected persons
Units held Units                -                  -                  -                  -          23,961        55,036                -          78,997 
Amount of units held                -                  -                  -                  -            7,799        12,081                -          19,880 

Other payable to Pension Fund Manager

Remunera�on to Central Depository Company

For the year ended June 30, 2024 For the year ended June 30, 2023
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20. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight 

of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's 
risk management policies.

 
 The Fund's risk management policies are established to iden�fy and analyse the risks faced by the Fund, to set 

appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi�ons and the Fund's ac�vi�es.

 
 The Fund primarily invests in a por�olio of equity, debt and money market investments such as shares of listed 

companies, investment - grade debt securi�es, government securi�es and other money market instruments. These 
ac�vi�es are exposed to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk 
and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

 
20.1 Market risk
 
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a result 

of changes in market prices.
 
 The Pension Fund Manager manages the market risk through diversifica�on of the investment por�olio and by 

following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Commi�ee.The Pension Fund Manager manages 
market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securi�es by following the internal risk management policies 
and investment guidelines approved by the Board and regula�ons laid down by the SECP and the VPS Rules.

 
 Market risk comprises of three types of risk: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
 
20.1.1 Currency risk
 
 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund is not exposed to currency risk.
 

Total

Financial assets

Bank balances 4,065          -                4,065       88,713       -                88,713    88,027      -                88,027    180,805     
Investments -              127,886       127,886   -              20,842         20,842    -             10,000         10,000    158,728     
Dividend and accrued mark-up 187             -                187           2,017          -                2,017       1,815         -                1,815      4,019          
Advances and deposits 2,680          -                2,680       100             -                100          100            -                100          2,880          

6,932          127,886       134,818   90,830       20,842         111,672  89,942      10,000         99,942    346,432     

Total

Financial liabili�es

326             -                326           64               -                64            40              -                40            430             

21               -                21             15               -                15            13              -                13            49               

Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 500             -                500           227             -                227          139            -                139          866             

847             -                847           306             -                306          192            -                192          1,345          

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

At 
Amor�sed 

Cost

2022
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

At fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Total At 
Amor�sed 

Cost

At fair value 
through 

profit or loss

TotalAt fair value 
through 

profit or loss

At 
Amor�sed 

Cost

Total

At fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Total At 
Amor�sed 

Cost

At fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Total

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Payable to Central Depository Company 
   of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Payable to HBL Asset Management 
   Limited - Pension Fund Manager

2022
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

At 
Amor�sed 

Cost

At fair value 
through 

profit or loss

Total At 
Amor�sed 

Cost
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------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

20.1.2 Interest rate risk
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result 

of changes in market interest rates.
 
20.1.2 a)   Cash flow interest rate risk
 
 The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the year would have 

increased / (decreased) by Rs. 0.0513 million for Equity Sub-Fund, Rs. 1.7808 million for Debt Sub- Fund and Rs. 
4.553 million for Money Market Sub-Fund, had the interest rates on savings accounts with banks increased / 
(decreased) by 100 basis points.

 
20.1.2 b)   Fair value interest rate risk
 
 The Fund's investment in GOP Ijara Sukuk, Equity securi�es and Corporate Sukuk/ TFC exposes it to fair value 

interest rate risk.
 
 In case of 100 basis points increase/decrease in rates announced by the Financial Market Associa�on of Pakistan 

on June 30, 2024, with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and the net assets would be 
lower/higher by Rs. 1.6387 million for Equity Sub-Fund , Rs. 1.8459 miilion for Debt Sub- Fund and Rs.1.8326 
million for Money Market Sub-Fund .

 
 Yield / interest rate sensi�vity posi�on for on-statement of financial posi�on financial instruments is based on the 

earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-statement of financial posi�on instruments is based on 
the se�lement date.
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Up to three 
months

More than three 
months and up to 

one year

More than 
one year

Up to three 
months

More than three 
months and up to 

one year

More than 
one year

Up to three 
months

More than three 
months and up 

to one year

More than 
one year

%
On-balance sheet 
financial instruments

Financial assets
Balances with banks 17.50% - 20.90% 638,739           5,126                -                             -                -                     178,082         -                         -                -                      455,530               -                      -                  -                     
Investments 531,719           -                    -                             -                163,874            -                  184,587                -                -                      -                        183,258             -                  -                     
Dividend and profit receivable 17,996             -                    -                             -                109                    -                  -                         -                5,527                  -                        -                      -                  12,360               
Advances, deposits and other receivables 2,962               -                    -                             -                2,626                 -                  -                         -                225                     -                        -                      -                  111                    

1,191,416        5,126                -                             -                166,609            178,082         184,587                -                5,752                  455,530               183,258             -                  12,471               

Financial liabili�es
Payable to the Pension Fund Manager 702                   -                    -                             -                132                    -                  -                         -                210                     -                        -                      -                  361                    
Payable to the Trustee 133                   -                    -                             -                19                      -                  -                         -                42                       -                        -                      -                  72                      
Accrued and other liabili�es 8,007               -                    -                             -                4,554                 -                  -                         -                1,835                  -                        -                      -                  1,618                 

8,842               -                    -                             -                4,704                 -                  -                         -                2,086                  -                        -                      -                  2,051                 

On-balance sheet gap 1,182,574        5,126                -                             -                161,905            178,082         184,587                -                3,665                  455,530               183,258             -                  10,420               

Off-balance sheet financial instruments -                    -                    -                             -                -                     -                         -                -                      -                        -                      -                     
Off-balance sheet gap -                    -                    -                             -                -                     -                         -                -                      -                        -                      -                     

Fair value interest rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield / interest 

rate risk

Effec�ve yield / 
interest rate

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Total  

2024
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield / interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield / interest 

rate risk

Up to three 
months

More than three 
months and up to 

one year

More than 
one year

Up to three 
months

More than three 
months and up to 

one year

More than 
one year

Up to three 
months

More than three 
months and up 

to one year

More than 
one year

On-balance sheet 
financial instruments

Financial assets
Balances with banks 5.5% - 19.5% 215,701            5,752                 -                             -                -                     115,934          -                         -                -                      93,778                  -                      -                  237                     
Investments 5.7% - 24% 409,550            -                    -                             -                75,967                -                  142,486                 -                -                      -                        191,097               -                  -                     
Dividend and profit receivable 42,037              -                    -                             -                149                     -                  -                         -                8,429                   -                        -                      10,186             23,273                
Advances, deposits and other receivables 12,131              -                    -                             -                5,292                  -                  -                         -                350                      -                        -                      454                   6,035                  

679,419            5,752                 -                             -                81,408                115,934          142,486                 -                8,779                   93,778                  191,097               10,640             29,545                
Financial liabili�es 

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager 680                    -                    -                             -                97                        -                  -                         -                273                      -                        -                      -                  311                     
Payable to the Trustee 77                      -                    -                             -                12                        -                  -                         -                31                        -                        -                      -                  34                        
Accrued and other liabili�es 7,539                 -                    -                             -                1,442                  -                  -                         -                2,802                   -                        -                      -                  3,295                  

8,296                 -                    -                             -                1,551                  -                  -                         -                3,106                   -                        -                      -                  3,640                  
On-balance sheet gap 671,123            5,752                 -                             -                79,857                115,934          142,486                 -                5,673                   93,778                  191,097               10,640             25,905                
Off-balance sheet financial instruments -                    -                    -                             -                -                     -                         -                -                      -                        -                      -                     
Off-balance sheet gap -                    -                    -                             -                -                     -                         -                -                      -                        -                      -                     

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield / interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield / interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield / interest 

rate risk

Total 

2023
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund
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20.1.3 Price risk
 
 Price risk is the risk of vola�lity in prices of financial instruments resul�ng from their dependence on market 

sen�ments, specula�ve ac�vi�es, supply and demand for financial instruments and liquidity in the market. The 
value of investments may fluctuate due to factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer such 
as, change in business cycles affec�ng the business of the company in which the investment is made, change in 
business circumstances of the company, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments traded in the market 
such as  changes in the industry environment and / or the economy in general.

 
 The Pension Fund Manager’s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Fund’s investment 

objec�ve. The primary objec�ve of the Fund is to achieve long term capital growth by inves�ng primarily in equity 
securi�es. The Fund’s market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Pension Fund Manager in accordance with the 
policies and procedures laid down by the SECP. The funds are allocated among various asset classes based on the 
a�rac�veness of the par�cular asset class. The alloca�on among these is dependent on the �me horizon for 
investments and liquidity requirements of the por�olio. 

 
 The market risk is managed by monitoring exposure to marketable securi�es, and by complying with the internal 

risk management policies and regula�ons laid down in VPS Rules and direc�ves issued by the SECP.
 
 The Fund does not hold any instrument that is exposed to price risk. 
 
20.2 Credit risk
 
 Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter par�es fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk is 

primarily a�ributable to its investment in corporate Sukuk/TFC bonds,and bank deposit. Risks a�ributable to 
investments in GOP Ijara Sukuk are limited as these are guaranteed by the Federal Government while bank 
balances are maintained with banks with a reasonably high credit ra�ng. The risk of default is considered minimal 
due to interest systema�c measures taken therein.

 
20.2.1 The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2024.

20.2.2 The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund’s credit exposure:
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HABIB BANK LIMITED 3,264                  177,057         454,464 A-1+ VIS
FAYSAL BANK LIMITED -                      2                     258 A-1+ VIS
DUBAI ISLAMIC BANK 96                        6

                    

 11 A-1+ VIS
BANK ISLAMI PAKISTAN LIMITED 1,767                  91 - A-1 PACRA
ALLIED BANK LIMITED -                      41 16 A-1+ PACRA
MEEZAN BANK LIMITED -                      6 4 A-1+ VIS
SONERI BANK LIMITED -                      251 - A-1+ PACRA
BANK ALFALAH -                      10 10 A-1+ PACRA
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN -                      18 36 A-1+ PACRA
HABIB METROPOLTIAN BANK LIMITED -                      404 121 A-1+ PACRA
UNITED BANK LIMITED -                      49                   581 A-1+ VIS
BANK AL HABIB LIMITED -                      15                   29 A-1+ PACRA
AL BARAKA BANK LIMITED -                      132                 - A-1 VIS

5,126                  178,082         455,530             

Latest available 
published ra�ng as at 

June 30, 2024
Ra�ng agencyEquity

Sub-Fund
Money Market 

Sub-Fund
Debt

Sub-Fund
Bank

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Ra�ng by ra�ng category

A-1+ 99.69%
A-1 0.31%
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 There is no exposure other than bank balance as disclosed above as at June 30, 2024.
 
 Concentra�on of credit risk
 
 Concentra�on of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of 

counterpar�es whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in rela�on to the Fund's total credit exposure. The 
Fund's por�olio of financial instruments is mainly concentrated in bank balances while the remaining transac�ons 
are entered into with diverse credit-worthy counterpar�es thereby mi�ga�ng any significant concentra�on of 
credit risk to counterpar�es other than the Government.

 
20.3 Liquidity risk
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to se�le its obliga�on 

in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund. Liquidity risk may 
result from an inability to sell a financial asset at close to its fair value. The Pension Fund Manager's approach to 
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its 
liabili�es when due under both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking 
damage to the Fund's reputa�on. The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments 
that are traded in an ac�ve market and can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

 
 The Fund aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable securi�es at an 

amount in excess of expected cash ou�lows on financial liabili�es. The Fund is exposed to cash redemp�ons of its 
units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s op�on based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit 
at the �me of redemp�on calculated in accordance with the Fund’s cons�tu�ve document and guidelines laid 
down by Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

 
 Management of liquidity risk
 
 The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by inves�ng majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve 

market and can be readily disposed. The Fund invests primarily in marketable securi�es and other financial 
instruments, which under normal market condi�ons are readily conver�ble to cash. As a result, the Fund may be 
able to liquidate quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its 
liquidity requirement. The present se�lement system is a T+2 system, which means that proceeds from sales (to 
pay off redemp�ons) of holdings will be received on the second day a�er the sale, while redemp�ons have to be 
paid within a period of six working days from the date of the redemp�on request. 

 
 In addi�on, the Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for mee�ng redemp�on requests. No 

such borrowings were made during the year. The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is 
limited to the extent of 15% of net assets at the �me of borrowing with repayment with in 90 days of such 
borrowings. The facility would bear interest at commercial rates.

 
 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant 

maturity groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the repor�ng period to the contractual maturity 
date. However, assets and liabili�es that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been 
included in the maturity grouping of one month.

 
 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant 

maturity groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the repor�ng period to the contractual maturity 
date. However, assets and liabili�es that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been 
included in the maturity grouping of one month.
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21 UNITHOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
 The unitholders' fund is represented by the net assets a�ributable to unitholders / redeemable units. The amount 

of net assets a�ributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily 
issuance and redemp�ons at the discre�on of unit holders. These unitholders of the Fund are en�tled to 
distribu�ons and to payment of a propor�onate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the 
redemp�on date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unitholders' fund. 
Unitholders fund risk management is carried out by the Management Company through following steps: 

  
- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemp�ons rela�ve to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount of 

distribu�ons the Fund pays to the unitholders;
  
- Redeems and issues units in accordance with the cons�tu�ve documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's 

ability to restrict redemp�ons; and
  
- The Fund Manager / Investment Commi�ee members and the Chief Execu�ve Officer of the Management 

Company cri�cally track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated 
regarding key performance indicators, e.g. yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each 
quarter.

  
 The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current period. 
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 The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabili�es into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows.

Up to
three

months

Over three
months

and up to
one year

Over
one
year

Total
Up to
three

months

Over three
months

and up to
one year

Over
one
year

Total
Up to
three

months

Over three
months

and up to
one year

Over
one
year

Total

Financial Liabili�es

Payable to HBL Asset Management
  Limited - Pension Fund Manager 132                                           -                      -   132                     210                                  -                      -   210               361                                        -                      -   361                    702                     

Payable to the Central Depository -                      
  Company of Pakistan Limited - -                      
  Trustee 19                                             -                      -   19                       42                                    -                      -   42                 72                                          -                      -   72                       133                     

Accrued expenses and other l iabil i�es 5,434                                        -                      -   5,434                  1,835                               -                      -   1,835            1,618                                     -                      -   1,618                 8,887                  

5,585                  -                  -                5,585                  2,086            -                -                2,086            2,051                  -                -                2,051                 9,722                  

Up to
three

months

Over three
months

and up to
one year

Over
one
year

Total
Up to
three

months

Over three
months

and up to
one year

Over
one
year

Total
Up to
three

months

Over three
months

and up to
one year

Over
one
year

Total

Financial Liabili�es

Payable to HBL Fund Manager
  Limited - Pension Fund Manager 97                                             -                      -   97                       273                                  -                      -   2,069            311                                        -                      -   1,976                 4,142                  

Payable to the Central Depository -                      -                      
  Company of Pakistan Limited - -                      -                      
  Trustee 12                                             -                      -   12                       35                                    -                      -   89                 34                                          -                      -   116                    217                     

Accrued expenses and other l iabil i�es 1,442                                        -                      -   1,442                  2,802                               -                      -   9,618            3,295                                     -                      -   11,528               22,588               

1,551                  -                  -                1,551                  3,110            -                -                11,776         3,640                  -                -                13,620               26,947               

The above men�oned financial l iabil i�es do not carry any mark-up.

Par�culars 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'June 30, 2024-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund

Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Par�culars 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'June 30, 2023-----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Equity Sub Fund Debt Sub Fund Money Market Sub Fund

Total

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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22 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 

between market par�cipants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying 
amount and the fair value es�mates. 

  
 Underlying the defini�on of fair value is the presump�on that the Fund is a going concern without any inten�on or 

requirement to curtail materially the scale of its opera�ons or to undertake a transac�on on adverse terms. 

 The fair value of financial assets and liabili�es traded in ac�ve markets  are based on the quoted market prices at 
the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is 
current bid price. 

  
 A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an ac�ve market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available 

from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent 
actual and regularly occurring market transac�ons on an arm’s length basis. 

  
 As per the requirements of IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures) and IFRS 13 ( Fair Value Measurement), the 

Fund classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used 
in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

  
- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es 

(level 1);
  
- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and
  
- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. 

unobservable inputs) (level 3).
  
 The table below analyse financial instruments measured at the end of the repor�ng year by the level in the fair 

value hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised: 
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-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments at fair value through profit or loss --------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

Equity Sub-Fund
Listed equity securi�es 163,874      -                 -              163,874        

Debt Sub-Fund
Government of Pakistan - Ijara Sukuks 183,590 - -              183,590        
Corporate Sukuk bonds - 997 -              997                

Money Market Sub-Fund
Government of Pakistan - Ijara Sukuks 123,258 60,000 -              183,258        
Corporate Sukuk bonds

470,722      60,997          -              531,719        

June 30, 2024
Fair value



HBL ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

22.1 Valua�on techniques          
           
 For level 1 investments at fair value through profit or loss in units of mutual funds, Fund uses daily quota�ons which are taken from PSX, for 

the purpose of computa�on of Market value at the repor�ng date.       
   

 For level 2 investments at fair value through profit or loss in units of mutual funds, Fund uses PKISRV rates which are taken from MUFAP, for 
the purpose of computa�on of Market value at the repor�ng date.       
          

22.2 The Fund has not disclosed the fair values of these financial assets and financial liabili�es, as these are either short term in nature or repriced 
periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approxima�on of fair value.     
          

22.3 Transfers during the year          
           
 No transfer were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.

23. PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER      
      

 Details of members of the Investment Commi�ee of the Fund as on June 30, 2024 are as follows:

24. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS          
   

 Four mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were held on August 17, 2023 and October 19, 2023,  January 25, 2024, April 18, 2024 respec�vely. 
Informa�on in respect of the a�endance by the Directors in the mee�ngs is given below:
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Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Investments at fair value through profit or loss --------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

Equity Sub-Fund
Listed equity securi�es 75,967        -                 -              75,967          

Debt Sub-Fund
Government of Pakistan - Ijara Sukuks 100,067      -                 -              100,067        
Corporate Sukuk bonds -              41,141          1,278          42,419          

Money Market Sub-Fund
Government of Pakistan - Ijara Sukuks 145,097      -                 -              145,097        
Corporate Sukuk bonds -              46,000          -              46,000          

321,131      87,141          1,278          363,550        

June 30, 2023
Fair value

1 Mir Adil Rashid Chief Execu�ve Officer BSC 25+
2 Muhammad Ali Bhabha Chief Investment Officer CFA, FRM, MBA 28+
3 Rahat Saeed Khan  Head of Fixed Income MBA 26+
4 Imad Ansari  Head of Risk MBA 17+
5 Ahsan Ali  Head of Research CFA 8+
6 Raza Abbas  Senior Fund Manager 21

Designa�on Qualifica�on
Experience 

in years

M.Com

S. no. Name
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

25. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO
 
 In accordance with the S.R.O 1068 (I) / 2021 dated August 23, 2021 issued by the Securi�es and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the total expense ra�o of the equity sub fund, debt sub fund and money market 
sub fund for the year ended June 30, 2024 is 1.56%, 1.58% and 3.54% (June 30, 2023: 1.82%, 0.74% and 0.69%) 
respec�vely which includes 0.33%,0.17% and 0.17% (June 30, 2023: 0.11%, 0.05% and 0.05%) respec�vely 
represen�ng Government levy and SECP fee.

 
26 GENERAL
 
26.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, where stated otherwise.
 
26.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison.
 
27. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE
 
 These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Pension Fund Manager on 

September 26, 2024.
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Held A�ended Leave granted

Name of Director

1 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 6 6 0
2 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 6 6 0
3 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 6 5 1
4 Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mir 6 6 0
5 Mr. Tariq Masaud 6 6 0
6 Mr. Abid Sa�ar 6 6 0
7 Mr. Khalid Malik 6 6 0

-
-

October 27,2023.
-
-

-
-

Number of mee�ngs
Mee�ng not a�endedS.No. Par�cular
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Central Depositary Company of Pakistan

Allied Bank
JS Bank Limited
Sindh Bank Limited
Soneri Bank Limited

U Microfinance Bank Limited
Bank Alfalah Limited
Khushhali Bank Limited
Bank Al Habib Limited
Na�onal Bank Of Pakistan
HBL Microfinance Bank Limited
Dubsi Islamic Bank Limited

BDO Ebrahim & Co.
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HBL PENSION FUND
Statement of Assets and Liabili�es
As at June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director
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Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note
Assets

Balances with banks 5 3,879       403,682          569,523           977,084          2,864            130,298         37,880             171,042             
Investments 6 94,743     478,931          468,914           1,042,588       52,645          243,711         658,530           954,886             
Dividend and profit receivable 7 120          25,906            7,637               33,663            55                 7,110             11,367             18,532               
Receivable Against issuance of Units -           1,464              -                   1,464              -                -                -                   -                     
Advance Deposits and other receivable 8 2,682       669                 216                  3,567              2,812            796                229                  3,837                 

Total assets 101,424   910,652          1,046,290        2,058,366       58,376          381,915         708,006           1,148,297          
Liabili�es

Payable to Pension Fund Manager 9 115          879                 1,069               2,063              78                 485                907                  1,470                 
Payable to Trustee 10 15            101                 122                  238                 11                 54                  99                    164                    
Annual fee payable to the Securi�es and -
 'Exchange Commission of  Pakistan 11 42            203                 350                  595                 27                 120                202                  349                    
Payable against purchase of  Securi�es 352          -                  -                   352                 -                -                -                     
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 12 3,617       1,037              3,160               7,814              893               1,650             2,349               4,892                 

Total liabili�es 4,141       2,220              4,701               11,062            1,009            2,309             3,557               6,875                 
Net assets 97,283     908,432          1,041,589        2,047,304       57,367          379,606         704,449           1,141,422          

PARTICIPANT'S SUB FUNDS (AS PER SATEMENT 
ATTACHED) 97,283     908,432          1,041,589        2,047,304       57,367          379,606         704,449           1,141,422          

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 13

Number of units in issue 15 188,020   2,667,461       3,518,606        190,261        1,362,202      2,898,259        

Net assets value per unit 517.4060 340.5606        296.0229         301.5172      278.6710       243.0594         

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2023 

Total

------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------

June 30, 2024 

Total
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Income Statement
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note
Income

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments 27,333                  7,178                     1,023                     35,534                  (3,849)                   212                        (433)                       (4,070)                   
Dividend income 9,037                     -                         -                         9,037                     5,524                     -                         -                         5,524                     
Profit / Markup on bank deposits 655                        36,614                  25,594                  62,863                  481                        22,544                  25,463                  48,488                  

Mark-up / return on investments -                         60,757                  158,918                219,675                -                         31,515                  66,505                  98,020                  

37,025                  104,549                185,535                327,109                2,156                     54,271                  91,535                  147,962                
Unrealised apprecia�on / (dimuni�on) on re-
measurement of investments 'classified at fair 
value through  profit or loss' - net 14,773                  3,117                     544                        18,434                  (1,092)                   (111)                       (334)                       (1,537)                   

51,798                  107,666                186,079                345,543                1,064                     54,160                  91,201                  146,425                
Expenses

Remunera�on to HBL Asset Management 
Limited - Pension Fund  Manager 9.1 1,205                     5,953                     10,307                  17,465                  1,265                     3,034                     4,227                     8,526                     
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to HBL Asset 
Management Limited Pension Fund  Manager

9.2 157                        774                        1,340                     2,271                     -                         -                         -                         
Remunera�on of Central Depository Company 
of  Pakistan Limited - Trustee 10.1 135                        676                        1,172                     1,983                     117                        512                        858                        1,487                     
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of the 10.2 18                          88                          152                        258                        -                         -                         -                         -                         
Annual fees to the Securi�es and Exchange - 
Commission of Pakistan 11.1 42                          203                        351                        596                        27                          120                        202                        349                        
Auditors' remunera�on 16 66                          150                        252                        468                        3                            148                        279                        430                        
Se�lement and bank charges 77                          155                        72                          304                        35                          55                          50                          140                        
Securi�es transac�on cost 2,019                     27                          11                          2,057                     1,079                     -                         -                         1,079                     
Prin�ng and sta�onery -                         -                         -                         -                         6                            12                          17                          35                          
Fee and subcrip�on -                         -                         -                         -                         446                        -                         -                         446                        

3,719                     8,026                     13,657                  25,402                  2,978                     3,881                     5,633                     12,492                  
Net income / (loss) for the year before taxa�on 48,079                  99,640                  172,422                320,141                (1,914)                   50,279                  85,568                  133,933                
Taxa�on 17 -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Net income / (loss) for the year 48,079                  99,640                  172,422                320,141                (1,914)                   50,279                  85,568                  133,933                

Earnings per unit 18

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------

TotalTotal



HBL PENSION FUND
Statement of Movement in Par�cipants' Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director
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Equity
Sub-Fund

Debt
Sub-Fund

Money 
Market Sub-

Fund
 Total 

Equity
Sub-Fund

Debt
Sub-Fund

Money 
Market Sub-

Fund
 Total 

------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------

Net income / (loss) for the year 48,079       99,640       172,422     320,141     (1,914)        50,279       85,568       133,933     

Other comprehensive income -             -             -             -             -             -             -             -             

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 48,079       99,640       172,422     320,141     (1,914)        50,279       85,568       133,933     

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023
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Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Net assets at the beginning of the year 57,367          379,606     704,449           1,141,422     133,433         294,946      403,035         831,414         

Amount received on issue of units 195,362        565,915     368,955           1,130,232     19,123           153,674      398,593         571,390         
Amount paid on redemp�on of units (203,525)       (136,729)    (204,237)          (544,491)      (72,649)          (109,501)     (213,165)        (395,315)        
Realloca�on among funds -                -             -                   -               (20,626)          (9,792)         30,418           -                 

(8,163)           429,186     164,718           585,741        (74,152)          34,381        215,846         176,075         

Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments 27,333          7,178         1,023               35,534          (3,849)            212             (433)               (4,070)            
Unrealised apprecia�on / (dimuni�on) on 're-measurement  -
'of investments classified at fair value 'through profit or loss' - net 18,434          (1,092)            (111)            (334)               (1,537)            
Other income for the year - net 266,173        3,027             50,178        86,335           139,540         
Total comprehensive income/ (loss) for the year 48,079          99,640       172,422           320,141        (1,914)            50,279        85,568           133,933         

Net assets at the end of the year 97,283          908,432     1,041,589        2,047,304     57,367           379,606      704,449         1,141,422      

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Total

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------

Total

14,773          
5,973            

3,117         
89,345       

544                  
170,855           
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Cash Flow Statement
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

 Equity
Sub-Fund 

 Debt
Sub-Fund 

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

 Total 
 Equity

Sub-Fund 
 Debt

Sub-Fund 
 Money Market 

Sub-Fund 
 Total 

Note
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income / (loss) for the year before taxa�on 48,079                      99,640                  172,422                  320,141          (1,914)          50,279             85,568              133,933        
Adjustments for:

Capital (gain) / loss on Investment (27,333)                            (7,178)                         (1,023)                            (35,534)           3,849               (212)                      433                         4,070            

(14,773)                     (3,117)                   (544)                        (18,434)           1,092           111                  334                   1,537            
Dividend income (9,037)                       -                        (9,037)             (5,524)          (5,524)           
Profit on bank deposits (655)                          (36,614)                 (25,594)                   (62,863)           (481)             (22,544)            (25,463)             (48,488)         
Mark-up / return on investments -                            (60,757)                 (158,918)                 (219,675)         -               (31,515)            (66,505)             (98,020)         

(3,719)                       (8,026)                   (13,657)                   (25,402)           (2,978)          (3,881)              (5,633)               (12,492)         
(Decrease) / increase in assets

Investments 8                               (224,925)               191,183                  (33,734)           70,205         (182,714)          (621,775)           (734,284)       
Receivable against issuance of Units -                            (1,464)                   -                          (1,464)             -               -                   -                    -                
Deposits and other receivables 130                           127                       13                           270                 719              (382)                 (58)                    279               

138                           (226,262)               191,196                  (34,928)           70,924         (183,096)          (621,833)           (734,005)       
Increase / (decrease) in liabili�es

Payable to Pension Fund  37                             394                       162                         593                 (333)             290                  733                   690               
Payable to Trustee 4                               47                         23                           74                   (14)               11                    38                     35                 

15                             83                         148                         246                 (22)               65                    126                   169               
352                           352                 

Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 2,724                        (613)                      811                         2,922              24                683                  1,409                2,116            
3,132                        (89)                        1,144                      4,187              (345)             1,049               2,306                3,010            

CASH (USED IN) / GENERATED FROM OPERATION (449)                          (234,377)               178,683                  (56,143)           67,601         (185,928)          (625,160)           (743,487)       
Dividend received 8,977                        -                        -                          8,977              5,517           -                   -                    5,517            
Profit received on bank deposits 650                           32,976                  25,752                    59,378            577              25,315             29,950              55,842          
Mark-up received on investments -                            45,599                  162,490                  208,089          -               27,443             58,469              85,912          

9,627                        78,575                  188,242                  276,444          6,094           52,758             88,419              147,271        
Net cashflows  generated from / (used in) opera�ng ac�vi�es 9,178                        (155,802)               366,925                  220,301          73,695         (133,170)          (536,741)           (596,216)       

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issue of units 195,362                    565,915                368,955                  1,130,232       19,123         153,674           398,593            571,390        
Payment against redemp�on of units (203,525)                   (136,729)               (204,237)                 (544,491)         (72,649)        (109,501)          (213,165)           (395,315)       
Realloca�on among funds -                            -                        -                          (20,626)        (9,792)              30,418              -                

Net cash (used in) / generated  from financing ac�vi�es (8,163)                       429,186                164,718                  585,741          (74,152)        34,381             215,846            176,075        
1,015                        273,384                531,643                  806,042          (457)             (98,789)            (320,895)           (420,141)       

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2,864                        130,298                37,880                    171,042          3,321           229,087           358,775            591,183        
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 3,879                        403,682                569,523                  977,084          2,864           130,298           37,880              171,042        

The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024

------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2023

Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash 

Payable to Securi�es and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan

Unrealised apprecia�on / (dimuni�on) on
 re-measurement of investments 'classified
 at fair value through  profit or loss' - net

Payable against purchase of  Securi�es
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1  LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
1.1  HBL Pension Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL Asset 

Management Limited as the Pension Fund Manager and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the 
Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) as a pension fund on 
October 05, 2011.  

  
1.2  The Trust Act, 1882 has been repealed due to the promulga�on of Provincial Trust Act namely “Sindh Trusts Act, 2020” 

(the Sindh Trust Act) as empowered under the Eighteenth Amendment to the Cons�tu�on of Pakistan. The Fund is 
required to be registered under the Sindh Trust Act. Accordingly, on September 08, 2021, the above-men�oned Trust 
Deed had been registered under the Sindh Trust Act. 

  
1.3  The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System 

Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by SECP. The registered office of the Pension Fund 
Manager is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Cli�on, Karachi. 

  
1.4  The Management Company of the Fund has been registered as a Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) under the 

Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regula�on) Rules, 2003 (NBFC Rules) and has obtained the 
requisite license from the SECP to undertake Asset Management Services. 

  
1.5 The Fund is an unlisted open end pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. The units 

are non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by surrendering to the 
Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from any of the sub-funds. 

1.6 The objec�ve of the Fund is to provide individuals with a portable, individualised, funded (based on defined 
contribu�on), flexible pension scheme, assis�ng and facilita�ng them to plan and provide for their re�rement.  

  
1.7 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL Pension Fund Equity Sub-Fund ("Equity Sub-Fund"), HBL Pension Fund 

Debt Sub-Fund ("Debt Sub-Fund") and HBL Pension Fund Money Market Sub-Fund ("Money Market Sub-Fund") 
(collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows: 

  
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in listed equity securi�es. Investment in 

a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up capital of the investee 
company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 30% of NAV or index weight, 
subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Remaining assets of the equity sub-fund shall be invested in any 
government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with scheduled commercial 
banks having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in 
the offering document.

  
- The Debt Sub-Fund consist of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the Debt Sub-Fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the net assets in 
the Debt Sub-Fund shall be invested in deposit with scheduled commercial bank (excluding TDRs) or 
government securi�es not exceeding 90 days maturity. Upto twenty five percent (25%) may be deposited with 
banks having not less than 'AA+' ra�ng with stable outlook.

  
- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of short-term debt instruments with weighted average �me to maturity 

not exceeding ninety days. There is no restric�on on the amount of investment in securi�es issued by the 
Federal Government and deposits with commercial banks having 'A+' or higher ra�ng provided that deposit 
with any one bank shall not exceed 20% of net assets of Money Market Sub-Fund. Investment in securi�es 
issued by provincial government, city government, government corporate en��es with 'A' or higher ra�ng or a 
corporate en�ty with 'A+' or higher ra�ng or a government corpora�on with A+ or higher ra�ng shall be in 
propor�on as defined in offering document.
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
 HBL Pension Fund ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL Asset 

Management Limited (the Pension Fund Manager) as the Pension Fund Manager and Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) as a pension fund on October 05, 2011. 

  
 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System 

Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by SECP. The registered office of the Pension Fund 
Manager is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Cli�on, Karachi. 

 
 The Fund is an unlisted open end pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. The units 

are non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by surrendering to the 
Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from any of the sub-funds. 

  
 The objec�ve of the Fund is to provide individuals with a portable, individualised, funded (based on defined 

contribu�on), flexible pension scheme, assis�ng and facilita�ng them to plan and provide for their re�rement.  
  
 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL Pension Fund Equity Sub-Fund ("Equity Sub-Fund"), HBL Pension Fund 

Debt Sub-Fund ("Debt Sub-Fund") and HBL Pension Fund Money Market Sub-Fund ("Money Market Sub-Fund") 
(collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows: 

  
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in listed equity securi�es. Investment in 

a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up capital of the investee 
company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 30% of NAV or index weight, 
subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Remaining assets of the equity sub-fund shall be invested in any 
government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with scheduled commercial 
banks having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in 
the offering document.

  
- The Debt Sub-Fund consist of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the Debt Sub-Fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the assets in the 
Debt Sub-Fund shall be invested in deposit with scheduled commercial bank (excluding TDRs) or government 
securi�es not exceeding 90 days maturity. Upto twenty five percent (25%) may be deposited with banks having 
not less than 'AA+' ra�ng with stable outlook. 

  
- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of short term debt instruments with weighted average �me to maturity 

not exceeding ninety days. There is no restric�on on the amount of investment in securi�es issued by the 
Federal Government and deposits with commercial banks with 'A+" or higher ra�ng. However, deposits with a 
single commercial bank having 'A+' or higher ra�ng shall not exceed 20% of net assets of Money Market 
Sub-Fund. Investment in securi�es issued by Provincial Government,government corporate en��es with 'A' or 
higher ra�ng or a corporate en�ty with 'A+' or higher ra�ng or a government corpora�on with 'A+' or higher 
ra�ng shall be in propor�on as defined in the offering document.

 
 The Fund offers five types of alloca�on schemes, as prescribed by the SECP under NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, to the 

contributors of the Fund namely High Vola�lity, Medium Vola�lity, Low Vola�lity, Lower Vola�lity & Life Cycle Alloca�on. 
The par�cipants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribu�on amount, subject to the minimum limit fixed by the 
Pension Fund Manager. The alloca�on to the Sub-Funds has to be done at the date of opening of contributor's pension 
account and on an anniversary date therea�er. The contribu�on amount may be paid by the contributor on a periodic 
basis such as annual, semi annual, quarterly or monthly basis. 

  
 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1' (Stable Outlook) on December 30, 2022 (June 

2022:AM2++) to the Pension Fund Manager while the Fund is currently not rated. 

1.8 The Fund offers five types of alloca�on schemes, as prescribed by the SECP under NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, to the 
contributors of the Fund namely High Vola�lity, Medium Vola�lity, Low Vola�lity, Lower Vola�lity & Life Cycle Alloca�on. 
The par�cipants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribu�on amount, subject to the minimum limit fixed by the 
Pension Fund Manager. The alloca�on to the Sub-Funds has to be done at the date of opening of contributor's pension 
account and on an anniversary date therea�er. The contribu�on amount may be paid by the contributor on a periodic 
basis such as annual, semi annual, quarterly or monthly basis. 

  
1.9 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1 (Stable Outlook)' as at December 29, 2023 to 

the Pension Fund Manager while the fund is not currently rated. 
  
2 Title to the assets of the Fund are held in the name of CDC as the trustee of the Fund. 
  
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
  
2.1 Statement of compliance 
  
 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable 

in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 
  

- Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 
Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017; part VIIIA of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984.

  
- Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017;

- NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and No�fied En��es Regula�ons, 2008 (the 'NBFC 
Regula�ons') and requirements of the Trust Deed and

  
-  The requirements of the cons�tu�ve documents, Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules), 

  
 Where the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies 

Ordinance, 1984, the provisions of VPS Rules, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and the requirements of the Trust 
Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of 
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984,the VPS Rules the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and requirements of the 
Trust Deed have been followed. 

  
2.2 Basis of measurement 
  
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated. 
  
2.3 Func�onal and presenta�on currency 
  
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Fund's func�onal and presenta�on currency. 

  
2.4 Use of judgments and es�mates 
  
 The prepara�on of the financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in 

Pakistan requires the management to make es�mates, judgements and assump�ons that affect the reported amount of 
assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applica�on of 
accoun�ng policies. The es�mates, judgements and associated assump�ons are based on the historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are 
recognised in the year in which the es�mates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision 
and future years if the revision affects both current and future years. 

  
 The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where es�mates and assump�ons are 

significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:  
  

Lorem ipsum
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  Classifica�on and measurement of financial assets and financial liabili�es  
 For details please refer notes 4.2.1.1 and 6 to these financial statements. 

  
 Impairment of financial assets 

 For details please refer notes 4.2.2 to these financial statements. 
  
3 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDSMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED 

ACCOUNTING AND REPORTING STANDARDS 
  
3.1 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and IFRS interpreta�ons that are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024 

 The following stantdards, amendments and interpreta�ons are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024. These 
standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either not relevant to the Company's opera�ons or did not have 
significant impact on the financial statements other than certain addi�onal disclosures. 

 The Management Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard (lAS) 1, 
Presenta�on of Financial Statements which have been effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er 1 
January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accoun�ng policy themselves, they impacted 
the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accoun�ng policies. The amendments also 

provide guidance on the applica�on of materiality to disclosure of accoun�ng policies, assis�ng the Company to provide 
useful en�ty-specific accoun�ng policy informa�on that users need to understand other informa�on in the financial 
statements.

 
 Management reviewed the accoun�ng policies and updates to the informa�on disclosed in Note 4 Material accoun�ng 

policies in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accoun�ng policies are material for 
disclosure. 

 
3.2 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve
 
 The following standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, beginning on or 

a�er the date men�oned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either not 
relevant to the Company's opera�ons or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial 
statements other than certain addi�onal  disclosures.

"Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' and IFRS Prac�ce 
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of Accoun�ng Policies"
 
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and
Errors' - Defini�on of Accoun�ng Es�mates
 
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and 
Liabili�es arising from a single transac�on
 
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary excep�on to the requirements 
regarding deferred tax assets and liabili�es related to pillar two income taxes

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023
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 IFRS 1 'First-�me Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from July 01, 
2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 

  
 IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been no�fied by the IASB to be effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 

January 1, 2023. However SECP has no�fied the �meframe for the adop�on of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 
01, 2026. 

  
 IFRS 18 'Presenta�on and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 2027. 

However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP. 
  
 IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 2027. 

However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP. 
  
4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 
  
 The material accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on of these financial statements are set out below. These 

accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 
  
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents 
  
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original 

maturi�es of three months or less. 
  

 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Supplier finance 
arrangements

 
 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Amendments 

regarding the classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments
 
 Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding the 

classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments
 
 Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee 

subsequently measures sale and leaseback transac�ons
 
 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Classifica�on of 

liabili�es as current or non-current
 
 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Non-current 

liabili�es with covenants
 
 Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements
 
 Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of 

Exchangeability
 
 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

"Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' and IFRS Prac�ce 
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of Accoun�ng Policies"
 
Amendments to IAS 8 'Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and
Errors' - Defini�on of Accoun�ng Es�mates
 
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and 
Liabili�es arising from a single transac�on
 
Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary excep�on to the requirements 
regarding deferred tax assets and liabili�es related to pillar two income taxes

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026
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4.2 Financial instruments 
  
4.2.1 Financial assets 
  
 Financials assets are classified into appropriate categories at amor�zed cost, fair value through other comprehensive 

income and at fair value through profit or loss.The management determines the classifica�on of financial assets into 
categories based on fund’s business model for managing the financial and the contractual terms of the cash flows. 

4.2.1.1 Classifica�on 
  
4.2.1.1.1 Equity Instruments 
 On ini�al recogni�on of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to present 

subsequent changes in fair value in OCI. This elec�on is made on an investment-by-investment basis. An equity 
instrument held for trading purposes or in which FVOCI elec�on is not taken is  classified as measured at FVTPL. Given 
the objec�ves of the Fund, all investments have been classified as FVTPL. 

  
4.2.1.1.2 Debt Instruments 
  
 Amor�zed cost 
  
 A financial asset is measured at amor�sed cost if it meets both of the following condi�ons and is not designated as at 

FVTPL: 
  
 - it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
  
 - its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on 
  the principal amount outstanding.
 
 All financial assets not classified as measured at amor�sed cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On ini�al 

recogni�on, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured 
at amor�sed cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accoun�ng mismatch that would 
otherwise arise. 

  
 Fair value through profit or loss 
  
 A financial asset is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transac�on costs that are directly 

a�ributable to its acquisi�on. 
  
 Subsequent, the financial measured at: 
  
 Debt investments at amor�sed cost 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve interest method. The amor�sed cost is 

reduced by impairment losses. Interest / markup income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
recognised in income statement. 

  
 Debt investments at FVOCI 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the effec�ve interest 

method and impairment are recognised in income statement. Other net gains and losses are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. On derecogni�on, gains and losses accumulated in other comprehensive income are reclassified 
to income statement. 

  
 Debt investments at FVTPL 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest / markup income calculated using the effec�ve interest 

method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in income statement. 
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 Equity instruments at FVOCI 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at their fair values. Gain/loss on remeasument are recognised in other 

comprehensive income and are never recycled to income statement. Dividends are recognised in income statement 
when the right of the payment has been established, except when the Fund benefits from such proceeds as a recovery 
of part of the cost of the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not 
subject to an impairment assessment. 

  
 Equity investments at FVTPL 
  
 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in income statement unless 

the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 
  
4.2.1.2 Regular way purchase and sale of financial asset 
  
 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Fund commits to 

purchase or sell the asset. 
  
4.2.1.3 Derecogni�on 
  
 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have 

been transferred and the Fund has transferred substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership. 
  
4.2.2 Impairment of financial assets 
  
 In rela�on to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an en�ty to account for expected credit losses and 

changes in those expected credit losses at each repor�ng date to reflect changes in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on. In 
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized. 

  
 The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pa�ern of deteriora�on or 

improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or 
provision depends on the extent of credit deteriora�on since ini�al recogni�on. Under the general approach, there are 
two measurement bases: 

  
 - 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from ini�al recogni�on) as long as there is no significant 
  deteriora�on in credit quality.
  
 - Life�me ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an individual 
  or collec�ve basis.
  
 The Fund's financial assets include mainly bank balances,  investments and other receivables. 
  
4.2.3 Financial liabili�es 
  
 All financial liabili�es are recognised at the �me when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. These are ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amor�sed cost. A financial liability is 
derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 

  
4.2.4 Offse�ng of financial assets and liabili�es 
  
 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabili�es 

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le on a net 
basis or realise the assets and se�le the liabili�es simultaneously. 
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4.3 Provisions 
  
 Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events, it is 

probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a 
reliable es�mate of the amount of obliga�on can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the 
current best es�mate. 

  
4.4 Taxa�on 
  
 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of part I of second schedule to the income Tax 

Ordinance,2001. The Fund is also exempt from the  provisions of sec�on 113 (minimum tax)  under clause 11A of Part IV 
of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.  

  
4.5 Proposed distribu�ons 
  
 Distribu�ons declared subsequent to the year end repor�ng date are considered as non-adjus�ng events and are 

recognised in the financial statements in the year in which such distribu�ons are declared. 
  
4.6 Issuance and redemp�on of units 
  
 Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applica�ons received by 

the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close 
of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transac�on costs and any provision for du�es and charges, 
inapplicable. 

  
 Units redeemed are recorded at the redemp�on price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemp�on 

applica�ons during business hours of that day. The redemp�on price represents the net assets value per unit as of the 
close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any du�es, taxes, charges on redemp�on and any 
provision for transac�on costs, if applicable. Redemp�on of units is recorded on acceptance of applica�on for 
redemp�on. 

  
4.7 Net asset value per unit 
  
 The Net Asset Value (NAV) per unit, as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabili�es, is calculated by dividing the net 

assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end. 
  
4.8 Revenue recogni�on  
  
 - Realised capital  gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date at 
  which the transac�on takes place.
  
 - Mark-up / profit / return on Government securi�es, bank profits and investment in debt securi�es are recognized 
  using the effec�ve interest method.
  
 - Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value 
  through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.
  
 - Dividend income from equity securi�es is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established. 
  
4.9 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons 
  
 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons are based at arm's length at normal commercial rates on the same 

terms and condi�ons as applicable to third party transac�ons. 
  
 Remunera�on to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provision of NBFC 

Rules, NBFC Regula�ons and the Trust Deed respec�vely. 
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5.1 This includes balances of Rs.2.471 million, Rs.3.97 million & Rs.5.689 million (June 30, 2023: Rs.1.14 million, Rs.17.07 
million & Rs.21.61 million) of equity sub-fund, debt sub-fund and money market sub-fund respec�vely placed with Habib 
Bank Limited (a related party), during the year these accounts carried profit at the rates ranging between 17.50% to 
21.51% (June 30, 2023: 13.50% to 19.51%) respec�vely. During the year other savings accounts of the Fund carried profit 
at the rates ranging between 17.5% to 22.95% (June 30, 2023: 10% to 21.85%) per annum. 

6.1 Fair value through profit or loss Listed securi�es - Equity Sub-Fund    
     
6.1 Held by Equity Sub-Fund 

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note ------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------

5 Balances with banks

Local currency
Saving accounts 5.1 3,879        403,682      569,523          977,084      2,864        130,298     37,880            171,042      

3,879        403,682      569,523          977,084      2,864        130,298     37,880            171,042      

TotalTotal

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market Total
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note --------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -------------------------------------------

6 INVESTMENTS

At fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securi�es 6.1 94,743      -             -                  94,743        52,645      -                 52,645        

Government securi�es:
Market Treasury Bills 6.2.1 -            60,274        378,914          439,188      -            13,436       331,094          344,530      
Pakistan Investment Bond 6.2.2 -            342,182      -                  342,182      -            -             234,436          234,436      

-              
- GOP Ijarah Sukuk 155,605     155,605      
Term Finance Cer�ficates and Sukuk Bonds 6.2.3 76,475        90,000            166,475      -            74,670       93,000            167,670      

94,743      478,931      468,914          1,042,588   52,645      243,711     658,530          954,886      

Total

June 30, 2024 June 30,2023

As at
July 1,
2023

Purchases
during the

year

Bonus shares 
issued

during the
year

Right shares 
purchased / 

subscribed during 
the year

Sales
during the

year

As at
June 30, 

2024

Carrying
value as at June 

30, 2024

Market
value as at June 

30, 2024

Unrealized 
(diminu�on)/appr
ecia�on as at June 

30,2024

Net
assets of the

sub fund

Investments of sub 
fund

 Percentage
of paid up

capital of the
investee

company held 

AUTOMOBILE ASSEMBLER
Honda Atlas Cars Pakistan Limited                               -                        77,930                               -                                 -                        69,400                        8,530                        2,193                        2,418                           225 2.49% 2.55% 0.60%
Indus Motor Company Limited                               -                          1,880                               -                                 -                          1,567                           313                           324                           495                           171 0.51% 0.52% 0.00%
Millat Tractors Limited                               -                          3,000                        3,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pak Suzuki Motor Co. Limited                               -                          1,700                        1,700                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sazgar Engineering  Works Limited                               -                        14,600                      14,040                           560                           204                           466                           262 0.48% 0.49% 0.09%

                              -                        99,110                               -                                 -                        89,707                        9,403                        2,721                        3,379                           658 3.48% 3.6% 0.7%
AUTOMOBILE PARTS & ACCESSORIES

 Baluchistan Wheels Limited                               -                        20,000                               -                                 -                          2,000                      18,000                        2,706                        2,340                          (366) 2.41% 2.47% 13.50%
 Panther Tyres Limited                               -                        43,500                               -                                 -                        39,000                        4,500                           173                           170                              (3) 0.18% 0.18% 0.00%

                              -                        63,500                               -                                 -                        41,000                      22,500                        2,879                        2,510                          (369) 2.59% 2.65% 13.50%
CEMENT

Cherat Cement Company Limited                      18,700                      51,700                               -                                 -                        70,400                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
D. G. Khan Cement Co. Limited- (6.1.2)                               -                     226,293                               -                                 -                     158,000                      68,293                        5,086                        6,165                        1,079 6.34% 6.51% 1.56%
Fauji Cement Company Limited.                               -                     627,500                               -                                 -                     366,000                   261,500                        5,262                        5,991                           729 6.16% 6.32% 1.07%
Lucky Cement Limited                               -                        11,700                               -                                 -                        11,700                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited -(6.1.2)                   133,000                   587,000                               -                                 -                     600,544                   119,456                        4,371                        4,539                           168 4.67% 4.79% 1.14%
Pioneer Cement Limited                               -                     157,160                               -                                 -                     133,460                      23,700                        2,938                        3,997                        1,059 4.11% 4.22% 1.04%
KOHC - Kohat Cement Limited                        5,966                        5,966                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00%

                  151,700                1,667,319                               -                                 -                  1,346,070                   472,949                      17,657                      20,692                        3,035 21.28% 21.84% 4.81%
CHEMICAL

Ghani Glass Mills Limited                               -                        29,000                               -                                 -                        29,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
ICL - ITTEHAD CHEMICALS LIMITED                      10,000                               -                        10,000                           450                           471                              21 0.48% 0.50% 1.00%

                              -                        39,000                               -                                 -                        29,000                      10,000                           450                           471                              21 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
ENGINEERING

Interna�onal Steels Limited                               -                     164,100                               -                                 -                     153,400                      10,700                           733                           905                           172 0.93% 0.96% 0.25%
Mughal Iron and Steel Industries Limited - (6.1.1)                      22,000                      47,900                               -                                 -                        57,724                      12,176                           770                        1,132                           362 1.16% 1.19% 0.36%
AGHA - AGHA STEEL INDUSTRIES LTD                      65,005                               -                        65,005                           670                           651                            (19) 0.67% 0.69% 1.07%
ASL - AISHA STEEL MILLS LIMITED                      91,000                               -                        91,000                           634                           670                              36 0.69% 0.71% 0.98%
ASTL - AMRELI STEELS LIMITED                        4,000                        4,000                               -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                     22,000                   372,005                               -                                 -                     215,124                   178,881                        2,807                        3,358                           551 2.09% 2.15% 0.61%

Market value as a percentage of

Name of the investee company

------------------------------------------------ (Number of shares) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'(Rupees '000)-------------------------------- ----------------------------- (%) ------------------------------------
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As at
July 1,
2023

Purchases
during the

year

Bonus shares 
issued

during the
year

Right shares 
purchased / 

subscribed during 
the year

Sales
during the

year

As at
June 30, 

2024

Carrying
value as at June 

30, 2024

Market
value as at June 

30, 2024

Unrealized 
(diminu�on)/appr
ecia�on as at June 

30,2024

Net
assets of the

sub fund

Investments of sub 
fund

 Percentage
of paid up

capital of the
investee

company held 

FERTILIZERS
Engro Fer� l izers Limited (6.1.2)                      62,600                   110,644                               -                                 -                     173,244                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engro Corpora�on Limited                        4,200                      49,150                               -                                 -                        53,350                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Fer� l izer Bin Qasim Limited                               -                     100,000                               -                                 -                        71,500                      28,500                           928                        1,011                              83 1.04% 1.07% 0.22%
Fauji Fer� l izer Company Limited                      52,000                      95,040                               -                                 -                     147,040                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                  118,800                   354,834                               -                                 -                     445,134                      28,500                           928                        1,011                              83 1.04% 1.07% 0.22%
COMMERCIAL BANKS

Askari Bank Limited                               -                        76,000                               -                                 -                        76,000                               -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited -(6.1.2)                   319,500                   339,000                               -                                 -                     617,500                      41,000                           964                           913                            (51) 0.94% 0.96% 0.37%
Faysal Bank Limited -(6.1.1)                           840                   100,000                               -                                 -                     100,000                           840                              22                              44                              22 0.05% 0.05% 0.01%
Habib Bank Limited (a related party)                      32,500                   219,700                               -                                 -                     235,500                      16,700                        1,923                        2,071                           148 2.13% 2.19% 0.00%
MCB Bank Limited                               -                     143,120                               -                                 -                     134,300                        8,820                        1,779                        2,002                           223 2.06% 2.11% 0.00%
Meezan Bank Limited                               -                        97,700                               -                                 -                        90,269                        7,431                        1,435                        1,779                           344 1.83% 1.88% 0.04%
United Bank Limited - (6.1.2)                      18,000                   101,700                               -                                 -                        91,100                      28,600                        5,135                        7,328                        2,193 7.53% 7.73% 0.00%
Bank Al-Habib Limited                               -                     157,138                               -                                 -                     130,000                      27,138                        2,253                        3,044                           791 3.13% 3.21% 0.00%
Bank Alfalah Ltd                               -                        35,000                               -                                 -                        19,600                      15,400                           803                        1,048                           245 1.08% 1.11% 0.00%
Habib Metropolitan Bank                               -                        32,500                               -                                 -                        25,100                        7,400                           433                           508                              75 0.52% 0.54% 0.00%

                  370,840                1,301,858                               -                                 -                  1,519,369                   153,329                      14,747                      18,737                        3,990 17.67% 18.13% 0.42%
FOOD AND PERSONAL CARE PRODUCTS

Unity Foods Limited                               -                        84,500                               -                                 -                        84,500                               -                                 -                                 -   -                           0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Murree Brewery Company Limited                               -                          6,500                               -                                 -                          1,000                        5,500                        1,926                        2,662                           736 2.74% 2.81% 0.02%

                              -                        91,000                               -                                 -                        85,500                        5,500                        1,926                        2,662                           736 2.74% 2.81% 0.02%
GLASS & CERAMICS

Tariq Glass Limited                               -                        75,532                               -                                 -                        67,532                        8,000                           856                           932                              76 0.96% 0.98% 0.46%
                              -                        75,532                               -                                 -                        67,532                        8,000                           856                           932                              76 0.96% 0.98% 0.46%

INSURANCE
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited                               -                          9,500                               -                                 -                          9,500                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                              -                          9,500                               -                                 -                          9,500                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Market value as a percentage of

Name of the investee company

------------------------------------------------ (Number of shares) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------'(Rupees '000)-------------------------------- ----------------------------- (%) ------------------------------------
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LEATHER & TANNERIES
Service Global Footware Limited                               -                        10,000                               -                                 -                        10,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                              -                        10,000                               -                                 -                        10,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
OIL & GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES

Oil & Gas Dev. Co - (6.1.12)                      58,200                   239,900                               -                                 -                     252,566                      45,534                        5,600                        6,164                           564 6.34% 6.51% 0.11%
Pak Petroleum Limited - (6.1.2)                      86,000                   260,750                               -                                 -                     296,800                      49,950                        5,128                        5,850                           722 6.01% 6.17% 0.18%

                  144,200                   500,650                               -                                 -                     549,366                      95,484                      10,728                      12,014                        1,286 12.35% 12.68% 0.29%

OIL & GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Pakistan State Oil  Company Limited                      31,219                   100,600                               -                                 -                     104,619                      27,200                        4,397                        4,521                           124 4.65% 4.77% 0.58%
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited-(6.1.2)                      51,500                   451,400                               -                                 -                     406,800                      96,100                        5,912                        6,099                           187 6.27% 6.44% 1.52%
A�ock Petroleum Limited                               -                          2,000                               -                                 -                          2,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Shell  Pakistan Limited                               -                        26,000                               -                                 -                        26,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sui Southern Gas Co. Limited                               -                        30,500                               -                                 -                        30,500                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
MARI - Mari Gas Company Limited                           190                           190                               -   

                     82,719                   610,690                               -                                 -                     570,109                   123,300                      10,309                      10,620                           311 10.92% 11.21% 2.10%
PHARMACEUTICALS

Highnoon Laboratories Limited - (6.1.1)                              56                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -                                56                              28                              40                              12 0.04% 0.04% 0.01%
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited                               -                          8,900                               -                                 -                          4,960                        3,940                           825                           983                           158 1.01% 1.04% 0.91%
Searle Pakistan Limited - (6.1.1)                           673                      85,000                               -                                 -                        69,001                      16,672                           963                           952                            (11) 0.98% 1.00% 0.33%
AGP Limited                               -                          9,000                               -                                 -                          9,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                          729                   102,900                               -                                 -                        82,961                      20,668                        1,816                        1,975                           159 2.03% 2.08% 1.25%
PAPER & BOARD

Century Paper and Board Mills Limited                               -                     144,500                               -                     115,100                      29,400                           853                           881 28                            0.91% 0.93% 0.73%
                              -                     144,500                               -                     115,100                      29,400                           853                           881                              28 0.91% 0.93% 0.73%

POWER GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION 
Nishat Chunian Power Limited                               -                     269,000                               -                                 -                     269,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The Hub Power Company Limited -(6.1.2)                      67,000                   168,800                               -                                 -                     184,480                      51,320                        6,504                        8,369                        1,865 8.61% 8.83% 0.40%
K-Electric Limited                               -                     651,000                               -                                 -                     466,000                   185,000                        1,037                           857                          (180) 0.89% 0.90% 0.19%
Lalpir Power Limited                               -                        38,000                               -                                 -                        38,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Power Limited                               -                        77,112                               -                                 -                        77,112                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                     67,000                1,203,912                               -                                 -                  1,034,592                   236,320                        7,541                        9,226                        1,685 9.50% 9.73% 0.59%
REFINERY

Na�onal Refinery Limited                               -                        70,600                               -                                 -                        67,390                        3,210                           902                           852                            (50) 0.88% 0.90% 0.40%
A�ock Refinery Limited                               -                        79,970                               -                                 -                        77,510                        2,460                           960                           865                            (95) 0.89% 0.91% 0.23%

                              -                     150,570                               -                                 -                     144,900                        5,670                        1,862                        1,717                          (145) 1.77% 1.81% 0.63%
TEXTILE COMPOSITE

 Gul Ahmed Tex� le Mills Limited                               -                        30,000                               -                                 -                        30,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
                              -                        30,000                               -                                 -                        30,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 3.62% 1.26%

TECHNOLOGY AND COMMUNICATION
Air Link Communica�on Limited                               -                        24,500                               -                                 -                        24,500                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakistan Telecommunica�on Company                               -                        28,000                               -                                 -                        28,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Systems Limited                        2,500                        2,800                               -                                 -                          5,300                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
TPL Trakker Limited                   358,000                               -                                 -                                 -                     218,000                   140,000                        1,928                           868                      (1,060) 0.90% 0.92% 0.00%
TRG Pakistan Limited                               -                          3,500                        3,500                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

                  360,500                      58,800                               -                                 -                     279,300                   140,000                        1,928                           868                      (1,060) 0.90% 0.92% 0.00%
MISCELLANEOUS

 Pak Aluminum Beverage Cans Limited -                                                19,000 -                           -                           19,000                                                  -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
 Pakistan Hotels Developers Limited -                                                  1,000 -                           -                                                  1,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
TPL Proper�es Limited -                                                  7,000 -                           -                                                  7,000                               -                                 -                                 -                                 -   0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Exide Pakistan Ltd. -                                                  2,300 -                           -                                                         -                          2,300                           963                        1,355                           392 1.40% 1.43% 0.00%
AL-Ghazi  Tractors Ltd. -                                                  3,900 -                           -                                                         -                          3,900                        1,461                        1,361                          (100) 1.40% 1.44% 0.00%
Abbot Laboatories (Pakistan) Ltd. -                                                  1,800 -                           -                                                     471                        1,329                           595                           974                           379 1.01% 1.03% 0.00%

                     35,000                               -                        27,471                        7,529                        3,019                        3,690                           671 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Total as at June 30, 2024                1,318,488                6,920,680                               -                                 -                  6,691,735                1,547,433                      83,027                      94,743                      11,716 90.2% 96% 27.59%
Total as at June 30, 2023                2,242,920                4,940,634                           141                               -                  5,865,207                1,318,488                      53,737                      52,645                      (1,092)

Name of the investee company
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6.1.1 These investments include gross bonus shares as per Fund's en�tlement declared by the investee companies. Finance 
Act, 2014 has brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the 
shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be applied on value of bonus shares determined 
on the basis of day end price on the first day of closure of books. The tax is to be collected at source by the investee 
company which shall be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income.  However, the Management 
Company of the Fund jointly with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Associa�on of Pakistan 
(MUFAP), has filed a pe��on in Honorable Sindh High Court (the court) to declare the amendments brought in Income 
Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for collec�ve investment schemes as null and void and not 
applicable on the funds based on the premise of exemp�on given to mutual funds under clause 99 of Part I of the Second 
Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Court has granted stay order �ll the final outcome of the case. 
However, the investee company(s) has withheld the share equivalent to 5% of bonus announcement of the Fund having 
aggregate fair market value of Rs.0.194  million at June 30, 2024 (2023: Rs. 0.123 million) and not yet deposited on CDC 
account of department of Federal Board of Revenue. The final outcome of the case is pending however, the 
Management Company is of the view that the decision will be in the favor and accordingly has recorded the bonus shares 
on gross basis at fair value in its investments at year end.       

6.1.2 As at June 30, 2024 the Fund has pledged shares with the Na�onal Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) as 
collateral for guaranteeing se�lement of the Fund's trades in accordance with Circular no. 11 dated October 23, 2007 
issued by the SECP, of following companies 

6.2 Investment in Government Securi�es - at fair value through profit or loss 

June 30,2024 June 30,2023 June 30,2024 June 30,2023
--------------Number of Shares----------- --------------Rupees in 0000-----------

The Hub Power Company Limited 20,000                    -                           3,260                      -                           
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 30,000                    -                           660                          -                           
D.G Khan Cement Company Limited 50,000                    -                           4,500                      -                           
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 50,000                    -                           1,900                      -                           
Oil  & Gas Development company limited 37,500                    17,500                    5,063                      1,365                      
Pakistan Petroleum Limited 40,000                    50,500                    4,680                      2,987                      
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited 25,000                    -                           4,150                      -                           
Sui Northern Gas Piplines Limited 60,000                    50,000                    3,780                      1,822                      
United Bank Limited 15,500                    15,500                    3,968                      1,969                      
Engro Fer� l izers Limited -                           21,000                    -                           1,733                      

328,000                  154,500                  31,961                    9,876                      

Held by Debt Sub-Fund

6.2.1 Market Treasury Bills
Treasury Bill - 3 months 15-Jun-23 14,000                   -                          14,000                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 16-Nov-23 -                          250,000                 250,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 16-Nov-23 -                          100,000                 100,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 16-Nov-23 -                          100,000                 100,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 19-Oct-23 -                          100,000                 100,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 19-Oct-23 -                          50,000                   50,000                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 19-Oct-23 -                          100,000                 100,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 21-Sep-22 -                          139,000                 139,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 30-Nov-22 -                          150,000                 150,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 30-Nov-22 -                          150,000                 150,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 11-Jan-24 -                          100,000                 100,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 13-Jul-23 -                          115,000                 115,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 13-Jun-24 -                          200,000                 200,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 13-Jun-24 -                          130,000                 130,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 16-May-24 -                          150,000                 150,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 02-May-24 -                          80,000                   10,000                   70,000                   59,889                   60,274                   12.59% 6.63%
Treasury Bill - 3 months 30-Apr-24 -                          150,000                 150,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         

Total as at June 30, 2024 14,000                   2,064,000             2,008,000             70,000                   59,889                   60,274                   12.59% 6.63%
Total As at June 30, 2023 -                          1,756,100             1,742,100             14,000                   13,455                   13,436                   5.51% 3.54%
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Held by Debt Sub-Fund

6.2.2 Pakistan Investment Bonds
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 2 Years 06-Apr-23 -                          200,000                 200,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 3 Years 04-Jul-23 -                          225,000                 225,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 5 Years 13-Oct-23 -                          75,000                   -                          75,000                   63,557                   64,133                   13.39% 7.06%
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 3 Years 19-Oct-23 -                          170,000                 170,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          0%
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 5 Years 19-Oct-23 -                          450,000                 450,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          0%
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 3 Years 15-Feb-24 -                          200,000                 6,000                     194,000                 182,434                 183,282                 38.27% 20.18%
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 5 Years 17-Jan-24 -                          100,000                 -                          100,000                 94,928                   94,767                   19.79% 10.43%

Total as at June 30, 2024 -                          1,420,000             1,051,000             369,000                 340,919                 342,182                 71.45% 37.67%
Total As at June 30, 2023 -                          1,325,000             1,325,000             -                          -                          -                          0.00% 0.00%

6.2.3 GOP Ijara Sukuk Cer�ficates
GOP Ijarah Sukuk 1 Year 22-May-23 155,500                 -                          155,500                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
GOP Ijarah Sukuk 1 Year 17-Apr-23 -                          185,000                 185,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         

Total as at June 30, 2024 155,500                 185,000                 340,500                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Total As at June 30, 2023 -                          420,000                 264,500                 155,500                 155,500                 155,605                 63.85% 40.99%

Issue date
Face value  Carrying Value 

as at June 30, 
2024 
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investments of 

 Net assets of 
sub-fund 

---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------- -------------------%-------------------

Market value as 
at June 30, 2024

 Market value as a percentage 

Held by Money Market Sub-Fund

Issue date

6.2.1 Market Treasury Bills
Treasury Bill - 6 months 27-Mar-23 -                          526,000                 526,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 20-Apr-23 -                          13,000                   13,000                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 04-May-23 -                          21,000                   21,000                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 01-Jun-23 -                          76,500                   76,500                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 15-Jun-23 345,000                 77,000                   422,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 22-Jun-23 -                          1,192,000             1,192,000             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 10-Aug-23 -                          66,200                   66,200                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 07-Sep-23 -                          498,000                 498,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 21-Sep-23 -                          405,500                 405,500                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 05-Oct-23 -                          9,000                     9,000                     -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 19-Oct-23 -                          160,000                 160,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 16-Nov-23 -                          254,000                 254,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 30-Nov-23 -                          200,000                 200,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 11-Jan-24 -                          125,000                 125,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 13-Jul-23 -                          562,000                 562,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 15-Jun-23 -                          375,000                 375,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 6 months 02-Nov-23 -                          8,500                     8,500                     -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 28-Dec-23 -                          740,000                 740,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 3 months 07-Mar-24 -                          390,000                 390,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Treasury Bill - 12 months 16-Nov-23 -                          4,800                     -                          4,800                     4,453                     4,465                     0.95% 0.43%
Treasury Bill - 6 months 18-Apr-24 -                          10,500                   -                          10,500                   9,900                     9,910                     2.11% 0.95%
Treasury Bill - 12 months 02-Nov-23 -                          44,000                   -                          44,000                   41,195                   41,213                   8.79% 3.96%
Treasury Bill - 3 months 21-Mar-24 -                          15,000                   15,000                   -                          -                          -                          
Treasury Bill - 12 months 26-Jun-23 -                          18,000                   18,000                   -                          -                          -                          
Treasury Bill - 6 months 30-May-24 -                          350,000                 -                          350,000                 322,822                 323,326                 68.95% 31.04%
Treasury Bill - 3 months 04-Apr-24 -                          85,000                   85,000                   -                          -                          -                          
Treasury Bill - 3 months 07-Feb-24 -                          50,000                   50,000                   -                          -                          -                          

Total as at June 30, 2024 345,000                 6,276,000             6,211,700             409,300                 378,370                 378,914                 80.80% 36.38%
Total As at June 30, 2023 -                          11,304,680           10,959,680           345,000                 331,543                 331,094                 50.28% 47%

6.2.2 Pakistan Investment Bonds
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 2 Years 26-Aug-21 235,000                 -                          235,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 3 Years 30-Dec-21 -                          540,000                 540,000                 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Pakistan Investment Bonds - 10 Years 17-Jul-14 -                          1,282,700             1,282,700             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         

Total as at June 30, 2024 235,000                 1,822,700             2,057,700             -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Total As at June 30, 2023 -                          684,100                 449,100                 235,000                 234,321                 234,436                 35.60% 33.28%
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6.2.3 Term Finance Cer�ficates and Sukuk Bonds - at fair value through profit or loss 

8.1 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of part I of second schedule to the income Tax 
Ordinance,2001.Further, the Fund is exempt  from withholding of tax under sec�on 150, 150A, 151 and 233 of ITO 2001. 
           

 The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular “C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/ 2008-Vol.II- 66417-R” dated May 12, 2015, 
made it mandatory to obtain exemp�on cer�ficates under sec�on 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland 
Revenue (CIR). However, various withholding agents have deducted advance tax under sec�on 151 of ITO 2001. The 
Management Company is confident that the same shall be refunded a�er filing refund applica�on. 

Held by Debt Sub-Fund

Issue date
Total 

Investments
Net Assets

Commercial Banks
Askari Bank Limited 17-Mar-20                               -                                30                               -   30                           28,650                   29,850                   6.23% 3.29%
Bank Alfalah Limited 15-Jan-21                        2,400                               -                          2,400 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Soneri Bank Limited 26-Dec-22                           200 -                                                        -   200                         19,581                   19,814                   4.14% 2.18%

                       2,600                              30                        2,400                           230                     48,231                     49,664 10.37% 5.47%
Mul�u�li�es
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 130623 13-Jun-23                              35                               -                                35 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
K-Electric Limited - 090223 09-Feb-23                                3                               -                                  3 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 260324 26-Mar-24                               -                                25                               -   25                           25,000                   25,000                   5.22% 2.75%

                             38                              25                              38                              25                     25,000                     25,000 5.22% 2.75%
Miscellaneous
OBS AGP Limited 15-Jul-21                              20                               -                                20 -                          -                          -                          0.00% 0.00%
TPL Trakker Limited 30-Mar-21 4                                                            -                                 -   4                              1,775                     1,811                     0.38% 0.20%
Jahangir Siddiqui and Company Limited 06-Mar-21 2,000                                                   -                          2,000 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

                       2,024                               -                          2,020                                4                        1,775                        1,811 0.38% 0.20%
Total as at June 30, 2024                        4,662                              55                        4,458                           259                     75,006                     76,475 15.96% 8.42%

Total As at June 30, 2023 4,546                     298                         182                         4,662                     74,867                   74,670                   30.64% 19.67%

Held by Money Market Sub-Fund

Mul�u�li�es
K-Electric Limited 090223 09-Feb-23                              10                               -                                10 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
K-Electric Limited 180523 18-May-23                              18                               -                                18 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
China Power Hub Genera�on Company - 280323 28-Mar-23                              35                               -                                35 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 130623 13-Jun-23                              30                               -                                30 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 150823 15-Aug-23                               -                                34                              34 -                          -                          -                          -                          -                         
Lucky Electric Power Company Limited - 260324 26-Mar-24                               -                                90                               -   90                           90,000                   90,000                   19.19% 8.64%

Total as at June 30, 2024                              93                           124                           127                              90                     90,000                     90,000 19.19% 8.64%
Total As at June 30, 2023 25                           185                         117                         93                           93,000                   93,000                   14.12% 13.21%

6.2.4 Le�er of placcement - at amor�zed cost

Held by Money Market Sub-Fund

Maturity Date
Total 

Investments
Net Assets

Pak brunei investment company limited 15-Sep-23 -                          60,000                   60,000                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

-                          60,000                   60,000                   -                          -                          -                          -                          -                          

Market value as 
at June 30, 2024

Market value as a percentage ofCarrying Value 
as at June 30, 

2024
Name of the Investee Company

As at July 1, 2023 Purchases 
during the 

period

Sales / Matured 
during the 

period

 As at June 30, 
2024

Name of the Investee Company
As at July 1, 2023 Purchases 

during the 
period

Sales / Matured 
during the 

period

 As at June 30, 
2024

Carrying Value 
as at June 30, 

2024

Market value as 
at June 30, 2024

Market value as a percentage of

------------------------------- (Number of cer�ficates) --------------------------------------------(Rupees in '000)------------- -------------------%-------------------

----------------- (Number of cer�ficates) -------------------- -------(Rupees in '000)--- --------------%---------------

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note ------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------
7 DIVIDEND AND PROFIT RECEIVABLE

Dividend receivable 67                      -                               -                    67                                7                               -                 -                        7                       
Profit receviable on saving account 53                      5,537                           2,411                 8,001                           48                             1,899             2,569                     4,516                
Profit on Term finance cer�ficates and sukuk bonds -                     1,969                           5,226                 7,195                           -                            3,741             3,755                     7,496                
Markup on government securi�es -                     18,400                         -                    18,400                         -                            1,470             5,043                     6,513                

120                    25,906                         7,637                 33,663                         55                             7,110             11,367                   18,532              

8  ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security Deposit with Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited 100                    100                              100                    300                              100                           100                100                        300                   
Security deposit with Na�onal Clearing Company of -                              -                    
 Pakistan Limited 2,500                 -                               -                    2,500                           2,500                        -                 -                        2,500                
Receivable against sale of investment -                     -                               -                    -                              110                           -                 -                        110                   
Advance tax 8.1 -                     314                              71 385                              73                             663 84 820                   
Receivable from Pension Fund Manager 53                      -                               45 98                                29 33 45 107                   
Other Receivables 29                      255                              -                    284                              -                            -                 -                        -                    

2,682                 669                              216                    3,567                           2,812                        796                229                        3,837                

June 30, 2023

Total

June 30, 2024

Total
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9.1 As per Rule 67F of the NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, Pension Fund Manager may charge variable fee or fixed fee or the 
combina�on of both which shall not exceed the limit disclosed in the offering document, further subject to the guidelines 
as may be issued by the Commission from �me to �me.       
     

 Based on offering document, the fee is being charged at the rate of 1.5% of the average annual net assets accordingly. 
The fee is payable monthly in arrears.         
           

9.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2023: 13%) on the remunera�on of 
the Management Company through Sinclh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

10.1 The Trustee is en�tled to a monthly remunera�on for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of the Trust 
Deed as per the tariff specified there in, based on the daily Net Asset Value (NAV) of the Fund. The remunera�on is paid 
to the trustee monthly in arrears.           
            

 Based on the Trust Deed, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund as at June 30, 2024 is as follows:   
           

 Net assets     Tariff per annum      
  

 Up to Rs. 1,000 million    Rs. 0.3 million or 0.15% of NAV, whichever is higher  
Exceeding Rs. 1,000 million up to Rs. 3,000 million Rs. 1.5 million plus 0.10% of NAV exceeding Rs. 1,000 million 
Exceeding Rs. 3,000 million up to Rs. 6,000 million Rs. 3.5 million plus 0.08% of NAV exceeding Rs, 3,000 million 
Exceeding Rs. 6,000 million   Rs. 5.9 million plus 0.06% of NAV exceeding Rs. 6,000 million 
           

10.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax (SST) at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2023: 13%) on the remunera�on of 
the Management Company through Sinclh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011. 

11.1 This represents annual fee payable to Securi�es And Exchange Commission of Pakistan in accordance with the Rule 36 of 
the VPS Rules whereby the Fund is required to pay SECP an amount equal to one thir�eth of 1% (June 30, 2023: one 
thir�eth of 1%) of average annual net asset value of each of the sub-fund.

Annual Report -2024

9

Remunera�on payable to the pension fund manager 9.1 103                    778                              946                    1,827                           69                             429                803                        1,301                
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remunera�on of the -
pension fund manager 9.2 12                      101                              123                    236                              9                               56                  104                        169                   

                     115                                879                  1,069 2063                              78                 485                         907                  1,470 

PAYABLE TO PENSION FUND MANAGER

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note ------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------

10.

Remunera�on payable to Trustee 10.1                       13                                  89                     108                               210 10                             48                  88                          146                   
Sindh Sales Tax Payable on remunera�on of the Trustee 10.2                         2                                  12                       14                                 28 1                               6                    11                          19                     

                      15                                101                     122                               238 11                             54                  99                          165                   

PAYABLE TO  TRUSTEE

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Total Total

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------

11.

Annual fee payable                       42                                203                     350 595                              27                             120                202                        349                   
                      42                                203                     350                               595                              27                 120                         202                     349 

 OF PAKISTAN

Total Total

June 30, 2024

PAYABLE TO SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION-

June 30, 2023
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12.1 "As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the remunera�on of 
the Pension Fund Manager has been applied effec�ve from June 13, 2013. The Pension Fund Manager is of the view that 
since the remunera�on is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy of FED results in double taxa�on, which 
does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a pe��on was collec�vely filed by the MUFAP along-with CDC with the 
Sindh High Court (SHC) on September 04, 2013. While disposing the above pe��on through order dated June 30, 2016, 
the SHC declared the said provisions to be ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from July 01, 2011. 
However, the tax authori�es subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, 
which is pending for the decision.

 The Finance Act, 2016 excluded the mutual funds from the levy of FED with effect from July 01, 2016. therefore, no 
provision is charged during the year ending June 30, 2024.

           
 However, since the appeal is pending in Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Pension Fund Manager has made a provision of 

FED on remunera�on of the Pension Fund Manager, aggrega�ng toRs. 0.763,0.878,0.836 million (2023: 
Rs.0.763,0.878,0.836  million), for Equity Sub-Fund, Debt Sub-Fund and Money Market Sub-Fund respec�vely. Had the 
provision not been made, the net asset value per unit of the Fund as at June 30, 2024 would have been higher by 
Rs.4.05,0.33,0.24 per unit (2023: Re. 4.01,0.64,0.29 per unit) for equity sub-fund, debt sub-fund and money market 
sub-fund respec�vely.

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS         

 There were no con�ngencies and commitments as at June 30, 2024. (June 30, 2023 : Nil)    
         

14 CONTRIBUTION TABLE         
          
 Contribu�on received during the period / year is as follows: 

Equity Debt Money Market Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note ------------------------------Rupees in '000--------------------------------
12. ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Auditors' remunera�on 66                      108                              156                    330                              24                             104                173                        301                   
Payable against redemp�on of units 217                    -                               2,146                 2,363                           51                             667                1,340                     2,058                
Payable to Na�onal Clearing Company of Pakistan 40                      -                               -                    40                                39                             -                 -                        39                     
Payable to Asset Management Company 2,500                 -                               2,500                           
Federal Excise  Duty Payable on Remunera�on of - 12.1
Pension Fund Manager 763                    878                              835                    2,476                           763                           878                836                        2,477                
Withholding tax payable -                     -                               -                    -                              10                             -                 -                        10                     
Others 31                      51                                23                      105                              6                               1                    -                        7                       

3,617                 1,037                           3,160                 7,814                           893                           1,650             2,349                     4,892                

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Total Total

From: Units Rupees in '000 Units Rupees in '000 Units Rupees in '000 Units Rupees in '000

Individuals 409,247             195,362                       1,729,808          565,915                       1,368,371          368,955                    3,507,426      1,130,232              

From: Units Rupees in '000 Units Rupees in '000 Units Rupees in '000 Units Rupees in '000

Individuals 63,028               19,123                         597,480             153,674                       1,798,100          398,593                    2,458,608      571,390                 

15. NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 190,261             1,362,202                    2,898,259          4,450,722                    426,826                    1,247,541      1,957,660              3,632,027         
Add: Units issued during the year 409,247             1,729,808                    1,368,371          3,507,426                    63,028                      597,480         1,798,100              2,458,608         
Less: units redeemed during the year (411,488)            (424,549)                      (748,024)           (1,584,061)                  (232,653)                   (446,149)        (994,059)               (1,672,861)
Realloca�on during the year -                     -                               -                    -                              (66,940)                     (36,670)          136,558                 32,948              
Total units in issue at the end of the year 188,020             2,667,461                    3,518,606          6,374,087                    190,261                    1,362,202      2,898,259              4,450,722         

June 30, 2024
TotalEquity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

TotalEquity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund
June 30, 2023

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund
Money Market 

Sub-Fund
 Total Equity Sub-Fund

Debt Sub-
Fund

Money Market 
Sub-Fund

 Total 
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17. TAXATION            

 The income of the fund is exempt from tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 
Ordinance, 2001. Further, the Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Sec�on 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A 
Part IV to Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001.       
           

18. EARNINGS PER UNIT           
           

 Earnings  per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed in these financial statements as in the opinion of the Management 
Company the determina�on of the cumula�ve weighted average number of outstanding units is not prac�cable.

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

20 TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS / RELATED PARTIES      
             
Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, Habib Bank Limited being 
the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, Collec�ve Investment 
Schemes and other Voluntary Pension Systems managed by the Pension Fund Manager, directors and officers of the 
Pension Fund Manager, directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership or vo�ng 
power of the units of the Fund or the capital of the Pension Fund Manager.     
             
Transac�ons with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in 
accordance with market rates.          
          

------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------
16. AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee 30                      80                                140                    250                              2                               85                  160                        247                   
Review of condensed interim financial informa�on 25                      48                                77                      150                              -                            40                  75                          115                   
Sales tax 5                        10                                15                      30                                1                               11                  21                          33                     
Out of pocket expenses 6                        12                                20                      38                                -                            12                  23                          35                     

66                      150                              252                    468                              3                               148                279                        430                   
 

June 30, 2023

Equity Sub-Fund
Debt Sub-

Fund
Money Market 

Sub-Fund
 Total 

June 30, 2024

Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund
Money Market 

Sub-Fund
 Total 

----------------------------------------------------------------Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------------------
Financial assets

Balances with banks -                                    3,879                     3,879                       -                                403,682                     403,682                 -                                 569,523               569,523                   
Investments 94,743                              -                        94,743                     478,931                        -                             478,931                 468,914                          -                       468,914                   
Dividend and profit receivable -                                    120                        120                          -                                25,906                       25,906                   -                                 7,637                   7,637                       
Receivable Against issuance of Units -                                    -                        -                           -                                1,464                         1,464                     -                                 -                       -                           
Advance Deposits and other receivable -                                    2,682                     2,682                       -                                355                            355                        -                                 145                      145                          

94,743                              6,681                     101,424                   478,931                        431,407                     910,338                 468,914                          577,305               1,046,219                

Financial liabili�es
Payable to Pension Fund Manager -                                    103                        103                          -                                778                            778                        -                                 946                      946                          
Payable to Trustee -                                    13                          13                            -                                89                              89                          -                                 108                      108                          
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                                    3,617                     3,617                       -                                1,037                         1,037                     -                                 3,160                   3,160                       

-                                    3,733                     3,733                       -                                1,904                         1,904                     -                                 4,214                   4,214                       

----------------------------------------------------------------Rupees in '000 ----------------------------------------------------------------
Financial assets

Bank balances -                                    2,864                     2,864                       -                                130,298                     130,298                 -                                 37,880                 37,880                     
Investments 52,645                              -                        52,645                     243,711                        -                             243,711                 658,530                          -                       658,530                   
Dividend and profit receivable -                                    55                          55                            -                                7,110                         7,110                     -                                 11,367                 11,367                     
Advance Deposits and other receivable -                                    2,739                     2,739                       -                                133                            133                        -                                 145                      145                          

52,645                              5,658                     58,303                     243,711                        137,541                     381,252                 658,530                          49,392                 707,922                   

Financial liabili�es
Payable to Pension Fund Manager -                                    69                          69                            -                                429                            429                        -                                 803                      803                          
Payable to Trustee -                                    10                          10                            -                                48                              48                          -                                 88                        88                            
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                                    120                        120                          -                                772                            772                        -                                 1,513                   1,513                       

-                                    199                        199                          -                                1,249                         1,249                     -                                 2,404                   2,404                       

At fair value through 
profit or loss 

Amor�sed cost

June 30, 2023

Par�cular

Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

At fair value through 
profit or loss 

Amor�sed cost Total Total
At fair value through 

profit or loss 
Amor�sed cost Total

Par�cular

Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

At fair value through 
profit or loss 

Amor�sed cost Total Total
At fair value through 

profit or loss 
Total

At fair value through 
profit or loss 

Amor�sed cost Amor�sed cost

June 30, 2024
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 Remunera�on payable to Pension Fund Manager and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the 
Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and the Trust Deed respec�vely.       
             
statements are as follows:  

20.1 Transac�ons during the period

Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
  Pension Fund Manager
Management fee inluding sales tax 1,362            6,727            11,647          19,736          1,265            3,034            4,227            8,526           

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Units redeemed Units -                     -                     -                     -                     122,239        -                -                122,239       
Amount of units redeemed -                     -                     -                     -                     37,955          -                -                37,955         
Bank charges 60                 80                 82                 222               27                 20                 24                 71                
Profit on bank deposits earned 17                 1,623            12,792          14,432          103               2,310            3,674            6,087           
Purchase of Pakistan Investment Bond -                -                1,260,972     1,260,972     -                -                -                -              
Sale of Pakistan Investment Bond -                -                1,261,204     1,261,204     -                -                -                -              
Purchase of T-Bills -                -                619,616        619,616        -                -                -                -              
Sale of T-Bills -                203,073        863,808        1,066,881     -                -                -                -              

Directors and Execu�ves of the Pension
  Fund Manager and their rela�ves

Directors and their rela�ves
Issuance of units Units -                -                19,530          19,530          3,393            -                -                3,393           
Amount of units issued -                -                4,915            4,915            1,000            -                -                1,000           
Redemp�on of Units Issued Units 387               603               706               1,696            -                -                -                1,107           
Amount of units redeemed 656               635               117               1,408            -                -                -                245              

Execu�ves and their rela�ves
Issuance of units Units -                -                47,659          47,659          -                -                61,538          61,538         
Amount of units issued -                -                309,339        309,339        -                -                14,000          14,000         
Redemp�on of units issued Units -                -                367               367               2,098            2,226            846               5,170           
Amount of units redeemed -                -                148               148               646               614               190               1,450           

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------

Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund

Central Depository Company of
  Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Trustee's Remunera�on includng 
 Sindh Sales Tax thereon 135               676               1,172            1,983            117               512               858               1,487           
Central Depository System charges 18                 88                 152               258               -                7                   7                   14                

CDC Trustee HBL Islamic Income Fund - Under
      Common Management
Sale of GOP Ijarah Sukuk -                73,391          -                73,391          -                -                -                -              

CDC Trustee HBL Money Market Fund - Under
      Common Management
Sale of T Bills -                -                72,573          72,573          -                -                -                -              

CDC Trustee HBL Governement Securi�es Fund
       - Under Common Management
Sale of Pakistan Investment Bond -                157,877        -                157,877        -                -                -                -              
Sale of T Bills -                123,830        -                123,830        -                -                -                -              

CDC Trustee HBL Financial Sector Income Fund
       Plan I - Under Common Management
Sale of Pakistan Investment Bond -                67,887          -                67,887          -                -                -                -              

CDC Trustee HBL Cash Fund - Under
      Common Management
Sale of T Bills -                135,664        150,045        285,709        -                -                -                -              

30-Jun-24 30-Jun-23

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 

minimise poten�al adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance. The Board of Directors (the Board) of the 
Pension Fund Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management 
framework.

 
 Risk is inherent in the Fund's ac�vi�es, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling ac�vi�es which are 

primarily setup to be performed based on limits established by the Pension Fund Manager, Fund's cons�tu�ve 
documents and the regula�ons and direc�ves of the SECP. The policies are established to iden�fy and analyse the risks 
faced by the Fund, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi�ons and the Fund's 
ac�vi�es.

 
 The Fund primarily invests in a por�olio of equity, debt and money market investments such as shares of listed 

companies, investment - grade debt securi�es, government securi�es and other money market instruments. These 
ac�vi�es are exposed to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and 
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

 
21.1 Market risk
 
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes 

in market prices.
 
 The Pension Fund Manager manages the market risk through diversifica�on of the investment por�olio and by following 

the internal guidelines established by the Investment Commi�ee.The Pension Fund Manager manages market risk by 
monitoring exposure on marketable securi�es by following the internal risk management policies and investment 
guidelines approved by the Board and regula�ons laid down by the SECP and the VPS Rules.

 
 Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
 

20.2 Balances outstanding as at period end
Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
  Pension Fund Manager
Management fee payable 103               778               946               1,827            69                 429               803               1,301           
Sindh Sales Tax payable 12                 101               123               236               9                   56                 104               169              
Other payable 2,500            -                -                2,500            -                -                -                -              

Habib Bank Limited - Sponsor
Bank balances 2,741            397,674        568,958        969,373        1,129            17,060          21,595          39,784         

Directors and Execu�ves of the Pension
  Fund Manager and their rela�ves

Equity Debt Money Total Equity Debt Money Total
 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market  Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund  Market

 Sub-Fund  Sub-Fund

Directors and their rela�ves
Units held 18,543          50,921          38,553          108,017        18,930          51,524          19,729          90,183         
Amount of units held 9,594            17,342          11,413          38,349          5,708            14,358          4,795            24,861         

Execu�ves and their rela�ves
Units held -                -                107,984        107,984        -                -                60,692          60,692         
Amount of units held -                -                31,966          31,966          -                -                14,752          14,752         

Central Depository Company of
  Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Remunera�on payable including sales tax 15                 101               122               238               11                 54                 99                 164              
Security Deposit receivable 100               100               100               300               100               100               100               300              

Directors of Connected Persons
Units held 1,727            1,514            138,659        141,900        1,727            1,514            138,659        141,900       
Amount of units held 894               516               41,046          42,456          521               422               33,702          34,645         

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------

30-Jun-24 June 30, 2023

------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) --------------------------------------------------------------

30-Jun-24 June 30, 2023
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21.1.1 Currency risk 
 
 This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its opera�ons are geographically restricted to 
Pakistan and all transac�ons are carried out in Pakistan Rupees.

 
21.1.2 Interest rate Risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 

changes in market interest rates. 
 

a) Cash flow interest rate risk
 
 The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the year would have 

increased / (decreased) by Rs. 0.038790&4.036 and 5.695 million for Equity sub-fund, Debt sub-fund and Money 
market sub-fund , had the interest rates on savings accounts with banks increased / (decreased) by 100 basis points.

 
b) Fair value interest rate risk
 
 The Fund investment in Treasury Bills , Corporate Sukuks /TFC bonds, Pakistan investment bonds and Listed equity 

securi�es expose it to the fair value interest rate risk. 
 
 The composi�on of the Fund's investment por�olio and rates announced by Financial Market Associa�on of Pakistan 

is expected to change over �me. Therefore, the sensi�vity analysis prepared as of June 30, 2024 is not necessarily 
indica�ve of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future movements in interest rates. 

 
 Yield / interest rate sensi�vity posi�on for on-statement of financial posi�on financial instruments is based on the 

earlier of contractual repricing or maturity date and for off-statement of financial posi�on instruments is based on the 
se�lement date.

% ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets

Bank balances 17.5%-22.95% 3,879.00          -                   -                   -                      403,682           -                   -                   -                   569,523           -                   -                   -                   977,084             
Investments - net 94,743.00        -                   -                   -                      478,931           -                   -                   478,931           468,914           -                   -                   468,914           1,990,433          
Dividend and profit receivable -                   -                   -                   120                     -                   -                   -                   25,906             -                   -                   -                   7,637               33,663               
Receivable Against issuance of Units -                   -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   1,464               -                   -                   1,464                 
Advance Deposits and other receivable -                   -                   -                   2,682                  -                   -                   -                   355                  216                  -                   -                   145.00             3,398.00            

Sub total 98,622.00        -                   -                   2,802                  882,613           -                   -                   506,656           1,038,653        -                   -                   476,696.00      3,006,042          
Financial liabili�es

-                   -                   -                   103                     -                   -                   778                  -                   -                   -                   946                  1,827                 

-                   -                   -                   13                       -                   -                   89                    -                   -                   -                   108                  210                    
-                   -                   -                   3,617                  -                   -                   -                   1,037               -                   -                   -                   3,160               7,814                 
-                   -                   -                   3,733                  -                   -                   -                   1,904               -                   -                   -                   4,214               9,851                 

98,622             -                   -                   (931)                    882,613           -                   -                   504,752           1,038,653        -                   -                   472,482           2,996,191          
-                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     
-                   -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     

% ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets

Bank balances 18%-20% 2,864               -                   -                   -                      130,298           -                   -                   -                   37,880             -                   -                   -                   171,042             
Investments - net -                   -                   -                   52,645                -                   -                   -                   243,711           -                   -                   -                   658,530           954,886             
Dividend and profit receivable 55                    -                   -                   -                      7,110               -                   -                   -                   11,367             -                   -                   -                   18,532               
Advance and deposits 2,739               -                   -                   -                      133                  -                   -                   -                   145                  -                   -                   -                   3,017                 

5,658               -                   -                   52,645                137,541           -                   -                   243,711           49,392             -                   -                   658,530           1,147,477          
Financial liabili�es

-                   -                   -                   69                       -                   -                   -                   429                  -                   -                   -                   803                  1,301                 

-                   -                   -                   10                       -                   -                   -                   48                    -                   -                   -                   88                    146                    
Payable against purchase of securi�es -                      -                   -                   -                     

-                   -                   -                   120                     -                   -                   -                   772                  -                   -                   -                   1,513               2,405                 
-                   -                   -                   199                     -                   -                   -                   1,249               -                   -                   -                   2,404               3,852                 

5,658               -                   -                   52,446                137,541           -                   -                   242,462           49,392             -                   -                   656,126           1,143,625          
-                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     
-                   -                   -                   -                      -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                     

Payable to HBL Management
Limited - Management Company

Payable to Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Accrued expenses and other liabili�es

On-balance sheet gap (a)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet gap (b)

Par�culars

June 30, 2023

Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

Total

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk

Not exposed to 
yield /  Interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk

Not exposed to 
yield /  Interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Effec�ve yield 
/ interest rate More than 

three months 
and upto one 

year

More than one 
year

Not exposed to 
yield /  Interest 

rate risk
Upto three 

months

Accrued expenses and other liabili�es

On-balance sheet gap (a)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments
Off-balance sheet gap (b)

Payable to HBL Asset Management
Limited - Management Company
Payable to Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Par�culars
Effec�ve yield 
/ interest rate

June 30, 2024
Equity Sub-Fund Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

Total

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield /  Interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk
Not exposed to 
yield /  Interest 

rate risk

Exposed to yield / interest rate risk

Upto three 
months

More than 
three months 
and upto one 

year

More than one 
year

Not exposed to 
yield /  Interest 

rate risk
Upto three 

months

More than 
three months 
and upto one 

year

More than one 
year

More than one 
year

Upto three 
months

More than 
three months 
and upto one 

year

More than one 
year

More than 
three months 
and upto one 

year

More than one 
year

Upto three 
months

Upto three 
months

More than 
three months 
and upto one 

year
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21.1.3 Price Risk       
        
 Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in 

market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes are caused by 
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments 
traded in the market. Currently, The Fund's investment in corporate sukuk bonds exposes to price risk.  
       

21.2 Credit risk       
        
 Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter par�es fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk is 

primarily a�ributable to its investment in corporate Sukuk/TFC bonds,and bank deposit. Risks a�ributable to 
investments in Market Treasury Bills, Pakistan Investment Bonds are limited as these are guaranteed by the Federal 
Government while bank balances are maintained with banks with a reasonably high credit ra�ng. The risk of default is 
considered minimal due to interest systema�c measures taken therein.      
      

21.2.1 The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's financial assets as at June 30, 2024. 

HABIB BANK LIMITED 2,741               397,674           568,958                      A-1+ VIS
FAYSAL BANK LIMITED 39                     21                      19                                A-1+ PACRA
DUBAI ISLAMIC BANK -                   340                   16                                A-1+ VIS
ZARAI TARAQIATI BANK LIMITED -                   3                        12                                A-1+ VIS
ALLIED BANK LIMITED -                   17                      18                                A-1+ PACRA
FIRST MICRO FINANCE -                   203                   -                               A-1 VIS
SONERI BANK LIMITED 1,047               1,278                -                               A-1+ PACRA
BANK ALFALAH 45                     4,118                444                              A-1+ PACRA
NATIONAL BANK OF PAKISTAN -                   10                      -                               A-1+ PACRA

-                   18                      -                               A-2 VIS
ASKARI BANK LIMITED -                   -                    14                                A-1+ PACRA
BANK AL HABIB LIMITED -                   -                    41                                A-1+ PACRA
SINDH BANK -                   -                    1                                  A-1+ VIS
JS BANK 7                       -                    -                               A-1+ PACRA

3,879               403,682           569,523                      

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

KHUSHHALI MICROFINANCE BANK LIMITED

Banks Equity Sub-
Fund

Debt Sub-Fund Money Market Sub-
Fund

Latest available 
published ra�ng 

as at June 30, 
2024

Ra�ng agency

---------------------------2024---------------------------------

Habib Bank Limited 1,129              17,060             21,595                       A-1+ JCR-VIS
Bank Alfalah Limited 42                    2,171               16,165                       A-1+ PACRA
Bank AlHabib Limited -                  -                   40                               A-1+ PACRA
Na�onal Bank of Pakistan -                  10                     -                              A-1+ PACRA
Allied Bank Limited -                  22                     18                               A-1+ PACRA
MCB Bank Limited -                  -                   12                               A-1+ PACRA
Askari Bank Limited -                  -                   14                               A-1+ PACRA
Soneri Bank Limited 1,649              21,688             -                              A-1+ PACRA
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited -                  82                     16                               A-1+ JCR-VIS
JS Bank Limited 5                      -                   -                              A-1+ PACRA
Faysal Bank Limited 39                    21                     19                               A-1+ PACRA
Sindh Bank Limited -                  -                   1                                  A-1 JCR-VIS
Khushali Micro Finance Bank Limited -                  18                     -                              A-2 JCR-VIS
HBL Micro Finance Bank Limited -                  89,226             -                              A-1 PACRA

2,864              130,298          37,880                       

Banks
Equity Sub-

Fund
Debt Sub-

Fund
Money Market 

Sub-Fund

Latest available 
published 
ra�ng as at 

June 30, 2023

Ra�ng agency

---------------------------2023---------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 -----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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21.2.2 The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund’s credit exposure: 

 There is no exposure other than bank balance as disclosed above as at June 30, 2024.
 
 Concentra�on of credit risk
 
 Concentra�on of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterpar�es 

whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in rela�on to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's por�olio of 
financial instruments is mainly concentrated in bank balances while the remaining transac�ons are entered into with 
diverse credit-worthy counterpar�es thereby mi�ga�ng any significant concentra�on of credit risk to counterpar�es 
other than the Government.

 
21.3 Liquidity risk
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to se�le its obliga�on in full 

as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund. Liquidity risk may result from 
an inability to sell a financial asset at close to its fair value. The Pension Fund Manager's approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when due under 
both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputa�on. 
The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve market and 
can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

 
 The Fund aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable securi�es at an amount in 

excess of expected cash ou�lows on financial liabili�es. The Fund is exposed to cash redemp�ons of its units on a regular 
basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s op�on based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit at the �me of redemp�on 
calculated in accordance with the Fund’s cons�tu�ve document and guidelines laid down by Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

 
 Management of liquidity risk
 
 The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by inves�ng majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve 

market and can be readily disposed. The Fund invests primarily in marketable securi�es and other financial instruments, 
which under normal market condi�ons are readily conver�ble to cash. As a result, the Fund may be able to liquidate 
quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirement. The 
present se�lement system is a T+2 system, which means that proceeds from sales (to pay off redemp�ons) of holdings 
will be received on the second day a�er the sale, while redemp�ons have to be paid within a period of six working days 
from the date of the redemp�on request. 

 
 In addi�on, the Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for mee�ng redemp�on requests. No such 

borrowings were made during the year. The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the 
extent of 15% of net assets at the �me of borrowing with repayment with in 90 days of such borrowings. The facility 
would bear interest at commercial rates.

 
 The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Fund's financial instruments. The analysis into relevant maturity 

groupings is based on the remaining period at the end of the repor�ng period to the contractual maturity date. However, 
assets and liabili�es that are receivable / payable on demand including bank balances have been included in the maturity 
grouping of one month.

 

Ra�ng by ra�ng category 2024 2023

A-1+ 99.98% 47%
A-1 0.02% 52%
A-2 -                1.1%
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22 PARTICIPANTS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT 
  
 The unitholders' fund is represented by the net assets a�ributable to unitholders / redeemable units. The amount of net 

assets a�ributable to unitholders can change significantly on a daily basis as the Fund is subject to daily issuance and 
redemp�ons at the discre�on of unit holders. These unitholders of the Fund are en�tled to distribu�ons and to payment 
of a propor�onate share based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the redemp�on date. The relevant movements 
are shown on the statement of movement in unitholders' fund. Unitholders fund risk management is carried out by the 
Management Company through following steps: 

  
- Monitors the level of daily issuance and redemp�ons rela�ve to the liquid assets and adjusts the amount of 

distribu�ons the Fund pays to the unitholders;
  
- Redeems and issues units in accordance with the cons�tu�ve documents of the Fund. This includes the Fund's ability 

to restrict redemp�ons; and
  
- The Fund Manager / Investment Commi�ee members and the Chief Execu�ve Officer of the Management Company 

cri�cally track the movement of ‘Assets under Management’. The Board of Directors is updated regarding key 
performance indicators, e.g. yield and movement of NAV and total Fund size at the end of each quarter.

  
 The Fund has maintained and complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the current period. 

 
23 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
  
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 

between market par�cipants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise between carrying amount 
and the fair value es�mates. 

  
 Underlying the defini�on of fair value is the presump�on that the Fund is a going concern without any inten�on or 

requirement to curtail materially the scale of its opera�ons or to undertake a transac�on on adverse terms. 
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 The following table analyses the Fund's financial liabili�es into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining 
period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual 
undiscounted cash flows.

Financial liabili�es

Payable to the Management Company 103            -                               -             778            -                              -             946            -                                      -             

Payable to the Trustee (CDC) 13              -                               -             89              -                              -             108            -                                      -             
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 3,617        -                               -             1,037        -                              -             3,160        -                                      -             

Total Liabili�es          3,733                                   -                   -            1,904                                  -                   -            4,214                                          -                   -   

Financial liabili�es

Payable to the Management Company 69              -                               -             429            -                              -             803            -                                      -             

Payable to the Trustee (CDC) 10              -                               -             48              -                              -             88              -                                      -             
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 120            -                               -             772            -                              -             1,513        -                                      -             

Total Liabili�es             199                                   -                   -            1,249                                  -                   -            2,404                                          -                   -   

------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2023

Par�culars

EquitySub-Fund DebtSub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

Upto three 
months

More than three 
months and upto one 

year

Over one 
year

Upto three 
months

More than three 
months and upto 

one year

Over one 
year

Upto three 
months

More than three months 
and upto one year

Over one 
year

------------------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 --------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024

Par�culars

EquitySub-Fund DebtSub-Fund Money Market Sub-Fund

Upto three 
months

More than three 
months and upto one 

year

Over one 
year

Upto three 
months

More than three 
months and upto 

one year

Over one 
year

Upto three 
months

More than three months 
and upto one year

Over one 
year
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23.1 VALUATION TECHNIQUES       
        
 For level 1 investments at fair value through profit or loss in units of mutual funds, Fund uses market rate which are taken 

from pakistan stock exchange and  For level 2 investments at fair value through profit or loss in units of mutual funds, 
Fund uses PKRV and PKFRV rates which are taken from MUFAP, for the purpose of computa�on of Market value at the 
repor�ng date.       

        

 The fair value of financial assets and liabili�es traded in ac�ve markets  are based on the quoted market prices at the 
close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the Fund is current bid 
price. 

  
 A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an ac�ve market if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from 

an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and 
regularly occurring market transac�ons on an arm’s length basis. 

  
 As per the requirements of IFRS 7 (Financial Instruments: Disclosures) and IFRS 13 ( Fair Value Measurement), the Fund 

classifies fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making 
the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels: 

  
- Fair value measurements using quoted prices (unadjusted) in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es (level 1);
  
- Fair value measurements using inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2); and
  
- Fair value measurements using inputs for assets or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. 

unobservable inputs) (level 3).
  
 The table below analyse financial instruments measured at the end of the repor�ng year by the level in the fair value 

hierarchy into which the fair value measurement is categorised:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
--------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

94,743    -           -         94,743        

-         478,931    -         478,931      

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Equity Sub-Fund
Listed equity securi�es

Debt Sub-Fund
Investment in debt securi�es

Money Market Sub-Fund
Investment in debt securi�es -         468,914    -         468,914      

94,743    947,845    -         1,042,588   

June 30, 2024
Fair value

June 30, 2023

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
--------------- (Rupees in '000) ----------------

52,645    -           -         52,645        

-         243,711    -         243,711      

Investments at fair value through profit or loss

Equity Sub-Fund
Listed equity securi�es

Debt Sub-Fund
Government Secuirty-T Bills

Money Market Sub-Fund
Government Secuirty-T Bills -         658,530    -         658,530      

52,645    902,241    -         954,886      

June 30, 2023
Fair value
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25. ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS        

 Six mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were held on August 25,2023 , October 20, 2023, October 27,2023, January 
25,2024 ,February 16, 2024 and April 26, 2024, respec�vely. Informa�on in respect of the a�endance by the Directors in 
the mee�ngs is given below: 

26. TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO       
        
 In accordance with the S.R.O 1068 (I) / 2021 dated August 23, 2021 issued by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission 

of Pakistan (SECP), the total expense ra�o of the equity sub fund, debt sub fund and money market sub fund for the year 
ended June 30, 2024 is 1.56%, 1.58% and 3.54% (June 30, 2023: 1.82%, 0.74% and 0.69%) respec�vely which includes 
0.21%,0.21% and 0.38% (June 30, 2023: 0.11%, 0.05% and 0.05%) respec�vely represen�ng Government levy and SECP 
fee.       

       
27. CORRESPONDING FIGURES       
        
 Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purpose of be�er presenta�on. No 

significant rearrangement or reclassifica�on was made in these financial statements during the current year.   
       

28. GENERAL       
        
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.    

       

23.2 TRANSFERS DURING THE YEAR       
        
 No transfers were made between various levels of fair value hierarchy during the year.     

       
24. PARTICULARS OF THE INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND THE FUND MANAGER     

  
 Details of members of the Investment Commi�ee of the Fund as on June 30, 2024 are as follows:

1 Mir Adil Rashid Chief Execu�ve Officer BSc 25.2
2 Muhammad Ali Bhabha Chief Investment Officer CFA, FRM, MBA 28.9
3 Rahat Saeed Khan  Head of Fixed Income MBA 26.7
4 Imad Ansari  Head of Risk MBA 17.2
5 Ahsan Ali  Head of Research CFA 8.3
6 Raza Abbas  Senior Fund Manager M.Com 21

S. no. Name Designa�on Qualifica�on
Experience 

in years

Held A�ended Leave granted

Name of Director

1 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 6 6 - 
2 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 6 6 - 

3 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 6 5 1 

4 Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mir 6 6 - 

5 Mr. Tariq Masaud 6 6 - 
6 Mr. Abid Sa�ar 6 6 - 
7 Mr. Khalid Malik 6 6 - 

-
-

-

S.No. Par�cular
Number of mee�ngs

Mee�ng not a�ended

-
-

October 27,2023.
-
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

29. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE       
        
 These financial statements were authorised for issue on  September 26, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the 

Management Company. 



KPK Islamic Pension Fund



84Annual Report -2024

Bank Al Habib Limited

Bank Islamic Bank Limited

Central Depositary Company of Pakistan

Al-Hilal Shariah Advisor

BDO Ebrahim & Co.

NAME OF SHARIAH ADVISOR

KPK
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HBL Asset Managment Limited
Head Office

7th Floor
Emerald Tower

G-19 Block-5,
Main Cli�on Road,

Cli�on, Karachi

UAN (021) 111-425-262
Fax (021) 35168455
www.hblasset.com
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

HBL KPK Islamic Pension Fund (the fund) has fully complied with the Shariah Principles specified in 
Trust Deed and in the guideline issued by the Shariah Advisor for its opera�ons, investment and place-
ments made during the year ended June 30, 2024. This has been duly confirmed by the Shariah Advisor 
of the Fund.

Mir Adil Rashid

Chief Execu�ve Officer

Dated: September 26, 2024
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September 25, 2024 

 

، و�عد ا  � ، وع� آله وصح�ه أجمع�� � ، والصلاة والسلام ع� س�د الأن��اء والمرسل�� � لحمد � رب العالم��  

The purpose of this report is to provide an opinion on the Shariah Compliance of the Fund’s 
investment and operational activities with respect to Shariah guidelines provided.  

It is the core responsibility of the Management Company to operate the Fund and invest the amount 
of money in such a manner which is in compliance with the Shariah principles as laid out in the 
Shariah guidelines. In the capacity of the Shariah Advisor, our responsibility lies in providing Shariah 
guidelines and ensuring compliance with the same by review of activities of the fund. We express 
our opinion based on the review of the information, provided by the management company, to an 
extent where compliance with the Shariah guidelines can be objectively verified. 

Our review of Fund’s activities is limited to enquiries of the personnel of Management Company and 
various documents prepared and provided by the management company.  

Keeping in view the above; we certify that: 

We have reviewed all the investment and operational activities of the fund including all transactions 
and found them to comply with the Shariah guidelines. On the basis of information provided by the 
management company, all operations of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2024 comply with the 
provided Shariah guidelines. Therefore, it is resolved that investments in HBL KPK Islamic Pension 
Fund -Money Market Sub Fund managed by HBL Asset Management Limited are Permissible and in 
accordance with Shariah principles.  

May Allah (SWT) bless us and forgive our mistakes and accept our sincere efforts in accomplishment 
of cherished tasks and keep us away from sinful acts. 

 والله أعلم �الصواب،  وص� الله ع� ن�ينا محمد وع� آله وصح�ه و�ارك وسلم 

For and on behalf of Al-Hilal Shariah Advisors (Pvt.) Limited. 

 

 

 

Mufti Irshad Ahmad Aijaz     Faraz Younus Bandukda, CFA 
Member Shariah Council     Chief Executive 
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---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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HBL KPK ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Statement of Assets and Liabili�es
As at June 30, 2024

For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director
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Note
ASSETS

Balances with bank 5 546,448                      546,448                      546,382                      6,722,583                   8,361,861                   
Investments 6 -                               -                               -                               29,781,138                29,781,138                
Profit / Mark-up and other receivable 7 8,408                           8,408                           8,408                           595,192                      620,416                      
Preliminary expenses and floata�on costs 8 -                               -                               -                               392,416                      392,416                      
Deposits 9 -                               -                               -                               100,000                      100,000                      

TOTAL ASSETS 554,856                      554,856                      554,790                      37,591,329                39,255,831                
LIABILITIES

Payable to Pension Fund Manager -                               -                               -                               460,000                      460,000                      
Payable to Trustee 11 -                               -                               -                               8,073                           8,073                           
Annual fee payable to the Securi�es and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 -                               -                               -                               7,402                           7,402                           
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 13 54,856                         54,856                         54,790                         56,182                         220,684                      

TOTAL LIABILITIES 54,856                         54,856                         54,790                         531,657                      696,159                      
NET ASSETS 500,000                      500,000                      500,000                      37,059,672                38,559,672                

500,000                      500,000                      500,000                      37,059,672                38,559,672                

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 14

Number of units in issue 15 5,000                           5,000                           5,000                           335,921                      

Net assets value per unit 100.0000                    100.0000                    100.0000                    110.3225                    

 The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Number of units ----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PARTICIPANTS' SUB FUNDS (AS PER STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT 
IN PARTICIPANTS' SUB FUNDS)

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index    Sub-
Fund 

 Equity                Sub 
Fund 

 Total 
 Debt                   Sub-

Fund 
 Money Market Sub-

Fund 
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

Note

Income
Income from investments -                      -                         -                   1,134,617        1,134,617             
Mark-up on bank deposits 54,856                54,856                  54,790            2,203,413        2,367,915             

54,856                54,856                  54,790            3,338,030        3,502,532             
Unrealised apprecia�on on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss' - net 6.2 -                      -                         -                   160,829           160,829                

54,856                54,856                  54,790            3,498,859        3,663,361             
Expenses

Remunera�on to HBL Asset Management Limited - Pension Fund 
Manager -                      -                         -                   -                    -                         
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to HBL Asset Management Limited-
Pension Fund -                      -                         -                   -                    -                         
Remunera�on to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited-
Trustee -                      -                         -                   25,923             25,923                  
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central Depository Company 
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee -                      -                         -                   3,370                3,370                    
Annual fee to the Securi�es and Exchange Commission 
    of Pakistan -                      -                         -                   7,402                7,402                    
Amor�sa�on of preliminary expenses and floata�on costs -                      -                         -                   57,584             57,584                  
Auditors' remunera�on 16 -                      -                         -                   35,925             35,925                  
Other expenses 54,856                54,856                  54,790            5,057                169,559                

Total expenses 54,856                54,856                  54,790            135,261           299,763                

Net income for the period before taxa�on -                      -                         -                   3,363,598        3,363,598             
Taxa�on 18 -                      -                         -                   -                    -                         
Net income for the period -                      -                         -                   3,363,598        3,363,598             

Earnings per unit 19

 The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Money Market 
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 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
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 Total 
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Net  income for the period -                         -                         -                         3,363,598             3,363,598             

Other  comprehensive income -                         -                         -                         -                         -                         

Total comprehensive income for the period -                         -                         -                         3,363,598             3,363,598             

 The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Total 
 Debt                   

Sub-Fund 
 Money Market 

Sub-Fund 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

 Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Net assets at the beginning of period -                  -                  -                  -                        -                  

Amount received on issue of units 500,000         500,000         500,000         33,696,074         35,196,074    

Net income for the period -                  -                  -                  3,363,598            3,363,598      

Net assets at the end of period 500,000         500,000         500,000         37,059,672         38,559,672    

 The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

------------------------------------------------------------------------ (Rupees) ------------------------------------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024
Equity Index Equity Debt Money Market

 Total 
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

Note
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net income for the period before taxa�on -                           -                             -                             3,363,598                3,363,598               
Adjustments for:

Income from Government securi�es -                           -                             -                             (1,134,617)               (1,134,617)             
Mark-up on bank deposits (54,856)                   (54,856)                     (54,790)                     (2,203,413)               (2,367,915)             
Amor�sa�on of preliminary expenses and floata�on costs -                           -                             -                             57,584                      57,584                     
Unrealised (apprecia�on) / diminu�on on re-measurement of investments 
classified as 'fair value through profit or loss' - net -                           -                             -                             (160,829)                  (160,829)                 

(54,856)                   (54,856)                     (54,790)                     (77,677)                     (242,179)                 
(Increase) in assets

Investments - net -                           -                             -                             (29,620,309)            (29,620,309)           
Profit / Mark-up and other receivable (8,408)                     (8,408)                       (8,408)                       (130,680)                  (155,904)                 
Preliminary expenses and floata�on costs -                           -                             -                             (450,000)                  (450,000)                 
Deposits -                           -                             -                             (100,000)                  (100,000)                 

(8,408)                     (8,408)                       (8,408)                       (30,300,989)            (30,326,213)           
Increase in liabili�es

Payable to the Management Company -                           -                             -                             460,000                    460,000                  
Payable to the Trustee -                           -                             -                             8,073                         8,073                       
Payable to Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan -                           -                             -                             7,402                         7,402                       
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 54,856                     54,856                      54,790                      56,182                      220,684                  

54,856                     54,856                      54,790                      531,657                    696,159                  
Cash used in opera�ons (8,408)                     (8,408)                       (8,408)                       (29,847,009)            (29,872,233)           

Income received from Government securi�es -                           -                             -                             859,260                    859,260                  
Mark-up received on bank deposits 54,856                     54,856                      54,790                      2,014,257                2,178,759               

Net cashflows generated from / (used in) opera�ng ac�vi�es 46,448                     46,448                      46,382                      (26,973,492)            (26,834,214)           

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from issue of units 500,000                  500,000                    500,000                    33,696,074              35,196,074            
Payment against redemp�on of units -                           -                             -                             -                             -                           
Dividend paid -                           -                             -                             -                             -                           

Net cash generated from financing ac�vi�es 500,000                  500,000                    500,000                    33,696,074              35,196,074            
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents during the period 546,448                  546,448                    546,382                    6,722,582                8,361,860               
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period -                           -                             -                             -                             -                           
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 5 546,448                  546,448                    546,382                    6,722,582                8,361,860               

 The annexed notes from 1 to 28 form an integral part of these financial statements.

June 30, 2024

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Total 
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1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
1.1 HBL KPK Islamic Pension Fund is established under a Trust deed executed between HBL Asset Management Limited as a  

Pension Fund Manager and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee. The Central Depository 
Company of Pakistan Limited was appointed as a trustee for the Fund by SECP on June 22, 2023 The Trust Deed is 
approved by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on September 12, 2023 under the Voluntary 
Pension System (VPS) Rules, 2005. . The Fund is registered under the Sindh Trust Act, 2020, as amended vide Sindh Trusts 
(Amendment) Act, 2021 and was launched on December 14, 2023. 

  
1.2 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System 

Rules, 2005 (The VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Pension 
Fund Manager is situated at 7th floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Karachi, Pakistan.  

  
1.3 The Fund is an unlisted pension scheme and units are offered  on a con�nuous basis to employees of KPK Government 

appointed / recruited under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 or an employee of KPK 
Government regularize as Civil Servant through any legal instrument issued a�er coming in to force of the Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 irrespec�ve of the effec�ve date of regulariza�on. The units are 
non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and KPK Act 2022 and can be redeemed by 
surrendering to the Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from 
any of the sub-funds.  

  
1.4 The Fund consists of four sub-funds namely; Equity Index Sub Fund, Equity Sub Fund, Debt Sub Fund and Money Market 

Sub Fund (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). Under the KPK Civil Servants Act 2022, the contribu�on by or on behalf of the 
employee for the first three years from the date of launch of the fund shall be invested 100% in Money Market Sub Fund 
only and the remaining sub-funds shall remain in opera�ve �ll then. Moreover, in the remaining three sub funds (Equity 
Index Sub Fund, Equity Sub Fund and Debt Sub Fund) only seed capital be injected by the Pension Fund Manager which 
would remain invested �ll three years from the launch date of the Fund. Following the ini�al three years of appointment/ 
recruitment under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022, KPK employees are eligible to change 
their alloca�on as per the life cycle alloca�on scheme. In cases where an employee fails to specify their asset alloca�on 
preferences, the pension fund manager, taking into considera�on the employee's profile and age, will allocate the 
contribu�on to the default Asset Alloca�on Scheme outlined in the offering document and the KPK Rules, 2022. 

1.5 Except for the departure from investment policy provided in the offering document, where the Pension Fund Manager 
shall place the seed capital amount of all sub-funds other than Money market Sub-Fund in a separate bank account in a 
commercial bank having at least such ra�ng as prescribed thereunder for first three years from the date of launch of the 
Pension Fund, the investment shall be made as per the investment policy men�oned in the offering document. The 
investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows:  

  
- The investment Objec�ve of the Equity Index Sub-Fund is to provide investors an opportunity to track closely 

the performance of the KMI-30 by inves�ng in companies of the Index in propor�on to their weightages. The 
Index Sub-fund shall strive to remain fully invested in accordance with the stated index, however, under no 
circumstances shall it be invested less than 85% of its net assets in securi�es covered in the index or its subset 
during the year based on monthly average investment calculated on a daily basis. The un invested amount shall 
be kept in cash and/or near cash instruments where near cash instruments include cash in bank account 
(excluding TDRs), and Government securi�es not exceeding 90 days maturity. Composi�on of the remaining 
por�on of the investments shall be as defined in the offering document;
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
 HBL KPK ISLAMIC PENSION FUND ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL 

Asset Management Limited (the Pension Fund Manager) as the Pension Fund Manager and Central Depository Company 
of Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP) as a pension fund on October 05, 2011. 

  
 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System 

Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by SECP. The registered office of the Pension Fund 
Manager is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Cli�on, Karachi. 

 
 The Fund is an unlisted open end pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. The units 

are non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by surrendering to the 
Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from any of the sub-funds. 

  
 The objec�ve of the Fund is to provide individuals with a portable, individualised, funded (based on defined 

contribu�on), flexible pension scheme, assis�ng and facilita�ng them to plan and provide for their re�rement.  
  
 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL KPK ISLAMIC PENSION FUND Equity Sub-Fund ("Equity Sub-Fund"), 

HBL KPK ISLAMIC PENSION FUND Debt Sub-Fund ("Debt Sub-Fund") and HBL KPK ISLAMIC PENSION FUND Money 
Market Sub-Fund ("Money Market Sub-Fund") (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The investment policy for each of the 
sub-funds is as follows: 

  
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in listed equity securi�es. Investment in 

a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up capital of the investee 
company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 30% of NAV or index weight, 
subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Remaining assets of the equity sub-fund shall be invested in any 
government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with scheduled commercial 
banks having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in 
the offering document.

  
- The Debt Sub-Fund consist of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the Debt Sub-Fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the assets in the 
Debt Sub-Fund shall be invested in deposit with scheduled commercial bank (excluding TDRs) or government 
securi�es not exceeding 90 days maturity. Upto twenty five percent (25%) may be deposited with banks having 
not less than 'AA+' ra�ng with stable outlook. 

  
- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of short term debt instruments with weighted average �me to maturity 

not exceeding ninety days. There is no restric�on on the amount of investment in securi�es issued by the 
Federal Government and deposits with commercial banks with 'A+" or higher ra�ng. However, deposits with a 
single commercial bank having 'A+' or higher ra�ng shall not exceed 20% of net assets of Money Market 
Sub-Fund. Investment in securi�es issued by Provincial Government,government corporate en��es with 'A' or 
higher ra�ng or a corporate en�ty with 'A+' or higher ra�ng or a government corpora�on with 'A+' or higher 
ra�ng shall be in propor�on as defined in the offering document.

 
 The Fund offers five types of alloca�on schemes, as prescribed by the SECP under NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, to the 

contributors of the Fund namely High Vola�lity, Medium Vola�lity, Low Vola�lity, Lower Vola�lity & Life Cycle Alloca�on. 
The par�cipants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribu�on amount, subject to the minimum limit fixed by the 
Pension Fund Manager. The alloca�on to the Sub-Funds has to be done at the date of opening of contributor's pension 
account and on an anniversary date therea�er. The contribu�on amount may be paid by the contributor on a periodic 
basis such as annual, semi annual, quarterly or monthly basis. 

  
 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1' (Stable Outlook) on December 30, 2022 (June 

- The investment objec�ve of the Equity Sub Fund of the Pension Fund is to earn returns from investments in 
Pakistani Capital Markets. Assets of Equity Sub Fund shall be invested in Shariah compliant equity securi�es 
which are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) or in units of Shariah compliant Real Estate Investment Trusts 
and Exchange Traded Funds provided that en�ty/sector/group exposure limits as prescribed are complied with 
at least ninety percent (90%) of Net Assets of Equity Sub Fund shall remain invested in listed equity securi�es 
during the year based on rolling average investment of last ninety (90) days calculated on daily basis. Investment 
in a single company is restricted to lower of 15% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up capital of the investee 
company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 35% of NAV or index weight, 
subject to a maximum of 40% of NAV. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as 
defined in the offering document;

  
- The investment objec�ve of the Debt Sub Fund is to earn returns from investments in Shariah compliant debt 

markets of Pakistan, thus incurring a rela�vely lower risk than equity sub fund. The Debt Sub-Fund consists of 
tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment por�olio of the sub-fund not 
exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the net assets in the sub-fund shall be invested in 
debt securi�es issued by the Federal Government not exceeding 90 days' maturity. Exposure to any single en�ty 
or debt securi�es of a single en�ty shall not exceed 15% of NAV whereas, investment in a single stock exchange 
sector is restricted to 25% of NAV. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined 
in the offering document;

  
- The investment objec�ve of the Money Market Sub Fund is to earn returns from investments in Money Markets 

of Pakistan, thus incurring a rela�vely lower risk than debt sub fund. The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of 
Shariah compliant short-term money market securi�es with weighted average �me to maturity not exceeding 
90 days. Time to maturity of any assets in the por�olio shall not exceed six months. Exposure to any single en�ty 
or securi�es of a single en�ty, with the excep�on of those issued by the Federal Government, shall not exceed 
15% of NAV whereas, investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to 25% of NAV. However, at all 
�mes, atleast 10% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund shall be invested scheduled commercial banks having prescribed 
ra�ngs or government securi�es having upto 90 days maturity. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the 
investments shall be as defined in the offering document.

  
1.6 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1 (VIS)' on December 29, 2023 to the Pension 

Fund Manager. 
  
1.7 Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of the 

Fund. 
  
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
  
2.1 Statement of compliance 
  
2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable 

in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 
  

- Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 
Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017;

  
- Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and No�fied En��es Regula�ons, 2008 (the 'NBFC 
Regula�ons') and requirements of the Trust Deed.

  
- The requirements of the cons�tu�ve documents, Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules), 
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 Where the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and 
the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed. 

2.2 Basis of measurement  
  
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated. 
  
2.3 Func�onal and presenta�on currency 
  
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's func�onal and presenta�on currency.  

2.4 Use of judgments and es�mates 
  
 The prepara�on of the financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in 

Pakistan requires the management to make es�mates, judgements and assump�ons that affect the reported amount of 
assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applica�on of 
accoun�ng policies. The es�mates, judgements and associated assump�ons are based on the historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are 
recognised in the year in which the es�mates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision 
and future years if the revision affects both current and future years. 

  
 The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where es�mates and assump�ons are 

significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:  
  
 Classifica�on and valua�on of investments 
 For details please refer notes 4.2.1.1 and 6 to these financial statements. 
  
 Impairment of investment 
 For details please refer notes 4.2.1.2 to these financial statements. 
  
3 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING 

AND REPORTING STANDARDS 
  
3.1 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and IFRS interpreta�ons that are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024 

 The following standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024. These 
standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either not relevant to the Fund's opera�ons or did not have significant 
impact on the financial statements other than certain addi�onal disclosures. 

 "Amendments to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' and IFRS Prac�ce 
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of Accoun�ng Policies"

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2023

 Amendments to IAS 8 'Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and 
Errors' - Defini�on of Accoun�ng Es�mates     
   

 Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and 
Liabili�es arising from a single transac�on      
  

 Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary excep�on to the requirements 
regarding deferred tax assets and liabili�es related to pillar two income taxes 

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023
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 The Management company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard (lAS) 1, 
Presenta�on of Financial Statements which have been effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er 1 
January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accoun�ng policy themselves, they impacted 
the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosed in the financial statements.        
         

 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accoun�ng policies. The amendments also 
provide guidance on the applica�on of materiality to disclosure of accoun�ng policies, assis�ng the Company to provide 
useful en�ty-specific accoun�ng policy informa�on that users need to understand other informa�on in the financial 
statements.         

          
 Management reviewed the accoun�ng policies and updates to the informa�on disclosed in Note 4 Material accoun�ng 

policies  in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accoun�ng policies are material for 
disclosure.          

          
3.2 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve    

         
 The following accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, 

beginning on or a�er the date men�oned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are 
either not relevant to the Funds's opera�ons or are not expected to have material impact on the Funds's financial 
statements other than certain addi�onal  disclosures. 

 The Management Company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard (lAS) 1, 
Presenta�on of Financial Statements which have been effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er 1 
January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accoun�ng policy themselves, they impacted 
the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosed in the financial statements. 

 
 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accoun�ng policies. The amendments also 

provide guidance on the applica�on of materiality to disclosure of accoun�ng policies, assis�ng the Company to provide 
useful en�ty-specific accoun�ng policy informa�on that users need to understand other informa�on in the financial 
statements.

 
 Management reviewed the accoun�ng policies and updates to the informa�on disclosed in Note 4 Material accoun�ng 

policies in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accoun�ng policies are material for 
disclosure. 

 
3.2 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve
 
 The following accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, 

beginning on or a�er the date men�oned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are 
either not relevant to the Funds's opera�ons or are not expected to have material impact on the Funds's financial 
statements other than certain addi�onal  disclosures.

 Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding the 
classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments

 
 Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee 

subsequently measures sale and leaseback transac�ons
 
 Amendments to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Classifica�on of 

liabili�es as current or non-current
 
 Amendments to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Non-current 

liabili�es with covenants
 
 Amendments to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Non-current 

liabili�es with covenants
 
 Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements
 
 Amendments to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of 

Exchangeability
 
 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026

 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Supplier finance 
arrangements       

        
 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Amendments 

regarding the classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026



HBL KPK ISLAMIC PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

103Annual Report -2024

 IFRS 1 'First-�me Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from July 01, 
2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)  
  

 IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been no�fied by the IASB to be effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 
January 1, 2023. However SECP has no�fied the �meframe for the adop�on of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 
01, 2026.    

     
 IFRS 18 'Presenta�on and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 2027. 

However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP    
     
 IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 2027. 

However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP    
     
4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION    
     
 The material accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on of these financial statements are set out below. These 

accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.    
     
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents    
     
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original 

maturi�es of three months or less.     
     
4.2 Financial instruments    
     
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another en�ty.    
     
4.2.1 Financial assets    
     
4.2.1.1 Classifica�on and measurement of financial assets and financial liabili�es    
     
 On ini�al recogni�on, a financial asset is classified and measured at amor�sed cost or fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL). The classifica�on of financial assets is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is 
managed and its contractual cash flow characteris�cs.    

     
 A financial asset is measured at amor�sed cost if it meets both of the following condi�ons and is not designated as at 

FVTPL:    
     

- it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and  
 

- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 
on the principal amount outstanding.   

     
 All financial assets not classified as measured at amor�sed cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On ini�al 

recogni�on, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured 
at amor�sed cost or as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accoun�ng mismatch that would 
otherwise arise.    

     
 A financial asset is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transac�on costs that are directly 

a�ributable to its acquisi�on.    
     
 The following accoun�ng policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets:   
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 Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,   
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in income statement.

     
 Financial assets at  These assets are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve 
 amor�sed cost interest method. The amor�sed cost is reduced by impairment losses (refer note 
  4.2.1.2). Interest income and impairment are recognised in income statement.
     
4.2.1.2 Impairment of financial assets    
     
 In rela�on to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an en�ty to account for expected credit losses and 

changes in those expected credit losses at each repor�ng date to reflect changes in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on. In 
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized.  
    

 The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pa�ern of deteriora�on or 
improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or 
provision depends on the extent of credit deteriora�on since ini�al recogni�on. Under the general approach, there are 
two measurement bases:    

     
- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from ini�al recogni�on) as long as there is no significant 

deteriora�on in credit quality.   
     
- Life�me ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an 

individual or collec�ve basis.   
     
 The Fund's financial assets include mainly investment and bank balances.    
     
 SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of above 

impairment requirements in rela�on to debt securi�es for mutual funds. Meanwhile, asset management companies 
shall con�nue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 in rela�on to impairment of debt 
securi�es.    

     
4.2.1.3 Regular way purchase/sale of financial assets    
     
 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Fund commits to 

purchase or sell the asset.    
     
4.2.1.4 Derecogni�on    
     
 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have 

been transferred and the Fund has transferred substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership.   
   

4.2.2 Financial liabili�es    
     
 All financial liabili�es are recognised at the �me when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. These are ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amor�sed cost.   
    

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
    

4.2.3 Offse�ng of financial assets and liabili�es    
     
 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabili�es 

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le on a net 
basis, or to realise the assets and se�le the liabili�es simultaneously.    
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4.3 Provisions    
     
 Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events, it is 

probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a 
reliable es�mate of the amount of obliga�on can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the 
current best es�mate.    

     
4.4 Taxa�on    
     
 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income 

Tax Ordinance, 2001. The fund is also exempt from the provisions of sec�on 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part 
IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001.    

     
4.5 Proposed distribu�ons    
     
 Distribu�ons declared subsequent to the repor�ng date are considered as non-adjus�ng events and are not recognised 

before the repor�ng date.    
     
4.6 Issue and redemp�on of units    
     
 Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applica�ons received by 

the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close 
of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transac�on costs and any provision for du�es and charges, 
if applicable.    

     
 Units redeemed are recorded at the redemp�on price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemp�on 

applica�ons during business hours of that day. The redemp�on price represents the net assets value per unit as of the 
close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any du�es, taxes, charges on redemp�on and any 
provision for transac�on costs, if applicable. Redemp�on of units is recorded on acceptance of applica�on for 
redemp�on.    

     
4.7 Element of income     
     
 Element of income represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or redemp�on date, as 

the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant accoun�ng period. Element 
of income is a transac�on of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of income is taken to unit holders' 
fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net asset value of all units outstanding on the accoun�ng date, net 
element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders fund is refunded on units in the same propor�on as 
dividend bears to accoun�ng income available for distribu�on.     

     
4.8 Net asset value per unit    
     
 The net assets value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabili�es is calculated by dividing the net 

assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.    
     
4.9 Revenue recogni�on     
     

- Realised capital  gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date 
at which the transac�on takes place.   

     
- Income on sukuk cer�ficates, term deposit receipts and government securi�es is recognized on an accrual basis 

except for the securi�es which are classified as Non-Performing Asset under Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by 
the SECP for which the profits are recorded on cash basis.   

     
- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.   
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4.10 Expenses    
     
 All expenses chargeable to the Fund including remunera�on of the Pension Fund Manager and Trustee and annual fee of 

the SECP are recognised in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.    
     
4.11 Distribu�on to the unit holders    
     
 No distribu�on of Income or dividend shall be allowed from any of the sub-funds. Any income earned shall be 

accumulated and retained in the respec�ve sub-funds.    
     
4.12 Earnings / (loss) per unit    
     
 Earnings / (loss) per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as, in the opinion of the management, the determina�on of  

cumula�ve weighted average number of outstanding units for calcula�ng EPU is not prac�cable.   
    

4.13 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons    
     
 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons are carried in the normal course of business, at contracted rates 

and terms determined in accordance with market rates.    
     
 Remunera�on to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of NBFC 

Regula�ons and the Trust Deed respec�vely.    

5.1 These carries mark-up at the rates ranging between 15% to 18% per anum.

Note
5 Balances with bank

Local Currency
In saving accounts 5.1 546,448       546,448       546,382       6,722,583    8,361,861    

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index
Sub-Fund 

 Equity Sub
Fund 

 Debt Sub-
Fund 

 Money 
Market Sub-

Fund 
Total

------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------

6 INVESTMENTS

Financial assets classified at fair value 
through profit or loss 6.1 -               -               -               29,781,138  29,781,138  

6.1 Financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss

6.1.1 -               -               -               5,000,000    5,000,000    
6.1.2 -               -               -               24,781,138  24,781,138  

-               -               -               29,781,138  29,781,138  

Corporate Sukuk Bonds
GOP ijara sukuks
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6.1.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Market Treasury Bills 

6.1.1.1 These corporate sukuk bonds has a coupon rate of 21.85% per annum.   
     
6.1.2 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - GOP Ijara Sukuk    

6.2 Net unrealised apprecia�on on re-measurement of investments classified as Financial Assets 'Fair Value through profit or 
loss' 

Money Market Sub-Fund
LECPL STS 17 -                      5                            -                       5                             5,000,000          5,000,000            -                          13% 13%

Total as at June 30, 2024 -                      5                            -                       5                             5,000,000          5,000,000            -                          13% 13%
Total as at June 30, 2023 -                      -                        -                       -                         -                      -                        -                          -                               -                             

------------------------- Number of units ----------------------------- ------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------

 Market value as a 
percentage of net 

assets 

 Unrealised 
apprecia�on / 

(diminu�on) on re-
measurement of 

investment 

Market value as a 
percentage of total 
value of investment

 Total market 
value as at June 

30, 2024 
Name of Investee Funds

 Total units as at 
July 1, 2023 

 Purchases made 
during the year 

 Sales made 
during the year 

 Total carrying 
value as at June 

30, 2024 

 Total units as at 
June 30, 2024 

Money Market Sub Fund
26-Apr-24 12 months -                        28,500,000         28,500,000        24,620,309          24,781,138           160,829                      67% 83%

Total - as at June 30, 2024 -                        28,500,000         -                         28,500,000        24,620,309          24,781,138           160,829                      

Market
value as at June 30, 

2024

Unrealised 
apprecia�on on

re-measurement of 
investments

Market value as a 
percentage of net 

assets

Market value as a 
percentage of total 
value of investment

Issue date Tenure

Face value

As at
July 1, 2023

Purchases
during the

year

Sales /
matured

during the
year

As at
June 30,

2024

Carrying value as 
at June 30, 2024

-                        -                       -                         29,781,138        29,781,138          
Less: Carrying value of investments -                        -                       -                         29,620,309        29,620,309          

-                        -                       -                         160,829             160,829               

------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------

Market value of investments

 Equity Index
Sub-Fund 

June 30, 2024

 Equity Sub
Fund 

 Debt Sub-Fund  Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

Total

7 PROFIT / MARK UP AND OTHER RECEIVABLE 

Bank Al Habib Limited -                         -                          -                       189,156               189,156                
Bank Islami Pakistan Limited 8,408                     8,408                     8,408                   -                        25,224                  
fixed income securi�es -                         -                          -                       275,356               275,356                
Advance tax -                         -                          -                       130,680               130,680                

8,408                     8,408                     8,408                   595,192               620,416                

8 PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOATATION COSTS

Cost charged 8.1 -                         -                          -                       450,000               450,000                
Less: Amor�sed during the period -                         -                          -                       (57,584)                (57,584)                 
Closing balance -                         -                          -                       392,416               392,416                

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

Total Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund Total

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------
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8.1 Under Regula�on 60(2) and 60(3)(i) of the NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, forma�on costs incurred in connec�on with the 
establishment and registra�on of the Fund borne by the Pension Fund Manager and reimbursable shall be chargeable to 
the Fund, not exceeding 1.5 % of the Seed Capital of each Sub-Fund shall amor�zed over a period of five years.

10.1 The Pension Fund Manager is allowed to charge fees as remunera�on for the management of fund within the limits of 
the Total Expense Ra�o (TER) prescribed in the Trust Deed. However, no such fees was charged by the Pension Fund 
Manager during the period.          
           

10.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% on the remunera�on to the Pension Fund Manager 
through Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011.           
           

10.3 Forma�on costs as agreed with the employer, not exceeding 1.5 % of the Seed Capital of each Sub-Fund, including 
expenditure incurred in connec�on with the establishment and authoriza�on of the Pension Fund, shall be borne by the 
Pension Fund, paid to the Pension Fund Manager within the first three months of complete receipt of proceeds against 
Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investors. 

11.1 As per regula�on 60 (3)(b) together with 67G (3) of the NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, the Pension Fund Manager shall charge 
remunera�on of the Trustee related to the Fund within the limits of Total Expense Ra�o as prescribed under the said 
regula�ons. During the period such fees is charged as follows:        
            

9 DEPOSITS

CDC Security Deposit -                         -                          -                       100,000               100,000                
-                         -                          -                       100,000               100,000                

10 PAYABLE TO PENSION FUND MANAGER

Note

Remunera�on payable to the
Management Company 10.1 -                         -                          -                       -                        -                         
Sindh Sales Tax payable on
Management Company's
remunera�on 10.2 -                         -                          -                       -                        -                         
Forma�on cost payable
to AMC 10.3 -                         -                          -                       460,000 460,000

-                         -                          -                       460,000 460,000

June 30, 2024

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

Total

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

Total

11

Note

Trustee fee payable 11.1                             -                                -                              -                        7,144                      7,144 
Sindh Sales Tax payable on 11.2                             -                                -                              -                           929                          929 
remunera�on of the Trustee

                            -                                -                              -                        8,073                      8,073 

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

Total

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

June 30, 2024

PAYABLE TO  TRUSTEE
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12.1 As per Clause 36 of the VPS Rules, 2005 the Pension Fund Manager shall pay an annual fee to the Commission an amount 
equal to one twenty-fi�h of one per cent of the average annual net asset value of the pension fund. The fees is 
chargeable to the fund under Regula�on 60 (3)(f) and 67G (3) of the NBFC Regula�ons and is payable in arrears. During 
the period the Pension Fund Manager has charged the fees accordingly for the period from the launch of the Fund's 
opera�ons on December 14, 2023 to June 30,2024 period-end.       
           

13 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES 

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS          
       

 There were no con�ngencies and commitments as at June 30, 2024. 

15 CONTRIBUTION TABLE      
       
 Contribu�on (net of front end fee) received during the period.

Annual Report -2024

 Net Assets   Tariff per annum        
 

 Upto Rs.1 billion   0.15% p.a. of Net Assets        
Rs.1 billion to Rs.3 billion  Rs.1.5 million plus 0.10% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.1 billion   
Rs.3 billion to Rs.6 billion  Rs.3.5 million plus 0.08% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.3 billion   
Over Rs.6 billion   Rs.5.9 million plus 0.06% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.6 billion   
            

11.2 Sales tax at the rate of 13% on the remunera�on of the Trustee is applied under the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on 
Services Act, 2011.           
           

12 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Annual fee payable 12.1                             -                                -                              -                        7,402                             -   

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

Total Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

June 30, 2024

Withholding income tax payable -                         -                          -                       19,156                  19,156                  
Auditors' remunera�on -                         -                          -                       35,925                  35,925                  
Others 54,856                  54,856                   54,790                 1,101                    165,603                

54,856                  54,856                   54,790                 56,183                  220,685                

 Money Market 
Sub-Fund 

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Equity Index    
Sub-Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024

Total

(Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees)
From:

Individuals -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   35,921             3,696,074       35,921             3,696,074       
HBL Asset Management Limited - 

Seed Investor 5,000               500,000          5,000               500,000          5,000               500,000          300,000          30,000,000     315,000          31,500,000     
5,000               500,000          5,000               500,000          5,000               500,000          335,921          33,696,074     350,921          35,196,074     

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index Sub-Fund  Equity Sub-Fund  Debt Sub-Fund  Money Market Sub-Fund Total
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17 BASIS OF ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES TO EACH SUB-FUND
 
17.1 Remunera�on to the Pension Fund Manager and remunera�on to the Trustee is allocated to each sub-fund on the basis 

of net assets of the sub-fund.
 
17.2 Forma�on cost shall be divided equally among all the Sub-Funds opera�ve.
 
17.3 Expenses specifically incurred by a sub-fund, such as custody and se�lement charges, fees and subscrip�on, brokerage 

and transac�on costs, bank charges and all direct expenses of Sub Fund, shall be charged to the per�nent Sub-Funds.
 
17.4 Legal costs, audit fees and annual fees payable to the Commission and any other common expenses in accordance with 

the VPS Rules and NBFC Regula�ons, and as defined in the Cons�tu�ve documents, shall be charged to the per�nent 
Sub-Funds in propor�on to their respec�ve net assets.

 
18 TAXATION
 
 The income of the fund is exempt from tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001. Further, the Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Sec�on 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A 
Part IV to Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. Accordingly Super Tax and any other taxes introduced in 
Finance Act 2015 are also not applicable on the Fund.

 
20 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTY/CONNECTED PERSONS
 
 Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, Habib Bank Limited being 

the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, Collec�ve Investment 
Schemes and other Voluntary Pension Systems managed by the Pension Fund Manager, directors and officers of the 
Pension Fund Manager, directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership or vo�ng 
power of the units of the Fund or the capital of the Pension Fund Manager.

 
 Transac�ons with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in 

accordance with market rates.
 
 Remunera�on payable to Pension Fund Manager and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the 

Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and the Trust Deed respec�vely.
 

Total units in issue at the 

beginning of the period
Add: Units issued

Less: Units redeemed

Total units in issue at the 

end of the period 5,000                                             5,000                                             5,000                                             335,921                                         350,921                                         

5,000                                             5,000                                             5,000                                             335,921                                         350,921                                         

-                                                  -                                                 -                                                  -                                                  -                                                  

------------------------- Number of units -----------------------------

-                                                  -                                                 -                                                  -                                                  -                                                  

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index Sub-Fund  Equity Sub-Fund  Debt Sub-Fund  Money Market Sub-Fund Total

16 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

Annual Audit fee -            -            -            35,925      35,925      
-            -            -            35,925      35,925      

 Equity 
Index Sub-

Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

 Debt                   
Sub-Fund 

 Money 
Market 

Sub-Fund 
Total

---------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024
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21 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 

minimise poten�al adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance. The Board of Directors (the Board) of the 
Pension Fund Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management 
framework.

 Annual Report -2024

 The details of the transac�ons with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these 
financial statements are as follows:

20.1 Transac�ons during the period

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
Management Company

Remunera�on of the Pension Fund Manager -             -                     -            -                                      -               
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of the
Pension Fund Manager -             -                     -            -                                      -               
Preliminary expenses and floata�on costs -             -                     -            57,584                                57,584         

HBL Asset Management Limited - Sponsor
Issuance of Seed Capital Units 5,000         5,000                 5,000        300,000                              315,000       
Amount of Seed Capital Units issued 500,000     500,000            500,000   30,000,000                        31,500,000 

Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remunera�on to the Central Depository Company
company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee             -                     -              -                           25,923 25,923         
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited -
Trustee             -                     -              -                             3,370 3,370           

Balances outstanding as at period end

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
Pension Fund Manager

Remunera�on Payable to the Pension Fund -
Manager -             -                     -            -                                      -               
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remunera�on of the 
Pension Fund Manager -             -                     -            -                                      -               
Forma�on cost payable to the Pension Fund -
Manager -             -                     -            460,000                              460,000       

HBL Asset Management Limited - Sponsor
Seed Capital Units held 5,000         5,000                 5,000        300,000                              315,000       
Amount of Seed Capital Units held at NAV 500,000     500,000            500,000   30,000,000                        31,500,000 

Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Remunera�on to Payable Central Depository -          -                -         7,144                          7,144           
Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee
Sindh Sales Tax Payable on remunera�on to 
Central Depository Company of Pakistan 
Limited - Trustee -          -                -         929                             929              

------------------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------------------------

June 30, 2024

 Money Market Sub-Fund 
 Equity 

Index    Sub-
Fund 

 Equity                
Sub Fund 

Total
 Debt                   

Sub-Fund 
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 Risk is inherent in the Fund's ac�vi�es, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling ac�vi�es which are 
primarily setup to be performed based on limits established by the Pension Fund Manager, Fund's cons�tu�ve 
documents and the regula�ons and direc�ves of the SECP. The policies are established to iden�fy and analyse the risks 
faced by the Fund, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi�ons and the Fund's 
ac�vi�es.

 
 The Audit Commi�ee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Fund's risk management policies and 

procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in rela�on to the risks faced by the Fund. The 
audit commi�ee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit commi�ee.

 
 Asset purchases and sales are determined by the Fund’s Investment Manager, who has been authorised to manage the 

distribu�on of the assets to achieve the Fund’s investment objec�ves. Compliance with the target asset alloca�ons and 
the composi�on of the por�olio is monitored by the Investment Commi�ee. In instances where the por�olio has 
diverged from target asset alloca�ons, the Fund’s Investment Manager is obliged to take ac�ons to rebalance the 
por�olio in line with the established targets, within prescribed �me limits.

 
 The Fund primarily invests in a por�olio of equity, debt and money market investments such as shares of listed 

companies, investment - grade debt securi�es, government securi�es and other money market instruments. These 
ac�vi�es are exposed to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and 
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

 
21.1 Market risk
 
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes 

in market prices.
 
 "The Pension Fund Manager manages the market risk through diversifica�on of the investment por�olio and by 

following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Commi�ee. The Pension Fund Manager manages market 
risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securi�es by following the internal risk management policies and investment 
guidelines approved by the Board and regula�ons laid down by the SECP and the VPS Rules. "

 
 Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
 
21.1.1 Currency risk 
 
 This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its opera�ons are geographically restricted to 
Pakistan and all transac�ons are carried out in Pakistan Rupees.

 
21.1.2 Interest rate Risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 

changes in market interest rates. 
 
 a)   Cash flow interest rate risk
 
 The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the year would have 

increased / (decreased) by Rs. 3.363 million for Money Market Sub-Fund, had the interest rates on savings accounts with 
banks increased / (decreased) by 100 basis points.

 
 b)   Fair value interest rate risk
 
 The Fund investment in GOP Ijara Sukuk and Corporate Sukuks expose it to the fair value interest rate risk. 
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 The composi�on of the Fund's investment por�olio and rates announced by Financial Market Associa�on is expected to 
change over �me. 

 
21.1.3 Price Risk 
 
 Price risk is the risk of vola�lity in prices of financial instruments resul�ng from their dependence on market sen�ments, 

specula�ve ac�vi�es, supply and demand for financial instruments and liquidity in the market. The value of investments 
may fluctuate due to factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer such as, change in business cycles 
affec�ng the business of the company in which the investment is made, change in business circumstances of the 
company, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments traded in the market such as  changes in the industry 
environment and / or the economy in general.

 
 The Pension Fund Manager’s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Fund’s investment 

objec�ve. The primary objec�ve of the Fund is to achieve long term capital growth by inves�ng primarily in equity 
securi�es. The Fund’s market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Pension Fund Manager in accordance with the 
policies and procedures laid down by the SECP. The funds are allocated among various asset classes based on the 
a�rac�veness of the par�cular asset class. The alloca�on among these is dependent on the �me horizon for investments 
and liquidity requirements of the por�olio. 

 
 The market risk is managed by monitoring exposure to marketable securi�es, and by complying with the internal risk 

management policies and regula�ons laid down in VPS Rules and direc�ves issued by the SECP.
 
 The Fund does not hold any instrument that is exposed to price risk. 
 
21.2 Liquidity Risk 
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to se�le its obliga�on in full 

as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund. Liquidity risk may result from 
an inability to sell a financial asset at close to its fair value. The Pension Fund Manager's approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when due under 
both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputa�on. 
The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve market and 
can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

 
 The Fund aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable securi�es at an amount in 

excess of expected cash ou�lows on financial liabili�es. The Fund is exposed to cash redemp�ons of its units on a regular 
basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s op�on based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit at the �me of redemp�on 
calculated in accordance with the Fund’s cons�tu�ve document and guidelines laid down by Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

 
 Management of liquidity risk
 
 The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by inves�ng majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve 

market and can be readily disposed. The Fund invests primarily in marketable securi�es and other financial instruments, 
which under normal market condi�ons are readily conver�ble to cash. As a result, the Fund may be able to liquidate 
quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirement. The 
present se�lement system is a T+2 system, which means that proceeds from sales (to pay off redemp�ons) of holdings 
will be received on the second day a�er the sale, while redemp�ons have to be paid within a period of six working days 
from the date of the redemp�on request. 

 
 In addi�on, the Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for mee�ng redemp�on requests. No such 

borrowings were made during the year. The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the 
extent of 15% of net assets at the �me of borrowing with repayment with in 90 days of such borrowings. The facility 
would bear interest at commercial rates.
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 Concentra�on of credit risk  
  
 Concentra�on of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterpar�es 

whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in rela�on to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's por�olio of 
financial instruments is mainly concentrated in bank balances while the remaining transac�ons are entered into with 
diverse credit-worthy counterpar�es thereby mi�ga�ng any significant concentra�on of credit risk to counterpar�es 
other than the Government. 

  
22. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
  
 IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements and 

disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as permi�ed by other IFRSs. It defines 
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 
between market par�cipants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price). 

  
 Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of 

assets and liabili�es date. The es�mated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabili�es is considered not 
significantly different from book value. 

  
 The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value is 

based on: 
  

 -  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es (level 1)
  
-  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 

(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
  

 In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund can also withhold daily redemp�on request in excess of ten 
percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemp�on request qualifying for being processed 
on the next business day. Such procedure would con�nue un�l the outstanding redemp�on requests come down to a 
level below ten percent of the units then in issue. No redemp�ons were made during the period.

 
21.3 Credit risk
 
 Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter par�es fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk is 

primarily a�ributable to its investment in corporate sukuk bonds, and bank deposit. Risks a�ributable to investments in 
Market Treasury Bills are limited as these are guaranteed by the Federal Government while bank balances are 
maintained with banks with a reasonably high credit ra�ng. The risk of default is considered minimal due to interest 
systema�c measures taken therein.

 
 The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's bank balances and Investments as at June 30, 2024:

           546,448     546,448           546,448       546,448           546,382    546,382        6,722,583       6,722,583 

(Rupees) % (Rupees) % (Rupees) % (Rupees) %
Bank balance by ra�ng category 
AAA/AA+            546,448 100%           546,448 100%           546,382 100%        6,722,583 100%
Total balance including profit due            546,448 100%           546,448 100%           546,382 100%        6,722,583 100%

------------------------------------------ Rupees --------------------------------------------

Balance with banks

June 30, 2024

 Equity Index Sub-Fund  Equity Sub-Fund  Debt Sub-Fund  Money Market Sub Fund 

Balance as per 
the statement 
of assets and 

liabili�es

Maximum 
exposure

Balance as per 
the statement 
of assets and 

liabili�es

Maximum 
exposure

Balance as per 
the statement 
of assets and 

liabili�es

Maximum 
exposure

Balance as per 
the statement 
of assets and 

liabili�es

Maximum 
exposure
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 -  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3)

 The following tables show the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabili�es held as at June 
30, 2024 including their levels in the fair value hierarchy:

Note
Financial assets not measured at fair value 22.1

Balances with bank -                        546,448         546,448         -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                        546,448         546,448         -                  -                  -                  -                  

Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 22.1
Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                        54,856           54,856           -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        54,856           54,856           -                  -                  -                  -                  

Financial assets not measured at fair value 22.1
Balances with bank -                        546,448         546,448         -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        546,448         546,448         -                  -                  -                  -                  
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 22.1

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Payable to the Trustee -                        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                        54,856           54,856           -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        54,856           54,856           -                  -                  -                  -                  

Financial assets not measured at fair value 22.1
Balances with bank -                        546,382         546,382         -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        546,382         546,382         -                  -                  -                  -                  
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 22.1

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Payable to the Trustee -                        -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                        54,790           54,790           -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        54,790           54,790           -                  -                  -                  -                  

Held by Equity Index Sub-Fund
 June 30, 2024 

 Carrying amount  Fair value 
 Level 3  Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Payable to the Trustee

Held by Equity Sub-Fund

At fair value 
through profit or 

loss

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2 

 June 30, 2024 

 Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Held by Debt Sub-Fund
 June 30, 2024 

 Carrying Amount  Fair Value 

At fair value 
through profit or 

loss

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

 Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 At fair value 
through profit or 

loss 

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Note

Financial assets measured at fair value
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 5,000,000            -                  5,000,000      -                  5,000,000      -                  5,000,000      

GOP Ijara Sukuk 24,781,138          -                  24,781,138    -                  24,781,138    -                  24,781,138    
29,781,138          -                  29,781,138    -                  29,781,138    -                  29,781,138    

Financial assets not measured at fair value 22.1
Balances with bank -                        6,722,583      6,722,583      -                  -                  -                  -                  

-                        6,722,583      6,722,583      -                  -                  -                  -                  
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 22.1

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                        460,000         460,000         -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                        8,073              8,073              -                  -                  -                  -                  

Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                        56,182           56,182           -                  -                  -                  -                  
-                        524,255         524,255         -                  -                  -                  -                  

Held by Money Market Sub Fund
 June 30, 2024 

 Carrying Amount  Fair Value 
 At fair value 

through profit or 
loss 

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Payable to the Trustee
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23 PARTICIPANTS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT (CAPITAL RISK)
 
 The Fund's capital is represented by redeemable units of the sub-funds. They are en�tled to payment of a propor�onate 

share based on the sub-fund's net asset value per unit on the redemp�on date. The relevant movements are shown on 
the statement of movement in Par�cipants' sub-funds.

 
 In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavours to invest the subscrip�ons received in 

appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemp�on. Since the Par�cipants invest in the 
Funds with a long-term objec�ve, possibility of a significant redemp�on pressure is limited, such liquidity is augmented 
by borrowing arrangements (which can be entered if necessary) or disposal of investments, where necessary.

 
 All units, including the core units, and frac�ons thereof represent an undivided share in the per�nent sub-funds of the 

Fund and rank pari passu as their rights in the net assets and earning of the sub-fund are not tradeable or transferable. 
Each par�cipant has a beneficial interest in the sub-fund propor�onate to the units held by such par�cipant in respec�ve 
such sub-fund, in his/her individual pension account (IPA).

 
24 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MANAGEMENT COMPANY
 
 Six mee�ngs of the Board of Directors were held on August 25,2023 , October 20, 2023, October 27,2023, January 

25,2024 ,February 16, 2024 and April 26, 2024, respec�vely. Informa�on in respect of the a�endance by the Directors in 
the mee�ngs is given below:

25 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO           
            
 Sec�on 67G of the NBFC Regula�ons 2008 prescribes annualised total expense ra�o (TER) limits for Voluntary Pension 

Schemes (VPSs). However, the KPK Rules have specified a lower cap of 1%, 1.75%, 0.75% and 0.75% for TER excluding 
insurance charges and separate cap for insurance charges of 0.25% for each sub-fund. These thresholds are within the 
maximum limits prescribed under the NBFC Regula�ons of 4.5%, 4.5%, 2.5% and 2% for Equity Index Sub Fund, Equity 
Sub Fund, Debt Sub Fund and Money Market Sub Fund respec�vely. Based on the current period results the total 
expense ra�o is as follows: 

Held A�ended
Mee�ngs not 
a�ended

1 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 6 6  - -
2 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 6 6  - -
3 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 6 5  1 October 27,2023.
4 Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mir 6 6  - -
5 Mr. Tariq Masaud 6 6  - -
6 Mr. Abid Sa�ar 6 6  - -
7 Mr. Khalid Malik 6 6  - -

Mee�ngs not 
a�ended

S.No. Name of Director
Number of mee�ngs

Equity Index Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Annualized Total Expense Ra�o - - - 0.73%
Government levy, SWWF and SECP fees - - - 0.05%

----------------------------- % ------------------------------

June 30, 2024
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

27 GENERAL           
            
27.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.    

          
27.2 The fund is registered and commenced its opera�ons in current period, therefore no corresponding figure is to be 

reported.           
           
28 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE         

          
28.1 These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 26, 2024 by the Board of Directors of the Pension 

Fund Manager. 

26 PERFORMANCE TABLE

Equity Index Equity Debt Money Market
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

500,000         500,000         500,000         37,059,672 
100.0000       100.0000       100.0000       110.3225 

-                  -                  -                  3,363,598 
-                  -                  -                  - 
-                  -                  -                  160,829 
-                  -                  -                  - 

500,000         500,000         500,000         33,696,074 
Highest Issue Price 100.0000       100.0000       100.0000       110.3225 
Lowest Issue Price 100.0000       100.0000       100.0000       100.0000 

Dividend Income
Net Contribu�on

Un-Realized Gain/loss

June 30, 2024
Performance Informa�on

----------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------

Net Assets
Net Assets Value Per Unit
Net Income a�er Taxa�on
Realized Gain/Loss
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Central Depositary Company of Pakistan

Soneri Bank Limited

Bank Alfalah Limited

BDO Ebrahim & Co.
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Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Note

ASSETS
Balances with bank 5 1,118,893              543,618             554,023             554,023                2,770,557         
Investments 6 36,156,759           -                      -                      -                         36,156,759       
Preliminary expenses and flota�on costs 7 392,425                 -                      -                      -                         392,425             
Advances, Deposits and prepayments 8 350,392                 -                      -                      -                         350,392             
Profit/Mark-up receivable 9 195,432                 9,135                 9,642                 9,642                     223,851             

TOTAL ASSETS 38,213,901           552,753             563,665             563,665                39,893,984       
LIABILITIES
Payable to Pension Fund Manager 10 460,100                 -                      -                      -                         460,100             
Payable to Trustee 11 10,423                    -                      -                      -                         10,423               
Annual fee payable to the Securi�es and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 7,493                      -                      -                      -                         7,493                 
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 13 56,205                    52,753               63,665               63,665                  236,288             
TOTAL LIABILITIES 534,221                 52,753               63,665               63,665                  714,304             
NET ASSETS 37,679,680           500,000             500,000             500,000                39,179,680       

37,679,680           500,000             500,000             500,000                39,179,680       

CONTINGENCIES & COMMITMENTS 14

Number of units in issue 16 338,289                 5,000                 5,000                 5,000                     

Net assets value per unit 111.3831               100.0000          100.0000          100.0000              

 The annexed notes from 1 to 30  form an integral part of these financial statements.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees  ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

PARTICIPANTS' SUB FUNDS (AS PER STATEMENT OF 
MOVEMENT IN PARTICIPANTS' SUB FUNDS)

--------------- (Number of units) ---------------

----------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------

 Total 

June 30, 2024

Money market EquityDebt  Equity Index 
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund
Note

Income
Capital loss on sale of investments - net (5,440)                 -                -                 -                 (5,440)                   
Income from corporate sukuks 167,028              -                -                 -                 167,028                
Income from Investment 2,482,208           -                -                 -                 2,482,208             
Mark-up on bank deposits 1,185,306           52,753          63,666           63,666           1,365,391             

3,829,102           52,753          63,666           63,666           4,009,187             
Unrealised apprecia�on on re-measurement of investments
classified as financial assets at 'fair value through profit or loss' - net 6.2 30,280                -                -                 -                 30,280                  

3,859,382           52,753          63,666           63,666           4,039,467             

Expenses

-                       -                -                 -                 -                         

-                       -                -                 -                 -                         

28,181                -                -                 -                 28,181                  

3,663                   -                -                 -                 3,663                    

7,493                   -                -                 -                 7,493                    
Auditors' remunera�on 35,925                -                -                 -                 35,925                  
Other Expenses 5,056                   52,753          63,666           63,666           185,141                
Amor�sa�on of forma�on cost 57,575                -                -                 -                 57,575                  

Total expenses 137,893              52,753          63,666           63,666           317,978                

Net income for the period before taxa�on 3,721,489           -                -                 -                 3,721,489             

Taxa�on 19 -                       -                -                 -                 -                         

Net income for the period a�er taxa�on 3,721,489           -                -                 -                 3,721,489             

Earnings per unit 20

 The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For the period from December 14,2023 to June 30,2024

 Total 
Money market Debt

Remunera�on to HBL Asset Management Limited - Pension Fund 
Manager

Equity  Equity Index 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to HBL Asset Management 
Limited -  Pension Fund Manager
Remunera�on to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - 
Trustee
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Annual fee - Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
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------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Net income for the period 3,721,489      -                  -                  -                  3,721,489      

Other comprehensive income -                  -                  -                  -                  -                  

Total comprehensive income for the period 3,721,489      -                  -                  -                  3,721,489      
 
 The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------

Money 
Market

Debt  Equity  Equity Index 
Total

For the period from December 14, 2023 to June 30, 2024

HBL KPK PENSION FUND
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended June 30, 2024
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

HBL KPK PENSION FUND
Statement of Movement in Par�cipants' Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2024

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Net assets at the beginning of period -                       -              -               -                -                 

Amount received on issue of units 33,958,191         500,000     500,000      500,000       35,458,191   

Net income for the period 3,721,489           -              -               -                3,721,489     

Net assets at the end of period 37,679,680         500,000     500,000      500,000       39,179,680   

 The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these financial statements.

-------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------------------

Money Market  Debt Equity Equity Index
Total

For the period from December 14, 2023 to June 30, 2024
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For HBL Asset Management Limited
 (Pension Fund Manager)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Execu�ve Officer Director

Note Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income for the period 3,721,489     -          -          -               3,721,489     
Adjustments for non cash items: 

Amor�za�on of forma�on Cost 57,575           -          -          -               57,575          
Capital loss on sale of investments - net 5,440             -          -          -               5,440            
Income from corporate sukuks (167,028)       -          -          -               (167,028)       
Income from Government securi�es (2,482,208)    -          -          -               (2,482,208)   
Mark-up on bank deposits (1,185,306)    (52,753)  (63,666)  (63,666)       (1,365,391)   
Unrealised apprecia�on on re-measurement 
  of investments classified as financial assets at 
    'fair value through profit or loss' - net (30,280)          -          -          -               (30,280)         

(80,318)          (52,753)  (63,666)  (63,666)       (260,403)       
Increase in asset

Investment-net (36,131,919)  -          -          -               (36,131,919) 
Preliminary expenses and flota�on costs (450,000)       -          -          -               (450,000)       
Advances, deposits and prepayments (350,392)       -          -          -               (350,392)       

(36,932,311)  -          -          -               (36,932,311) 
Increase in liabili�es

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager 460,100         -          -          -               460,100        
Payable to Trustee 10,423           -          -          -               10,423          
Annual fee - Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 7,493             -          -          -               7,493            
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es 56,205           52,753   63,665   63,665        236,288        

534,221         52,753   63,665   63,665        714,304        
Cash used in opera�ng ac�vi�es (36,478,408)  -          (1)            (1)                 (36,478,410) 

Income received from corporate sukuks 167,028         -          167,028        
Income received from Government securi�es 2,482,208     -          2,482,208     
Mark-up received on bank deposits 989,874         43,618   54,024   54,024        1,141,540     

3,639,110     43,618   54,024   54,024        3,790,776     
(32,839,298)  43,618   54,023   54,023        (32,687,634) 

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Receipt from issuance of units 33,958,191   500,000 500,000 500,000      35,458,191  

Net cash flows from financing ac�vi�es 33,958,191   500,000 500,000 500,000      35,458,191  
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,118,893     543,618 554,023 554,023      2,770,557     
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period -                 -          -          -                 
Cash and cash equivalents at end 
of the period 5 1,118,893     543,618 554,023 554,023      2,770,557     

 The annexed notes from 1 to 29 form an integral part of these condensed interim financial statements.

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ Rupees ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

For the period from December 14, 2023 to June 30, 2024

Money 
market

Debt Equity
 Equity 
Index  Total 
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1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
1.1 HBL KPK Pension Fund is established under a Trust deed executed between HBL Asset Management Limited as a  Pension 

Fund Manager and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee. The Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited was appointed as a trustee for the Fund by SECP on June 22, 2023. The Trust Deed is approved by the 
Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) on September 12, 2023 under the Voluntary Pension System 
(VPS) Rules, 2005.The Fund is registered under the Sindh Trust Act, 2020, as amended vide Sindh Trusts (Amendment) 
Act, 2021 and was launched on December 14, 2023. 

  
1.2 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System 

Rules, 2005 (The VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Pension 
Fund Manager is situated at 7th floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Karachi, Pakistan. 

  
1.3 The Fund is an unlisted open end pension scheme and units are offered  on a con�nuous basis to employees of KPK 

Government appointed / recruited under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 or an employee of 
KPK Government regularize as Civil Servant through any legal instrument issued a�er coming in to force of the Khyber 
Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022 irrespec�ve of the effec�ve date of regulariza�on. The units are 
non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and KPK Act 2022 and can be redeemed by 
surrendering to the Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from 
any of the sub-funds.  

  
1.4 The Fund consists of four sub-funds namely; Equity Index Sub Fund, Equity Sub Fund, Debt Sub Fund and Money Market 

Sub Fund (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). Under the KPK Civil Servants Act 2022, the contribu�on by or on behalf of the 
employee for the first three years from the date of launch of the fund shall be invested 100% in Money Market Sub Fund 
only and the remaining sub-funds shall remain in opera�ve �ll then. Moreover, in the remaining three sub funds (Equity 
Index Sub Fund, Equity Sub Fund and Debt Sub Fund) only seed capital be injected by the Pension Fund Manager which 
would remain invested �ll three years from the launch date of the Fund. Following the ini�al three years of appointment/ 
recruitment under Khyber Pakhtunkhwa Civil Servants (Amendment) Act 2022, KPK employees are eligible to change 
their alloca�on as per the life cycle alloca�on scheme. In cases where an employee fails to specify their asset alloca�on 
preferences, the pension fund manager, taking into considera�on the employee's profile and age, will allocate the 
contribu�on to the default Asset Alloca�on Scheme outlined in the offering document and the KPK Rules, 2022. 

  
1.5 Except for the departure from investment policy provided in the offering document, where the Pension Fund Manager 

shall place the seed capital amount of all sub-funds other than Money market Sub-Fund in a separate bank account in a 
commercial bank having at least such ra�ng as prescribed thereunder for first three years from the date of launch of the 
Pension Fund, the investment shall be made as per the investment policy men�oned in the offering document. The 
investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows:  

  
- The investment objec�ve of the Equity Index Sub-Fund is to provide investors an opportunity to track closely the 

performance of the KSE-100 by inves�ng in companies of the Index in propor�on to their weightages. The Index 
Sub-fund shall strive to remain fully invested in accordance with the stated index, however, under no 
circumstances shall it be invested less than 85% of its net assets in securi�es covered in the index or its subset 
during the year based on monthly average investment calculated on a daily basis. The un invested amount shall 
be kept in cash and/or near cash instruments where near cash instruments include cash in bank account 
(excluding TDRs), and Treasury bills not exceeding 90 days maturity. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of 
the investments shall be as defined in the offering document;
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1. LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
  
 HBL KPK PENSION FUND ("the Fund") was established under a Trust Deed, dated August 17, 2011, between HBL Asset 

Management Limited (the Pension Fund Manager) as the Pension Fund Manager and Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited (CDC) as the Trustee. The Fund was authorised by the Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 
(SECP) as a pension fund on October 05, 2011. 

  
 The Pension Fund Manager has been licensed to act as a Pension Fund Manager under the Voluntary Pension System 

Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules) through a cer�ficate of registra�on issued by SECP. The registered office of the Pension Fund 
Manager is situated at 7th Floor, Emerald Tower, G-19, Block 5, Main Cli�on Road, Cli�on, Karachi. 

 
 The Fund is an unlisted open end pension scheme and offers units for public subscrip�on on a con�nuous basis. The units 

are non-transferable except in the circumstances men�oned in VPS Rules and can be redeemed by surrendering to the 
Fund. Further, as per the offering document, no distribu�on of income or dividend is allowed from any of the sub-funds. 

  
 The objec�ve of the Fund is to provide individuals with a portable, individualised, funded (based on defined 

contribu�on), flexible pension scheme, assis�ng and facilita�ng them to plan and provide for their re�rement.  
  
 The Fund consists of three sub-funds namely, HBL KPK PENSION FUND Equity Sub-Fund ("Equity Sub-Fund"), HBL KPK 

PENSION FUND Debt Sub-Fund ("Debt Sub-Fund") and HBL KPK PENSION FUND Money Market Sub-Fund ("Money 
Market Sub-Fund") (collec�vely the "Sub-Funds"). The investment policy for each of the sub-funds is as follows: 

  
- The Equity Sub-Fund consists of a minimum 90% of net assets invested in listed equity securi�es. Investment in 

a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) or paid-up capital of the investee 
company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the higher of 30% of NAV or index weight, 
subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Remaining assets of the equity sub-fund shall be invested in any 
government security having less than one year �me to maturity, or be deposited with scheduled commercial 
banks having at least 'A' ra�ng. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in 
the offering document.

  
- The Debt Sub-Fund consist of tradable debt securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment 

por�olio of the Debt Sub-Fund not exceeding five years. At least twenty five percent (25%) of the assets in the 
Debt Sub-Fund shall be invested in deposit with scheduled commercial bank (excluding TDRs) or government 
securi�es not exceeding 90 days maturity. Upto twenty five percent (25%) may be deposited with banks having 
not less than 'AA+' ra�ng with stable outlook. 

  
- The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of short term debt instruments with weighted average �me to maturity 

not exceeding ninety days. There is no restric�on on the amount of investment in securi�es issued by the 
Federal Government and deposits with commercial banks with 'A+" or higher ra�ng. However, deposits with a 
single commercial bank having 'A+' or higher ra�ng shall not exceed 20% of net assets of Money Market 
Sub-Fund. Investment in securi�es issued by Provincial Government,government corporate en��es with 'A' or 
higher ra�ng or a corporate en�ty with 'A+' or higher ra�ng or a government corpora�on with 'A+' or higher 
ra�ng shall be in propor�on as defined in the offering document.

 
 The Fund offers five types of alloca�on schemes, as prescribed by the SECP under NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, to the 

contributors of the Fund namely High Vola�lity, Medium Vola�lity, Low Vola�lity, Lower Vola�lity & Life Cycle Alloca�on. 
The par�cipants of the Fund voluntarily determine the contribu�on amount, subject to the minimum limit fixed by the 
Pension Fund Manager. The alloca�on to the Sub-Funds has to be done at the date of opening of contributor's pension 
account and on an anniversary date therea�er. The contribu�on amount may be paid by the contributor on a periodic 
basis such as annual, semi annual, quarterly or monthly basis. 

  
 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1' (Stable Outlook) on December 30, 2022 (June 

2022:AM2++) to the Pension Fund Manager while the Fund is currently not rated. 

- The investment objec�ve of the Equity Sub Fund of the Pension Fund is to earn returns from investments in 
Pakistani Capital Markets. Assets of Equity Sub Fund shall be invested in equity securi�es which are listed on 
Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) or for the lis�ng of which an applica�on has been approved by PSX or in units of 
Real Estate Investment Trusts and Exchange Traded Funds provided that en�ty/sector/group exposure limits as 
prescribed are complied with at least ninety percent (90%) of Net Assets of Equity Sub Fund shall remain 
invested in listed equity securi�es during the year based on rolling average investment of last ninety (90) days 
calculated on daily basis. Investment in a single company is restricted to lower of 10% of Net Asset Value (NAV) 
or paid-up capital of the investee company. Investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to the 
higher of 30% of NAV or index weight, subject to a maximum of 35% of NAV. Composi�on of the remaining 
por�on of the investments shall be as defined in the offering document;

  
- The investment objec�ve of the Debt Sub Fund is to earn returns from investments in debt markets of Pakistan, 

thus incurring a rela�vely lower risk than equity sub fund. The Debt Sub-Fund consists of tradable debt 
securi�es with weighted average dura�on of the investment por�olio of the sub-fund not exceeding five years. 
At least twenty five percent (25%) of the net assets in the sub-fund shall be invested in debt securi�es issued by 
the Federal Government not exceeding 90 days' maturity. Exposure to any single en�ty or debt securi�es of a 
single en�ty shall not exceed 10% of NAV whereas, investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to 
25% of NAV. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the investments shall be as defined in the offering 
document;

  
- The investment objec�ve of the Money Market Sub Fund is to earn returns from investments in Money Markets 

of Pakistan, thus incurring a rela�vely lower risk than debt sub fund. The Money Market Sub-Fund consists of 
short-term money market securi�es with weighted average �me to maturity not exceeding 90 days. Time to 
maturity of any assets in the por�olio shall not exceed six months. Exposure to any single en�ty or debt 
securi�es of a single en�ty, with the excep�on of those issued by the Federal Government, shall not exceed 10% 
of NAV whereas, investment in a single stock exchange sector is restricted to 25% of NAV. However, at all �mes, 
atleast 10% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund shall be invested scheduled commercial banks having prescribed ra�ngs 
or government securi�es having upto 90 days maturity. Composi�on of the remaining por�on of the 
investments shall be as defined in the offering document.

  
 The Fund offers Life Cycle Alloca�on scheme to its par�cipants with an op�on to allocate their contribu�ons in a pre- 

planned alloca�on strategy as per their age. The exact exposure to each Sub Fund within the Alloca�on Scheme would 
be decided by the Employee at �me of individual pension account opening and may be changed at any �me at their 
discre�on subject to age limits prescribed under KPK Rules. However, for ini�al three years from opening of account, the 
contribu�on of Employees will be invested in Money Market Sub-Fund only. The Employee may exercise the right to 
choose the exposure from the Alloca�on scheme subsequent to the ini�al three year period in the absence of which the 
Pension Fund Manager, keeping in view the profile and age of the Employee, shall allocate the Contribu�ons to the 
Default Asset Alloca�on Scheme as specified in the offering document and the KPK Rules. The par�cipants of the Fund 
voluntarily determine the contribu�on amount, subject to the minimum limit fixed by the Pension Fund Manager. The 
contribu�on amount may be paid by the contributor on a periodic basis such as annual, semi annual, quarterly or 
monthly basis. 

  
1.6 VIS Credit Ra�ng Agency has assigned management quality ra�ng of 'AM1 (Stable Outlook)' as at December 29, 2023 to 

the Pension Fund Manager. 
  
1.7 Title to the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited as Trustee of the 

Fund. 
  
2 BASIS OF PREPARATION 
  
2.1 Statement of compliance 
  
2.1.1 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable 

in Pakistan. The accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 
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- Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standards 
Board (IASB) as no�fied under the Companies Act, 2017;

  
- Provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
  
-  NBFC Rules, the Non-Banking Finance Companies and No�fied En��es Regula�ons, 2008 (the 'NBFC 

Regula�ons') and requirements of the Trust Deed;
  
- The requirements of the cons�tu�ve documents, Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 (VPS Rules), 
  

 Where the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the requirements of VPS Rules and 
cons�tu�ve documents, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the 
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and direc�ves issued under the Companies Act, 2017, the equirements of VPS  Rules 
the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regula�ons and requirements of the Trust Deed have been followed. 

  
2.2 Basis of measurement  
  
 These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis, unless otherwise stated. 
  
2.3 Func�onal and presenta�on currency 
  
 These financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Fund's func�onal currency.  
  
2.4 Use of judgments and es�mates 
  
 The prepara�on of the financial statements in accordance with the accoun�ng and repor�ng standards as applicable in 

Pakistan requires the management to make es�mates, judgements and assump�ons that affect the reported amount of 
assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. It also requires the management to exercise judgement in applica�on of 
accoun�ng policies. The es�mates, judgements and associated assump�ons are based on the historical experience and 
various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accoun�ng es�mates are 
recognised in the year in which the es�mates are revised if the revision affects only that year, or in the year of revision 
and future years if the revision affects both current and future years. 

  
 The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where es�mates and assump�ons are 

significant to the financial statements as a whole are as follows:  
  
 Classifica�on and valua�on of investment 
  
 For details please refer notes 4.2.1.1 and 6 to these financial statements. 
  
 Impairment of investment 
  
 For details please refer note 4.2.1.2 to these financial statements. 
  
3 APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO PUBLISHED APPROVED ACCOUNTING 

AND REPORTING STANDARDS 
  
3.1 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and IFRS interpreta�ons that are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024 

 The following stantdards, amendments and interpreta�ons are effec�ve for the year ended June 30, 2024. These 
standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are either not relevant to the Fund's opera�ons or did not have significant 
impact on the financial statements other than certain addi�onal disclosures. 
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 The Management company adopted the narrow-scope amendments to the Interna�onal Accoun�ng Standard (lAS) 1, 
Presenta�on of Financial Statements which have been effec�ve for annual repor�ng periods beginning on or a�er 1 
January 2023. Although the amendments did not result in any changes to accoun�ng policy themselves, they impacted 
the accoun�ng policy informa�on disclosed in the financial statements.        
         

 The amendments require the disclosure of ‘material’ rather than ‘significant’ accoun�ng policies. The amendments also 
provide guidance on the applica�on of materiality to disclosure of accoun�ng policies, assis�ng the Company to provide 
useful en�ty-specific accoun�ng policy informa�on that users need to understand other informa�on in the financial 
statements.         

          
 Management reviewed the accoun�ng policies and updates to the informa�on disclosed in Note 4 Material accoun�ng 

policies  in certain instances in line with the amendments and concluded that all its accoun�ng policies are material for 
disclosure.          

          
3.2 New accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons that are not yet effec�ve    

         
 The following accoun�ng standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are only effec�ve for accoun�ng periods, 

beginning on or a�er the date men�oned against each of them. These standards, amendments and interpreta�ons are 
either not relevant to the Funds's opera�ons or are not expected to have material impact on the Funds's financial 
statements other than certain addi�onal  disclosures. 

 "Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' and IFRS Prac�ce 
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements- Disclosure of Accoun�ng Policies " 
       

 Amendments to IAS 8 'Accoun�ng Policies, Changes in Accoun�ng Es�mates and 
Errors' - Defini�on of Accoun�ng Es�mates     
   

 Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Deferred Tax related to Assets and 
Liabili�es arising from a single transac�on      
  

 Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Temporary excep�on to the requirements 
regarding deferred tax assets and liabili�es related to pillar two income taxes 

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

January 01, 2023

 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Supplier finance 
arrangements

 
 Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' -  Amendments 

regarding the classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments
 
 Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' -  Amendments regarding the 

classifica�on and measurement of financial instruments
 
 Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' - Amendments to clarify how a seller-lessee 

subsequently measures sale and leaseback transac�ons
 
 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Classifica�on of 

liabili�es as current or non-current
 

"Effec�ve date (annual periods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2026

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024
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 IFRS 1 'First-�me Adop�on of Interna�onal Financial Repor�ng Standards' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from July 01, 
2009. However, it has not been adopted yet locally by Securi�es and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP). 

  
 IFRS 17 - 'Insurance contracts' has been no�fied by the IASB to be effec�ve for annual periods beginning on or a�er 

January 1, 2023. However SECP has no�fied the �meframe for the adop�on of IFRS - 17 which will be adopted by January 
01, 2026. 

  
 IFRS 18 'Presenta�on and Disclosures in Financial Statements' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 2027. 

However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP. 
  
 IFRS 19 'Subsidiaries without Public Accountability: Disclosures' has been issued by IASB effec�ve from January 01, 2027. 

However, it has not been adopted yet locally by SECP. 
  
4 MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES INFORMATION 
  
 The material accoun�ng policies applied in the prepara�on of these financial statements are set out below. These 

accoun�ng policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated. 
  
4.1 Cash and cash equivalents 
  
 Cash and cash equivalents comprise of balances with banks and short-term highly liquid investments with original 

maturi�es of three months or less. Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of assets and liabili�es at cost 
/ nominal amount. 

  
4.2 Financial instruments 
  
 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one en�ty and a financial liability or equity 

instrument of another en�ty. 
  
4.2.1 Financial assets 
  
4.2.1.1 Classifica�on and measurement of financial assets and financial liabili�es 
  
 On ini�al recogni�on, a financial asset is classified and measured at amor�sed cost or fair value through profit or loss 

(FVTPL). The classifica�on of financial assets is generally based on the business model in which a financial asset is 
managed and its contractual cash flow characteris�cs. 

  
 A financial asset is measured at amor�sed cost if it meets both of the following condi�ons and is not designated as at 

FVTPL: 
  

 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Non-current 
liabili�es with covenants

 
 Amendmends to IAS 1 'Presenta�on of Financial Statements' - Non-current 

liabili�es with covenants
 
 Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Supplier finance arrangements
 
 Amendmends to IAS 21 'The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates' - Lack of 

Exchangeability
 
 IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

"Effec�ve date (annualperiods
beginning on or a�er)"

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2024

January 01, 2025

January 01, 2026
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- it is held within a business model whose objec�ve is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
  
- its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding.
  
 All financial assets not classified as measured at amor�sed cost as described above are measured at FVTPL. On ini�al 

recogni�on, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured 
at amor�sed cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accoun�ng mismatch that would 
otherwise arise. 

  
 A financial asset is ini�ally measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transac�on costs that are directly 

a�ributable to its acquisi�on. 
  
 The following accoun�ng policies apply to the subsequent measurement of financial assets: 

 Financial assets at  These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and 
 FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in 
  income statement.
    
 Financial assets at  These assets are subsequently measured at amor�sed cost using the effec�ve 
 amor�sed cost interest method. The amor�sed cost is reduced by impairment losses (refer note 
  4.2.1.2). Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are 
  recognised in income statement.
     
4.2.1.2 Impairment of financial assets    
     
 In rela�on to the impairment of financial assets, IFRS 9 requires an en�ty to account for expected credit losses and 

changes in those expected credit losses at each repor�ng date to reflect changes in credit risk since ini�al recogni�on. In 
other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to have occurred before credit losses are recognized.  
  

 The guiding principle of the expected credit loss (ECL) model is to reflect the general pa�ern of deteriora�on or 
improvement in the credit quality of financial instruments. The amount of ECLs recognised as a loss allowance or 
provision depends on the extent of credit deteriora�on since ini�al recogni�on. Under the general approach, there are 
two measurement bases:    

     
- 12-month ECLs (Stage 1), which applies to all items (from ini�al recogni�on) as long as there is no significant 

deteriora�on in credit quality.   
     
- Life�me ECLs (Stages 2 and 3), which applies when a significant increase in credit risk has occurred on an 

individual or collec�ve basis.   
     
 The Fund's financial assets include mainly deposits, investment and bank balances.    
     
 SECP through its SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 have deferred the applicability of above 

impairment requirements in rela�on to debt securi�es for mutual funds. Meanwhile, asset management companies 
shall con�nue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012 dated October 24, 2012 in rela�on to impairment of debt 
securi�es.    

     
4.2.1.3 Regular way purchase/sale of financial assets    
     
 Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, the date on which the Fund commits to 

purchase or sell the asset.    
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4.2.1.4 Derecogni�on    
     
 Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or have 

been transferred and the Fund has transferred substan�ally all risks and rewards of ownership.   
    

4.2.2 Financial liabili�es    
     
 All financial liabili�es are recognised at the �me when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 

instrument. These are ini�ally recognised at fair value and subsequently stated at amor�sed cost.   
    

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obliga�on under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. 
   

4.2.3 Offse�ng of financial assets and liabili�es    
     
 Financial assets and financial liabili�es are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets and liabili�es 

when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an inten�on to se�le on a net 
basis, or to realise the assets and se�le the liabili�es simultaneously.    

     
4.3 Provisions    
     
 Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or construc�ve obliga�on as a result of past events, it is 

probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to se�le the obliga�on and a 
reliable es�mate of the amount of obliga�on can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted to reflect the 
current best es�mate.    

     
4.4 Taxa�on    
     
 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of part I of second schedule to the income Tax 

Ordinance,2001. The Fund is also exempt from the  provisions of sec�on 113 (minimum tax)  under clause 11A of Part IV 
of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.     

     
4.5 Proposed distribu�ons    
     
 Distribu�ons declared subsequent to the repor�ng date are considered as non-adjus�ng events and are not recognised 

before the repor�ng date.    
     
4.6 Issue and redemp�on of units    
     
 Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applica�ons received by 

the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net assets value per unit as of the close 
of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transac�on costs and any provision for du�es and charges, 
if applicable.    

     
 Units redeemed are recorded at the redemp�on price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive redemp�on 

applica�ons during business hours of that day. The redemp�on price represents the net assets value per unit as of the 
close of the business day less any back-end load (if applicable), any du�es, taxes, charges on redemp�on and any 
provision for transac�on costs, if applicable. Redemp�on of units is recorded on acceptance of applica�on for 
redemp�on.    

     
4.7 Net assets value per unit    
     
 The net assets value (NAV) per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabili�es is calculated by dividing the net 

assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.    
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4.8 Revenue recogni�on     
     

- Realised capital  gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date 
at which the transac�on takes place.   

     
- Mark-up / return on Government securi�es, bank profits and investment in debt securi�es are recognized using 

the effec�ve interest method.   
     
- Unrealised gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as 'financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the year in which they arise.   
  

4.9 Transac�ons with related par�es / connected persons    
     
 Transac�ons with connected persons are carried in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms 

determined in accordance with market rates.    
     
 Remunera�on to the Management Company and the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of NBFC 

Regula�ons and the Trust Deed respec�vely.    

5.1 These carries mark-up at the rates ranging between 15% to 22.5% for Money Market Sub-Fund, 15% to 22.5% for Debt 
Sub-Fund, 15% to 22.5% for Equity Sub-Fund and 15% to 22.5% for Equity Index Sub-Fund. 

6.1.1.1 These corporate sukuk bonds has a coupon rate of 21.85% per annum.. Moreover, the face value is equal to carrying 
value.           

5 BALANCES WITH BANK 

Money Market Debt Equity Equity Index
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note

Local Currency
In saving accounts 5.1 1,118,893     543,618        554,023        554,023        2,770,557     

June 30, 2024

Total

----------------------------------------------------- Rupees----------------------------------------------------

6 INVESTMENTS

Financial assets classified at fair value 
6.1 36,156,759   -                -                -                36,156,759   

36,156,759   -                -                -                36,156,759   
6.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Corporate Sukuk Bonds 6.1.1 3,000,000     -                -                -                3,000,000     
Market Treasury Bills 6.1.2 33,156,759   -                -                -                33,156,759   

36,156,759   -                -                -                36,156,759   

through profit or loss

6.1.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Corporate Sukuk Bonds

------------------------------ (No. of units) ------------------------

Lucky Electric Power Co. Ltd -                3                   -                3                   3,000,000     3,000,000     -                8.30% 7.96%
Total - as at June 30, 2024 -                3                   -                3                   3,000,000     3,000,000     8.30% 7.96%

As at
June 30, 

2024

--------------------%---------------------

Carrying 
value as at 

June 30, 
2024

Market value 
as at June 
30, 2024

Un-realised
gain / (loss)

----- (Rupees in 000) --------

Net
assets

Market value as a
percentage of 

Total
investments

Name of the investee company
As at 

Decmber 14, 
2023

Purchases
during the

period

Sales
during the

period
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6.1.2 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - Market Treasury Bills 

6.1.2.1 As at June 30, 2024, Market Treasury Bill (T-bill) had a face value of Rs. 34.4 million carrying effec�ve yield of 19.9427% 
per annum for T-bill with a face value of  Rs.19 Million, 21.45% per annum for T-bill with a face value of  Rs.11.7Million 
and 21.4% per annum for T-bill with a face value of  Rs.10 Million.

7.1 Under Regula�on 60(2) and 60(3)(i) of the NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, forma�on costs incurred in connec�on with the 
establishment and registra�on of the Fund borne by the Pension Fund Manager and reimbursable shall be chargeable to 
the Fund, not exceeding 1.5 % of the Seed Capital of each Sub-Fund and shall amor�zed over a period of five years.

8.1 The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of part I of Second Schedule of the Income tax 
Ordinance,2001. Further, the Fund is exempt from withholding of tax under sec�on 150, 150A,151 and 233 of ITO 2001. 
      

 The Federal Board of Revenue through a circular "C.No.1 (43) DG (WHT)/2008-Vol.II-66417-R" dated May 12, 2015, made 
it mandatory to obtain exemp�on cer�ficates under sec�on 159 (1) of the ITO 2001 from Commissioner Inland Revenue 
(CIR). However, various witholding agents have deducted advance tax under sec�on 151 of ITO 2001. The Management 
Company is confident that the same shall be refunded a�er filing refund applica�on. 

July 13, 2023 12 Months -               19,000,000  -               19,000,000 18,898,538 18,893,467 (5,071) 52.25% 50.14%
November 16, 2023 12 Months -               11,700,000  -               11,700,000 10,855,248 10,890,916 35,668 30.12% 28.90%
June 27, 2024 6 Months -               3,700,000    -               3,700,000 3,372,705 3,372,376 (329) 9.33% 8.95%
March 7, 2024 3 Months -               10,000,000  10,000,000  -               -                   -                   -                                           0.00% 0.00%
April 8, 2024 3 Months -               3,700,000    3,700,000    -               -                   -                   -                                           0.00% 0.00%
March 21, 2024 6 Months -               5,500,000    5,500,000    -               -                   -                   -                                           0.00% 0.00%
March 11, 2024 12 Months -               5,500,000    5,500,000    -               -                   -                   -                                           0.00% 0.00%
March 25, 2024 12 Months -               5,500,000    5,500,000    -               -                   -                   -                                           0.00% 0.00%
Total - as at June 30, 2024 -               64,600,000  30,200,000  34,400,000  33,126,480      33,156,759      30,280                                      91.70% 88.00%

Issue date Tenure

Face value

As at
July 1, 2023

Purchases
during the

period

Sales /
matured

during the
period

As at
June 30,

2024

--------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------------------------------------

Carrying value 
as at June 30, 

2024

Market
value as at 

June 30, 2024

Unrealised apprecia�on / 
(diminu�on) on

re-measurement of 
investments

Market value as 
a percentage of 

net assets

Market value as 
a percentage of 

total 
investments

6.2 Net unrealized apprecia�on on 
re-measurement of investments classified as 
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss'

Money Market Debt Equity Equity Index
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note

   Market value of investments 6.1.2 33,156,759      -                    33,156,759      
   Less: Carrying value of investments 6.1.

2 (33,126,480)    -                    (33,126,480)    
30,279             -                    -                    -                    30,279             

7 PRELIMINARY EXPENSES AND FLOTATION COSTS

Cost charged 7.1             450,000                        -                          -                          -               450,000 
Less: Amor�za�on for the period             (57,575)                        -                          -                          -               (57,575)
Closing Balance             392,425                        -                          -                          -               392,425 

June 30, 2024

----------------------------------------------------- Rupees----------------------------------------------------

Total

8 ADVANCES, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Security deposit-CDC             100,000 -                    -                    -                                100,000 
Other receivable 130,680           -                    -                    -                    130,680           
Advance tax 8.1             119,712 -                    -                    -                    119,712           

            350,392 -                    -                    -                                350,392 
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10.1 The Pension Fund Manager is allowed to charge fees as remunera�on for the management of fund within the limits of 
the Total Expense Ra�o (TER) prescribed in the Trust Deed. However, no such fees was charged by the Pension Fund 
Manager during the period.       

        
10.2 The Sindh Government has levied Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% on the remunera�on to the Pension Fund Manager 

through Sindh Sales Tax Act, 2011.       
        
10.3 Forma�on Costs as agreed with the employer, not exceeding 1.5 % of the Seed Capital of each Sub-Fund, including 

expenditure incurred in connec�on with the establishment and authoriza�on of the Pension Fund, then the cost shall be 
borne by the Pension Fund, paid to the Pension Fund Manager within the first three months of complete receipt of 
proceeds against Seed Capital Units subscribed by the Seed Investors.

11.1 As per regula�on 60 (3)(b) together with 67G (3) of the NBFC Regula�ons, 2008, the Pension Fund Manager shall charge 
remunera�on of the Trustee related to the Fund within the limits of Total Expense Ra�o as prescribed under the said 
regula�ons. During the period such fees is charged as follows:        

 Net Assets   Tariff per annum 
   
 Upto Rs.1 billion   0.15% p.a. of Net Assets    
 Rs.1 billion to Rs.3 billion  Rs.1.5 million plus 0.10% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.1 billion   

Rs.3 billion to Rs.6 billion  Rs.3.5 million plus 0.08% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.3 billion 
 Over Rs.6 billion   Rs.5.9 million plus 0.06% p.a. of Net Assets exceeding Rs.6 billion   

      
11.2 Sales tax at the rate of 13% on the remunera�on of the Trustee is applied under the provisions of Sindh Sales Tax on 

Services Act, 2011.

Money Market Debt Equity Equity Index
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

9 PROFIT/MARK-UP RECEIVABLE

Bank Al Falah Limited - Main Branch 0001 28,404             -                    -                    -                    28,404             
Corporate Sukuk Bonds 167,028           -                    -                    -                    167,028           
Bank Alfalah Limited -                    9,135                -                    -                    9,135                
Soneri Bank Limited -                    -                    9,642                -                    9,642                
Soneri Bank Limited -                    -                    -                    9,642                9,642                

195,432           9,135                9,642                9,642                223,851           
10 PAYABLE TO PENSION FUND MANAGER

Remunera�on Payable to the Pension Fund Manager 10.1 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remunera�on of the -
Pension Fund Manager 10.2 -                    -                    -                    -                    -                    
Forma�on cost payable to the Pension Fund Manager 10.3 460,100           -                    -                    -                    460,100           

460,100           -                    -                    -                    460,100           

June 30, 2024

Total

----------------------------------------------------- Rupees----------------------------------------------------

11 PAYABLE TO TRUSTEE

Remunera�on to the Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 11.1 9,224                -                    -                    -                    9,224                
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of Trustee 11.2 1,199                -                    -                    -                    1,199                

10,423             -                    -                    -                    10,423             



HBL KPK PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

139

12.1 As per Clause 36 of the VPS Rules, 2005 the Pension Fund Manager shall pay an annual fee to the Commission an amount 
equal to one twenty-fi�h of one per cent of the average annual net asset value of the pension fund. The fees is 
chargeable to the fund under Regula�on 60 (3)(f) and 67G (3) of the NBFC Regula�ons and is payable in arrears. During 
the period the Pension Fund Manager has charged the fees accordingly for the period from the launch of the Fund's 
opera�ons on December 14, 2023 to June 30, 2024 year end. 

15 CONTRIBUTION TABLE      
       
 Contribu�on (net of front end fee) received during the period. 

14 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS    
     
 There were no con�ngencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2024. 

Annual Report -2024

Money Market Debt Equity Equity Index
Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Note
12 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND

EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Annual fee payable 12.1 7,493                -                    -                    -                    7,493                
7,493                -                    -                    -                    7,493                

June 30, 2024

Total

----------------------------------------------------- Rupees----------------------------------------------------

13 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Audit Fee Payable 35,925             -                    -                    -                    35,925             
Withholding tax payable 19,179             -                    -                    -                    19,179             
Other Liabili�es 1,101                52,753             63,665             63,665             181,184           

56,205             52,753             63,665             63,665             236,288           

From: (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees) (Units) (Rupees)

Individuals 38,289         3,958,191      -       -              -        -              -             -               38,289    3,958,191      
HBL Asset Management Company Limited 
 - Sponsor 300,000       30,000,000    5,000   500,000      5,000    500,000      5,000         500,000       315,000  31,500,000    

16 NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE

Total units outstanding at beginning 
of the period
Units issued during the period 353,289         
Units redeemed during the period
Total units in issue at the end of the period

-                                    -                                   

338,289                                5,000                         5,000                          5,000                                 353,289                           

June 30, 2024

-                                   
338,289                                5,000                         5,000                          5,000                                 

-                                        -                             -                              -                                    

------------------------------------------------------------------- (Number of units) -------------------------------------------------------------------

-                                        -                             -                              

Total

June 30, 2024
Money Market 

Sub-Fund
Debt 

Sub-Fund
Equity 

Sub-Fund
Equity Index 

Sub-Fund
Total

Equity Index 
Sub-Fund

Equity 
Sub-Fund

Debt 
Sub-Fund

Money Market 
Sub-Fund
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18 BASIS OF ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES TO EACH SUB-FUND
 
18.1 Remunera�on to the Pension Fund Manager and remunera�on to the Trustee is allocated to each sub-fund on the basis 

of net assets of the sub-fund.
 
18.2 Forma�on Cost shall be divided equally among all the sub-funds opera�ve.
 
18.3 Expenses specifically incurred by a sub-fund, such as custody and se�lement charges, fees and subscrip�on, brokerage 

and transac�on costs, bank charges and all direct expenses of sub fund, shall be charged to the per�nent sub-funds.
 
18.4 Legal costs, audit fees and annual fees payable to the Commission and any other common expenses in accordance with 

the VPS Rules and NBFC Regula�ons, and as defined in the Cons�tu�ve documents, shall be charged to the per�nent 
sub-funds in propor�on to their respec�ve net assets.

 
19 TAXATION
 
 The income of the fund is exempt from tax under clause 57(3)(viii) of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax 

Ordinance, 2001. Further, the Fund is also exempt from the provisions of Sec�on 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A 
Part IV to Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001. Accordingly Super Tax and any other taxes introduced in 
Finance Act 2015 are also not applicable on the Fund.

 
20 EARNINGS / (LOSS) PER UNIT
 
 Earnings / (loss) per unit based on cumula�ve weighted average units for the period has not been disclosed as in the 

opinion of the Pension Fund Manager, the determina�on of the same is not prac�cable.
 
21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

17 AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

Annual audit fee 22,593        -        -              -             22,593         
Fee for half yearly review 13,332        -        -              -             13,332         

35,925        -           -                  -                 35,925         

Equity 
Sub-Fund

-------------------------------- Rupees-------------------------------

Equity 
Index 

Sub-Fund
Total

June 30, 2024

Money 
Market 

Sub-Fund

Debt 
Sub-
Fund

Financial assets
Bank balances -                      1,118,893           1,118,893           
Investments

Corporate Sukuk Bonds 3,000,000           -                      3,000,000           
Market Treasury Bills 33,156,759        -                      33,156,759        

Profit / mark-up receivable -                      195,432              195,432              
Deposits and other receivable -                      230,680              230,680              

36,156,759        1,545,005           37,701,764        

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2024 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

Money Market Sub-Fund

 Amor�sed cost  Total 

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------
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Financial l iabili�es
Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                      460,100              460,100              
Payable to the Trustee -                      10,423                10,423                
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                      37,026                37,026                

-                      507,549              507,549              

Financial assets
Bank balances -                      543,618              543,618              
Profit / mark-up receivable -                      9,135                  9,135                  

-                      552,753              552,753              

Financial l iabili�es
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                      52,753                52,753                

-                      52,753                52,753                

Financial assets
Bank balances -                      554,023              554,023              
Profit / mark-up receivable -                      9,642                  9,642                  

-                      563,665              563,665              

Financial l iabili�es
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                      63,665                63,665                

-                      63,665                63,665                

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2023 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 Amor�sed cost  Total 

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

Equity Sub-Fund

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2024 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 Amor�sed cost  Total 

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2023 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 Amor�sed cost  Total 

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2023 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 Amor�sed cost  Total 

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2024 ----------------------------
Debt Sub-Fund

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

 At fair value 
through profit 

or loss  
 Amor�sed cost  Total 

Financial assets
Bank balances -                      554,023              554,023              
Profit / mark-up receivable -                      9,642                  9,642                  

-                      563,665              563,665              

Financial l iabili�es
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                      63,665                63,665                

-                      63,665                63,665                

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

----------------------------- Rupees in '000 ------------------------------

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2023 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 Amor�sed cost  Total 

Equity Index Sub-Fund

Par�culars

---------------------------- As at June 30, 2024 ----------------------------
 At fair value 

through profit 
or loss  

 Amor�sed cost  Total 
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22 TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTY/CONNECTED PERSONS
 
 Connected persons include HBL Asset Management Limited being the Pension Fund Manager, Habib Bank Limited being 

the Sponsor, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of the Fund, Collec�ve Investment 
Schemes and other Voluntary Pension Systems managed by the Pension Fund Manager, directors and officers of the 
Pension Fund Manager, directors of connected persons and persons having 10% or more beneficial ownership or vo�ng 
power of the units of the Fund or the capital of the Pension Fund Manager.

 
 Transac�ons with connected persons are in the normal course of business, at contracted rates and terms determined in 

accordance with market rates.
 
 Remunera�on payable to Pension Fund Manager and Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the 

Voluntary Pension System Rules, 2005 and the Trust Deed respec�vely.
 
 The details of the transac�ons with connected persons and balances with them, if not disclosed elsewhere in these 

financial statements are as follows:

22.1 Transac�ons during the period 

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
Pension Fund Manager
Remunera�on of the Pension Fund Manager -                    -         -         -         -               
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on of the
Pension Fund Manager -                    -         -         -         -               
Preliminary expenses and floata�on costs 460,100            -         -         -         460,100       

HBL Asset Management Company Limited - Sponsor
Issuance of Seed Capital Units 338,289            5,000     5,000     5,000     353,289       
Amount of Seed Capital Units issued 33,958,191       500,000 500,000 500,000 35,458,191  

Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

28,181              -         -         -         28,181         
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central Depository
Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 3,663                -         -         -         3,663           

----------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------

Remunera�on to the Central Depository 
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

Equity 
Index 

EquityDebtMoney Market
Total

June 30, 2024
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22.2 Balances outstanding as at period end

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
 
 The Fund's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 

minimise poten�al adverse effects on the Fund's financial performance. The Board of Directors (the Board) of the 
Pension Fund Manager has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Fund's risk management 
framework.

 
 Risk is inherent in the Fund's ac�vi�es, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling ac�vi�es which are 

primarily setup to be performed based on limits established by the Pension Fund Manager, Fund's cons�tu�ve 
documents and the regula�ons and direc�ves of the SECP. The policies are established to iden�fy and analyse the risks 
faced by the Fund, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk 
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market condi�ons and the Fund's 
ac�vi�es.

 
 The Audit Commi�ee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Fund's risk management policies and 

procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in rela�on to the risks faced by the Fund. The 
audit commi�ee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes regular reviews of risk 
management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit commi�ee.

 
 Asset purchases and sales are determined by the Fund’s Investment Manager, who has been authorised to manage the 

distribu�on of the assets to achieve the Fund’s investment objec�ves. Compliance with the target asset alloca�ons and 
the composi�on of the por�olio is monitored by the Investment Commi�ee. In instances where the por�olio has 
diverged from target asset alloca�ons, the Fund’s Investment Manager is obliged to take ac�ons to rebalance the 
por�olio in line with the established targets, within prescribed �me limits.

1

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

HBL Asset Management Limited - 
Pension Fund Manager
Remunera�on Payable to the -                     -         -         -          -               
Pension Fund Manager
Sindh Sales Tax payable on remunera�on 
of the Pension Fund Manager -                     -         -         -          -               
Forma�on cost payable to the 
Pension Fund Manager 460,100             -         -         -          460,100        

HBL Asset Management 
Limited Company - Sponsor
Seed Capital Units held 338,289             5,000     5,000     5,000      353,289        
Amount of Seed Capital Units held 33,958,191        500,000 500,000 500,000  35,458,191   

Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited - Trustee

9,224                 -         -         -          9,224            
Sindh Sales Tax on remunera�on to Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - 
Trustee Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited - Trustee 1,199                 -         -         -          1,199            

Total

----------------------------------- (Rupees) -----------------------------------

Remunera�on to Central Depository Company
of Pakistan Limited - Trustee

June 30, 2024

Money Market Debt Equity Equity 
Index 



HBL KPK PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

144 Annual Report -2024

 The Fund primarily invests in a por�olio of equity, debt and money market investments such as shares of listed 
companies, investment - grade debt securi�es, government securi�es and other money market instruments. These 
ac�vi�es are exposed to a variety of financial risks i.e. market risk (which includes currency risk, interest rate risk and 
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk arising from the financial instruments it holds.

 
23.1 Market risk
 
 Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes 

in market prices.
 
 "The Pension Fund Manager manages the market risk through diversifica�on of the investment por�olio and by 

following the internal guidelines established by the Investment Commi�ee.The Pension Fund Manager manages market 
risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securi�es by following the internal risk management policies and investment 
guidelines approved by the Board and regula�ons laid down by the SECP and the VPS Rules. "

 
 Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
 
23.1.1 Currency risk 
 
 This is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign 

exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its opera�ons are geographically restricted to 
Pakistan and all transac�ons are carried out in Pakistan Rupees.

 
23.1.2 Interest rate Risk 
 
 Profit rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of 

changes in market interest rates. 
 
23.1.2 a)   Cash flow interest rate risk
 
 The Fund's interest rate risk arises from the balances in savings accounts. The net income for the year would have 

increased / (decreased) by Rs. 11,189 for Money Market Sub-Fund, Rs. 5,436 for Debt Sub-Fund,Rs. 5,540 for Equity 
Sub-Fund,Rs. 5,540 for Equity Index Sub-Fund, had the interest rates on savings accounts with banks increased / 
(decreased) by 100 basis points.

 
 b)   Fair value interest rate risk
 
 The Fund's investment in Market Treasury Bills and Corporate Sukuk exposes it to fair value interest rate risk.
 
 The composi�on of the Fund's investment por�olio and rates announced by Financial Market Associa�on is expected to 

change over �me. 
 
23.1.3 Price Risk 
 
 Price risk is the risk of vola�lity in prices of financial instruments resul�ng from their dependence on market sen�ments, 

specula�ve ac�vi�es, supply and demand for financial instruments and liquidity in the market. The value of investments 
may fluctuate due to factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer such as, change in business cycles 
affec�ng the business of the company in which the investment is made, change in business circumstances of the 
company, or factors affec�ng all similar financial instruments traded in the market such as  changes in the industry 
environment and / or the economy in general.

 
 The Pension Fund Manager’s strategy on the management of investment risk is driven by the Fund’s investment 

objec�ve. The primary objec�ve of the Fund is to achieve long term capital growth by inves�ng primarily in equity 
securi�es. The Fund’s market risk is managed on a daily basis by the Pension Fund Manager in accordance with the 
policies and procedures laid down by the SECP. The funds are allocated among various asset classes based on the 
a�rac�veness of the par�cular asset class. The alloca�on among these is dependent on the �me horizon for investments 
and liquidity requirements of the por�olio. 

 



HBL KPK PENSION FUND
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2024

145Annual Report -2024

 The market risk is managed by monitoring exposure to marketable securi�es, and by complying with the internal risk 
management policies and regula�ons laid down in VPS Rules and direc�ves issued by the SECP.

 
 The Fund does not hold any instrument that is exposed to price risk. 
 
23.2 Liquidity Risk 
 
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to se�le its obliga�on in full 

as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund. Liquidity risk may result from 
an inability to sell a financial asset at close to its fair value. The Pension Fund Manager's approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabili�es when due under 
both normal and stressed condi�ons, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputa�on. 
The Fund's policy is, therefore, to invest the majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve market and 
can be readily disposed and are considered readily realisable.

 
 The Fund aims to maintain the level of cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable securi�es at an amount in 

excess of expected cash ou�lows on financial liabili�es. The Fund is exposed to cash redemp�ons of its units on a regular 
basis. Units are redeemable at the holder’s op�on based on the Fund’s net asset value per unit at the �me of redemp�on 
calculated in accordance with the Fund’s cons�tu�ve document and guidelines laid down by Securi�es and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP).

 
 Management of liquidity risk
 
 The Fund's policy is to manage this risk by inves�ng majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an ac�ve 

market and can be readily disposed. The Fund invests primarily in marketable securi�es and other financial instruments, 
which under normal market condi�ons are readily conver�ble to cash. As a result, the Fund may be able to liquidate 
quickly its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity requirement. The 
present se�lement system is a T+2 system, which means that proceeds from sales (to pay off redemp�ons) of holdings 
will be received on the second day a�er the sale, while redemp�ons have to be paid within a period of six working days 
from the date of the redemp�on request. 

 
 In addi�on, the Fund has the ability to borrow, with prior approval of trustee, for mee�ng redemp�on requests. No such 

borrowings were made during the year. The maximum amount available to the Fund from borrowings is limited to the 
extent of 15% of net assets at the �me of borrowing with repayment with in 90 days of such borrowings. The facility 
would bear interest at commercial rates.

 
 In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund can also withhold daily redemp�on request in excess of ten 

percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemp�on request qualifying for being processed 
on the next business day. Such procedure would con�nue un�l the outstanding redemp�on requests come down to a 
level below ten percent of the units then in issue. No redemp�ons were made during the period.

 
23.3 Credit risk
 
 Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if the counter par�es fail to perform as contracted. The Fund's credit risk is 

primarily a�ributable to its investment in corporate sukuk bonds,and bank deposit. Risks a�ributable to investments in 
Market Treasury Bills are limited as these are guaranteed by the Federal Government while bank balances are 
maintained with banks with a reasonably high credit ra�ng. The risk of default is considered minimal due to interest 
systema�c measures taken therein.

 
23.3.1 The analysis below summarises the credit quality of the Fund's bank balances and Investments as at June 30, 2024:
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23.3.2 The analysis below summarizes the credit quality of the Fund’s credit exposure:    

 Concentra�on of credit risk     
     
 Concentra�on of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterpar�es 

whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in rela�on to the Fund's total credit exposure. The Fund's por�olio of 
financial instruments is mainly concentrated in bank balances while the remaining transac�ons are entered into with 
diverse credit-worthy counterpar�es thereby mi�ga�ng any significant concentra�on of credit risk to counterpar�es 
other than the Government.    

   
24. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS    
     
 IFRS 13 - 'Fair Value Measurement' establishes a single source of guidance under IFRS for all fair value measurements and 

disclosures about fair value measurement where such measurements are required as permi�ed by other IFRSs. It defines 
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transac�on 
between market par�cipants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).    

    
 Financial assets which are tradable in an open market are revalued at the market prices prevailing on the statement of 

assets and liabili�es date. The es�mated fair value of all other financial assets and financial liabili�es is considered not 
significantly different from book value.    

    
 The following table shows financial instruments recognized at fair value, analyzed between those whose fair value is 

based on:    
     

 -  Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in ac�ve markets for iden�cal assets or liabili�es (level 1)   
   

(Rupees)
Balances with banks by ra�ng category 

Money Market Sub-Fund
Bank Alfalah Limited 1,118,893              A-1+ PACRA

Debt Sub-Fund
Bank Alfalah Limited 543,618                 A-1+ PACRA

Equity Sub-Fund
Soneri Bank Limited 554,023                 A-1+ PACRA

Equity Index Sub-Fund
Soneri Bank Limited 554,023                 A-1+ PACRA

Corporate Sukuk Bonds
Lucky Electric Power Limited                3,000,000 A-1+ PACRA

Name of bank / ins�tu�ons
Balances held by 

the Fund as at 
June 30, 2024

Latest available 
published ra�ng 

as at June 30, 
2024

Ra�ng agency

2024
------ (Percentage) ------

Ra�ng by ra�ng category
A-1+ 100.00             
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 -  Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly 
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).   

     
 -  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3) 

    
 The following tables show the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabili�es held as at June 

30, 2024 including their levels in the fair value hierarchy: 

 Note 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 24.1
Bank balances -                   543,618          543,618          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Profit / mark-up receivable 9,135              9,135              

-                   552,753          552,753          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 24.1

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Payable to the Trustee -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                   52,753            52,753            -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   52,753            52,753            -                   -                   -                   -                   

At fair value 
through profit 

or loss

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Held by Debt Sub-Fund
 June 30, 2024 

 Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

 Note 

Financial assets not measured at fair value 24.1
Bank balances -                   554,023          554,023          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Profit / mark-up receivable -                   9,642              9,642              -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   563,665          563,665          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 24.1

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Payable to the Trustee -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                   63,665            63,665            -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   63,665            63,665            -                   -                   -                   -                   

Note

Financial assets not measured at fair value 24.1
Bank balances -                   554,023          554,023          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Profit / mark-up receivable -                   9,642              9,642              -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   563,665          563,665          -                   -                   -                   -                   
Financial liabili�es not measured at fair value 24.1

Payable to the Pension Fund Manager -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   
-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Accrued expenses and other liabili�es -                   63,665            63,665            -                   -                   -                   -                   
-                   63,665            63,665            -                   -                   -                   -                   

 At fair value 
through profit 

or loss 

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Payable to the Trustee

 Total 

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

Held by Equity Index Sub-Fund
 June 30, 2024 

 Carrying Amount  Fair Value 

 At fair value 
through profit 

or loss 

 At amor�sed 
cost 

 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Held by Equity Sub-Fund
 June 30, 2024 

 Carrying Amount  Fair Value 
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27 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO    
     
 Sec�on 67G of the NBFC Regula�ons 2008 prescribes annualised total expense ra�o (TER) limits for Voluntary Pension 

Schemes (VPSs). However, the KPK Rules have specified a lower cap of 1%, 1.75%, 0.75% and 0.75% for TER excluding 
insurance charges and separate cap for insurance charges of 0.25% for each sub-fund. These thresholds are within the 
maximum limits prescribed under the NBFC Regula�ons of 4.5%, 4.5%, 2.5% & 2% for Equity Index Sub Fund, Equity Sub 
Fund, Debt Sub Fund and Money Market Sub Fund respec�vely. Based on the current period results the total expense 
ra�o is as follows:

Held A�ended
Mee�ngs 

not 
a�ended

1 Mr. Shahid Ghaffar 6 6 - -
2 Ms. Ava A. Cowasjee 6 6 - -
3 Mr. Rayomond H. Kotwal 6 5 1 October 27,2023.
4 Mr. Abrar Ahmed Mir 6 6 - 
5 Mr. Tariq Masaud 6 6 - 
6 Mr. Abid Sa�ar 6 6 - 
7 Mr. Khalid Malik 6 6 - 

S.No. Name of Director

Number of mee�ngs
Mee�ngs not 

a�ended

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

Annualized Total Expense Ra�o 0.73% - - -
Government levy, SWWF and SECP fees 0.05% - - -

June 30, 2024

Equity Index EquityDebtMoney Market

----------------------------- % ------------------------------

28 PERFORMANCE TABLE

Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund Sub-Fund

37,679,680             500,000                500,000         500,000              
111.3831                100.0000              100.0000       100.0000           

3,721,489               -                         -                  -                      
(5,440)                     -                         -                  -                      

30,280 -                         -                  -                      
- 500,000                500,000         500,000              

Highest Issue Price 109.0282                100.0000              100.0000       100.0000           
Lowest Issue Price 100.0000                100.0000              100.0000       100.0000           

Equity Index 

June 30, 2024
Performance Informa�on

Money Market Debt Equity

Un-Realized Gain/loss
Net Contribu�on

----------------------------- (Rupees per unit) ------------------------------

----------------------------- (Rupees) ------------------------------

Net Assets
Net Assets Value Per Unit
Net Income a�er Taxa�on
Realized Gain/Loss
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29 GENERAL           
            
29.1 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees, unless otherwise stated.    

           
29.2 The fund is registered and commenced its opera�ons in current period, therefore no corresponding figure is to be 

reported.           
            
30 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE         

           
30.1 These financial statements were authorised for issue to Board of directors on September 26, 2024 . 
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